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We are one of the UK’s leading retailers, with over
15.8 million people visiting our stores each week.

We offer stylish, high quality, great value clothing and home products, and outstanding guality
foods, afl responsibly sourced froim suppliers we trust. We employ over 75,000 people and have

520 UK stores, as well as an expanding intcrnational busingess.

Clothing & Home

Food

International

UK sales e va1, £4,002.8m (+9.6%0)

UK sales (e van £3,974.7m (49.7Y5)

Sales eae vah £610.6m {+ 16.68%;

We are the UK's largest clothing retailer
with a market share of 11.1% (sowce:
TNS Worldpanel) and sales accounting
for 44.8% of our UK business. In
womenswear we expanded our
‘Autograph’ range and the fast fashion
choice in "Limited Ceollection’; in
menswedr, ‘Blue Harbour’ remains the
UK’s biggest men’s casualwear brand,
we grew our lingerie market share to
26.1%, offering clearly defined brands;
and in childrenswear we reversed our

poor performance with stronger ranges.

Home, representing 5.4% of owr UK
business, has had two years of strang
growth helped by outstanding value
and strong demand in turniture.

read more on pages 12-15 >>
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Food accounts for 49.8% of our UK
business and we have a market share
of 4.3% (scurce: TNS Worldpanel). In
2006/07, we launched a range of 120
‘Nutritionally Bataniced’ ready meals
which are free from antificial colcurs,
flavours and hydrogenated fats and
fcllow government salt, fat and sugar
guidelines. 'Eat Well" accounts for
around 30% of food sales and some
1,300 prod.cts. Simply Food grew from
144 stores to 205 across the UK,
including franchise stores in BP
Connect torecourts, motonvay service
stations, railway stations and airports.

read more on pages 16-79 >»

Your Boal

Financial review

Group Duector's report
Cuporate QUVEINaTE
satemsant

Remuneration report
Auclitors’ 1gport
Consclidated mcome statement
Consclidated statement

of recognised income

and expense

Consolidatec halance sheet
Coniscliddatedd cash flow
intcrmation

Notes o the financiil
statemants

Company income statemern:

Our international business accounts for
7.1% of Group turnaver and has grown
to 218 franchise stores in 34 territories
worldwide as well as eight wholly-
owned stores in Hong Kong and 13 in
the Republic of Ireland. During the year,
we entered four new territories and
opened 36 new stores including our
largest ever franchise store in Dubai at
52,000 sq ft. In May 2007, we opened
aur tirst store in Taiwan under a joint
vanture with President Chain Store
Corporation.
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We've achieved a lot in the last three years. We are now building on
that progress through a relentless focus on our core business, while
also laying the foundations for future growth. Our aim is to become a
more customer-focused, faster moving and flexible business, offering
a wide choice of quality goods and services.

Everything we do has one key goal: building a sustainable business

for the long term, generating shareholder value through consistent,
profitable growth while making sure that our customers can always trust
us to do the right thing.

We will do this by continuing to focus on Product, Service and
Environment: offering great products, in great looking stores with great
customer service.

In addition, we have begun to pursue new routes to growth through the
acquisition of new space; new food formats; new product areas such
as home technology; our new website and international expansion.

And we continue to manage our impact on society and the environment
with great care, through our ‘eco plan’, Plan A.

We Dbelieve this will all make M&S a better business. We've a long way
to go before we are truly a world-class retailer again, but we are on
the right track.

Product Service Environment

We aim to provide a wide
choice of great value, quality
food. clothing and home
products, which are all sourced
and macle responsibly.

We have been investing in our We are opening new stores
people to ensure that we mest and modernising our existing
our customers’ expectations portiolio 1o ensure we provide
o consistently great service, an exciting shopping

no matter when or where experience in the right place,
they visit us. in the right space.

continued an page 12 >> continued on page 20 >> continued an page 22 »>>
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2007 performance

Group revenue

72750 79775

Total

Earnings per share (p)

Fixed charge cover
This is an indication of the Group's atuility
to pay its interest and rental obligations.

6 . 9 times

2005/06: 4.9 times
2004/05: 4.1 times

The profit measuras above ars from continuing oparations and stated before property disposals and exceptional items

KP! = Key Parfarmance lndicater

& UK Relail

@ international Retall  60.7

Group gross margin

9%

2005/06: 38.3%
2004/05: 34.7%

Average weekly foatiall

The number of people visiting our
stores increased by an average ot
500,000 each week.

www marksandspencer com/annualreport2007

Group profit before tax (Emy}

Net cash generated (Em)

CO; emissions

The figures below are estimates of
the carbon emissions from our UK
ard Irish stores and oftices. delivery
vehicles and husiness travel, From
next year these figures will also
inclucie the carbon produced by

our waiehouses and tefrigeration
gas leakage.

296,000
tfonnes

2005/06: 404,000 tonnes
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2006/07 was a good
year for M&S with strong
growth across the
business. Our challenge
is to sustain this
performance in the face
of fierce competition and
fast-changing consumer
trends.

Your dwvidend

18.3p

Total dividend

0.3p

Half year dividend

12.0p

Final dividend
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Chaiman'’s foreword

Last year, in my first year as your Charman, we made good progress and
were able to begin to talk realistically about recovery But we know this is
Just the start and no-one underestimates the effort now needed to achieve
sustainable growth in a highly competitive retait sector

Stuart and his team remain focused on getting the basics nght as they look
to expand the business That means remaining true to our values — qualty,
value, service, Innovation and trust — and constantly improving product,
service and our stores, whilst controlling costs This attention to detarl hes
behind our much mproved results in 2006/07, our higher share price and

a 28 7% wncrease In earnings per share to 40 4p (last year 31 4p} On the
strength of these results, we propose a record final dvidend of 12 Op, up 30 4%

Our new funding arrangement for the defined benefit pension scheme deficit
uses part of our property portfolio to secure payments over the next 15
years This has put an already good scheme on a sustainable, safer footing,
balancing the interests of pension scheme members and investors

Plan A, our 'eco plan’, llustrates a different kand of sustainability and builds
drrectly on our strengths as an ethical company In keeping with Plan A, this
report 1s produced by carbon neutral printers on 100% recycled paper At
the Annual General Meeting (AGM), we are proposing that we use our
website as the mamn way to communicate with shareholders, sending out
reports only to those who tell us they want a paper copy

Good governance remains a pnonty We have a Board with the nght blend of
skills to support and challenge the executive team Martha Lane Fox joined
as a non-executive director on 1 June 2007, bringing considerable business
experience as well as knowledge of the online sector Jack Keenan is retinng
after the AGM 1 would like to thank him for his contribution to M&S dunng
the past six years The executive management changes, which Stuart
describes in his review, provide us with an effective structure to take us

onto the next stage of our growth

Our remuneration polcy ~ set out on page 44 - 1s closely tied to shareholder
interests The way we reward our executive team for ther leadership i1s
pnmarily focused on long-term growth in earnings We believe in shanng the
benefits of success widely and, once agamn, have awarded all staff a bonus
to thank them for their hard work

The prospects for M&S are good We are well placed to meet the challenges
we face and achieve our goal of long-term growth

Thank you for your continued support | look forward to seeing many of you
at our AGM on the 10 July at Earls Court in London

Lord Burns
Chairman
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In the past 12 months, we have made important
management changes, promoting existing talent and
bringing in new people to ensure that we are set up for
the next phase of our growth. We now have the right skills
in place to further improve our products, stores and
service, as well as pursue new opportunities.
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1. Simon Ratctiffe
Direclor of GM Logistics

2. Dominic Morrey
Comwmnercial Director.
oo Division

3. Jim Waller
Commercial Director,
Foorl Division

4. Darrel! Stein
Director of |1

5. Tony Quinlan
Director of Financial Controt

6. Jude Bridge

Marketic g Comunmn

Director

7. Keith Cameron
Director of Human iResances

8. Andrew Skinner
Director of General
Merchandise Planning
& Supply Chain

9. Guy Farrant
Director of Hetail

10. Kate Bostock
Drector af Won VR,
Girlswoar & Lingarie

11. Steven Sharp
Executive Divecton, Marketing

12. Stuart Rose
Chiel Executive

13. lan Dyson
Group Finance Deector

14, George Davies
Chairnmao of per ina

15. David Gregory
lechnical Director,
Food IDvision

16. Richard Gillies

Director ot Store Desgn,
Development & Procurement

17. Glen Tinton
Director ol Sowrcing

18. Flic Howard-Allen
Director of Conwnunications
& CSR

19. Melanie Davies
Joint Business Unit Director.
pertna
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20. Stuart Mclvor
Director of Far kasl
Frocuraiment

21. Matthew Hudson
Director of [rading for
Wornenswear, Lingerio
& Girlswear

22. John Dixon
PDirector of M&S Direct
23. Emma Trayner
Joint Business Uit Director,
[ LN

24. Julian Kilmartin
Direclor of Menswear

25. Steve Rowe
Director of Home & Beauty

26. Nayna Mcintosh
Dwector of UK Store
Presentation

27. Clem Constantine
Ducctor of Property

28. Richard Wolif
Director of Inlernational
Business

Steven Esom
Drector of Food
foined 1 June 2007)

Carl Leaver

Directer of International
Business

{joined 14 May 2007}
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The plan to return M&S to growth has remained the same
over the last three years. This paid off in 2006/07 with
strong results across the business. Our job now is to
consolidate this progress as we move towards achieving
growth for the long term. We're confident we can do this,
but the year ahead is undoubtedly a critical one for us.

Chief Egecutive’s
. () A A A

R GROUP SALES BREAKDOWN
Increase in sales

%
o £000 2004705 2005/08 2008/07
‘ . Clothing 32708 32608 3,570.9

Home 3776 3820 4319
Foot 33863 36232 39747
Increase in pre-tax profits lbe bl 4558 522.7 610.6

Total 74005 77977 85881
%
]

Increase in earnings
per share

28. ("

MARKETSHARE (VALUE)
Clothing & footwear

{Saurce: TNS Worldpanel, Food & Drink)
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Stuart Rose

CREATING SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Adjusted earnings per
share (EPS)

Total shareholder
return (TSR)”

W FTSE100 (£) @ M&S (£)

* TSA is the value of £100C invested in MA&S shares on 30 March 2002
compared ta £100 invested in the FTSE 100 over the same perind.

@ Marks & Spencee B FTSE 100 @ General Retailers
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Since the summer of 2004, M&S has gone from being
a retaller struggling to hold its own to one that, last
year, was once again setting the pace in a fiercely
competitive market

We've achieved that change by following a simple, but ngorous
plan it has been about getting three basic elements nght —
our products, the service we offer our customers, and the look
and feel of our stores

This will remain our focus as we continue to drive further
mprovements in the core business At the same time, we have
begun to look at new opportunities for growth

M&S has always done best when it has stuck closely to its
traditional values — quality, value, service, innovation and trust
They capture just what our customers look to us for — high
quality, great value products, sourced and made responsibly
and sold through stores which are enjoyable to shop in and
which offer excellent customer service

We are in no way complacent about the results we have
achieved to date We know that we stil have much to do

Performance

Our results last year show that we have made real progress

UK sales rose by 9 7% to £7 98bn {Jast year £7 27bn} Food
sales grew by 9 7% General merchandise grew by 9 6% with
clothing up 9 2% and home up 13 1% Group operating margns
grew to 12 2%, up from 11 0% last year Group profit before tax
rose by 28 5% to £965 2m (last year £751 4m)

These results were achieved in a challenging economic
environment, where inierest rate nsas, higher household bills
and personal debt were begnning to dent consumer
confidence

Competition 1s fierce, with retailers constantly looking to
improve ther offer, while also extending therr reach through
aggressive growth of therr store portfolios

Customers are ever more demanding and informed They want us
to provide great value with no compromise on quality or innovation
Increasingly, they also want to know that we are doing this
responsibly, addressing key ethical and environmental issues

Aganst this backdrop our results were all the more
encouraging We were ong of the few retallers to expenence
strong growth in market share dunng the year

We saw increases in market share, both by value and volume,

in all categonies during the year Our share of the UK clothing
and footwear market went up from 10 4% to 11 1% and in food
our share ended the year on a new high of 4 3%, up from 4 1%

On average, we had 15 8 millon visitors to our stores each
week and we successfully encouraged shoppers to buy more
each tme they wisited

Our TV, newspaper and billboard advertising campargns are
allowing us to project our brand, ons of our most valuable
assets, with much greater impact The key to good marketing is
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OUR MARKETPLACE

Interest rate rises and higher bills have begun to dent consumer confidence. But this has not
yet changed spending habits, which are being fuelled by increasing levels of debi.

Last year, the retail market continued
to grow. However, the proportion of
disposable income spent in shops
shrank, as people chose to spend
more on leisure and other activities.

Traditional high streets remained under
pressure, Out-of-town shopping centres
became more dominant; online and
television shopping were firmly established
as mainstream shopping channels; while
mail order firms offered branded goods at
more competitive prices.

Moreover, the market remained intensely
competitive, with new enirants regularty
joining the fray and established players
steadily increasing their store space.

In the clothing market, a modest increase
in total sales value was dwarfed by a
large increase in volume, as consumers
bought more lower-priced products. In
spring 2007, this was further influenced
by consumers buying into a multitude of
looks in the absence of one dominant
fashion trend.

www marksandspencer com/annualreport2007

Retailers converged in the middle ground,
with value retailers adding higher-priced
ranges, and mid-market players
expanding their value ranges.

At the same time customers have
become less loyal and more savvy, willing
to shop anywhere and everywhere to
compare price and quality.

More retailers entered the fragmented
homeware market in the past year.
Consumers, meanwhile, looked for low
prices as they regularly freshened up
their homes with soft furnishings in
tashionable colours and styles.

Shoppers were happy to spend on
technology, from flat-screen telgvisions

to MP3 players, upgrading to the latest
version. The supermarkets increased their
offer to meet this demand, making this
market more price sensitive.

Growth in food remained strong, with
the big food retailers benefiting at the
expense of smatler chains and

Consumiers have become much more
conscious of food quality, trading up to
premium ranges. Increasingly, purchasing
decisions are swayed by such things as
provenance, with demand for fairly traded
and organic goods - from ready-prepared
jams and pies, to basics such as milk —
increasing rapidly.

Cooking a meal from scratch became
popular again, along with a renewed
empbhasis on fresh food, with consumers
shopping more often in more stores.
Healthy eatling continued 1o grow in
importance, but people still treated
themselves to the occasional indulgence.

In the year to come, the expected
slowdown in property prices will further
impact consumer confidence, whilst
competition will increase. Convenience,
qualty. service and choice will remain key
- in stores and online.

independents.

great product Now that we have better products, we are using
advertising to drive sales with greater confidence This year, we
extended our television advertising into childrenswear for the
first time

2006/07 saw us nvest heavily n modernising our stores 35%
of the portfolio was modernised by Christmas 2006 - from big
stores such as Cnbbs Causeway and Manchester to small hugh
street stores In Crewe and Clapham We have a target to
complete 70% of the portfolio by the end of 2007

This 1s a big programme But 1t 1s being managed with minimal
disruption to customers and our overall performance Feedback
from customers is good and sales performance at the new
stores i1s encouraging

We want to offer a conventent, exciting and modern shopping
experience However, our new stores will only thnve if we keep
getting our products and service rnight

As welt as improving the lock and fee! of our stores, we have
invested in our people, increasing the number of customer
assistants and the amount of ime they spend helping
customers Qur work on reward, training and career paths

1s helping us recrutt and retain the best people

Sources: BRC/IKPMG; Mintel

The website, www marksandspencer com, performed well,
reaching sales of over £100m for the first tme We know that
online is a big opportunity for us and, in March 2007, we
launched our new website — the first step in buillding our multi-
channel offer

QOur international business also performed well We have built

a strong franchise operation and now have 219 stores in 34
termtones Turnover, including our eight wholly-owned stores in
Hong Kong and 13 in the Repubiic of freland, rose 16 8% to
£610 6m {last year £522 7m) while operating profits rose 33 2%
to £87 5m (last year £65 7m)

M&S Monsy is benefiting from our partnership with HSBC, with
our share of profits more than doubling from £9 6m to £19 5m
Over three millon people now use the &More credit card, re-
launched dunng the year, and we have over 100 Bureaux de
Change at our stores serving 3 8 million customers We
axpanded the range of financial products, which now includes
home and car insurance and a new ethical investment fund

In the pages that follow | will expand on how each element of
the business performed in more detail and look at some of the
mamn opportunities and challenges we see coming up in the
year ahead
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OUR BRAND

The public has an affinity with M&S which, arguably, it has
with few others. They have grown up with M&S and feel
they ‘own’ it. The award-winning ‘“Your M&S' tag continues
to recognise this and unify the brand.

During the year, we continued to focus
on fewer, bigger impact campaigns and
to use mass-appeal, traditional
communication channels, like television,
to bring clarity and authority to our
messages.

We freshened our womenswear and
lingerie formuta, introducing Lizzie
Jagger to appeal to younger audiences.
in March 2007, Myleene Klass joined
the girls outside for a fashion picnic in
the park.

In menswear, rock-star turned
photographer Bryan Adams captured
our ‘Autograph’ offer; while our first
childrenswear television ad drove up
sales faster than any previous
campaign. in our home department we
developed our catalogues. in-store
décor and website offer further,

‘Not just food...” advertising continued
to give a strong visual taste of our high
quality products, such as our organic

For the imporiant festive season, we ran
a feature-length ad. with Shirley Bassey.
capturing the special quality we bring to
Christmas.

‘Look behind the label’ and Plan A
responded to customers’ desire to
better understand our approach to
environmental and ethical issues.

But it's not just about advertising. Better
product, better looking stores, investment
in customer service and a new wehsite
have been critical in encouraging
people to reassess our brand.

The positive net effect of our marketing
mix continues to build: footfall is
growing ahead of the market and brand
momentum is the highest it has ever
been and the M&S brand grew by 192%
during the year to a vatue of £4.75bn,
making it the fasiest growing top 100
global brand (Millward Brown}. Our
challenge is to maintain this by keeping
our brand fresh.

nut-free Easter eggs.

Exploring new opportunities

2007/08 will be cntical as we seek to put the business on
the path to sohd and sustanable growth, consolidating on
our progress to date, whilst also building the foundations for
future growth

Our plan to focus on product, service and environment will
remain front of mind ~ we can't afford to take our foot off
the accelerator

Qur other challenge in the months ahead is also to pursue new
product opportunities in our stores and online to encourage our
existing customers to spend more with us

We will do mare of what we do already, but at greater pace For
instance, this year we will open more Simply Food stores than
ever before, working towards our am to have more than 400,
in addrtion to selling our food n BP Connect service stations
under the Simply Food banner in up to 200 locations within
five years

Qur property review, outlined in November, means that over the
next five years we will expand our overall space by 15-20%,
with new or extended stores out of town, on Retail Parks and In
city centres The objective 15 to be in the nght place with the
nght space for tomorrow's custcmers We are reviewing our
high street stores to make sure we are properly represented in
well-located sites where customers most want to shop

Our new website, developed in partnership with Amazon and
launched in March 2007, makes us a truly mult-channel
operation, allowing us to offer customers greater choice and
convenience With the nght technology in place attached to a
much better service offer, we believe we can increase our sales
through this charnel five-fold in the next five years

We have tested new product and senvice ofters too, such as
home technology, new formats for men's shoes, and new eating
offers, such as our ‘eat over delicatessens’, all of which we are
now tnalling more widely This year, we will also tnal a new
layout for women'’s shoes and for childrenswear

We will develop our overseas business at a faster pace We
have teams explonng opporiunities both in markets where we
already perform well and n new locations, as | descrnbe n more
detail on page 24

The continued tight control of our costs and stock levels
remains an important pnonty But we are prepared to invest
heawvily, as we have with the modernisation of our stores, In
areas where we see real opportunities for long-term growth
and investment returns
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Management team

We have made some impartant changes to the leadership of
M&S in the last 12 months to prepare us for the next phase of
growth

In the autumn, we brought supply chain, sourcing and pianning
for cur clothing and home businesses together under one director,
Andrew Skinner, In order to get our supply chan fit for the future
Julian Kilmartin replaced Andrew as our Director of Menswear

In addition, we have emphasised the importance of e-commerce
and the new director for this area, John Dixen, now reports
directly to me

We reinforced the sirength of the team in Apnt 2007, with two
new appomntments and the promotion of key talent

Steven Esom oined as Director of Food on 1 June 2007 from
Waitrose, where he was Managing Directer Guy Farrant, our
previous Diractor of Food, was appointed Director of Retal,
replacing Anthony TFrompson who has left the business

Cari Leaver jomned on 14 May 2007 as our Director of
International Business and reports to me He was previously
CEO of De Vere Group plc and will replace Richard Wolff, who
retires later in the year after 36 years with the Company

PLAN A

www marksandspencer com/annualreport2007

Kate Bostock, Director of Womenswear and Girlswear takes
on additional responsibility for lingerie, helping us to ensure a
co-ordinated offer for all of our ranges for women Matt Hudson,
our previous Director of Lingene became Director of Trading for
the new, enlarged womenswear, ingene and girlswear group

Responsibility for our ongoing store modernisation programme
passed to lan Dyson, our Group Finance Director, to allow
Steven Sharp to focus on the next generation of store design,
alongside his responstbilities for marketing and M&S Money

The Executive Committee, which oversees the day-to-day
running of the business, was extended and now Includes Kate
Bostock, Steven Esom, Guy Farrant, Andrew Skinner and Carl
Leaver, in addition to the executive board directors

This executive team in tum forms part of a wider Directors’ Group,
which you can see on pages four and five of this report,
including three new food director roles created in Apnl 2007

This structure retains the fast decision making which has been
critical in recent years, whilst also ensunng that we have a
joined-up approach to our customer offer

Plan A

In any company, the temptation can be to focus too narrowty
on short-term business performance Responsible companies
have to look to the fong term

CLIMATE CHANGE

Plan A is our five-year, 100-point plan to tackle some of the

biggest challenges facing our business and our world.

Climate Change We aim to make our UK and Republic
of Ireland operations carbon neutral in five years. We will
minimise energy use, maximise the use of renewables and

offset only as a last resort.

00,000

Al our Simply Food stores,
our stores in Scotland and our
Londen head office are now
powered by ‘renewable’ green

energy — saving 55,000 tonnes
of CO, every year.

Waste We'll reduce packaging by 25%, find new ways to
recycle and stop sending waste to landfill from our stores,
offices and warehouses.

Sustainable Raw Materials From fish to forests, our goal
is to make sure our key raw materials come from the most
sustainable sources available.

Fair Partner By being a fair partner, we'll help improve the
lives of hundreds of thousands of people in our worldwide
supply chain and tocal communities.

‘Health We'll help customers and en‘xployeeé choose
healthier lifestyles through healthy food ranges and
Clear labelling.

To find out more visit www.marksandspencer.com/PlanA
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We set ourselves very high quality and ethical standards
Last year, we used our ‘Look behind the label’ campargn to
describe the lengths we go to to ensure everything we sell is
produced responsibly

But customers and staff wanted to understand our overall
approach and our plan for the future

The result was Plan A, our five-year, £200m ‘eco plan’ launched
in January 2007

We've made 100 commitments across the five areas, including
becoming carbon neutral, sending no waste to landfill, cutting
our packaging by a guarter and only ustng fish and wood from
sustainable sources As well as addressing the wider issues,
we continue to work closely with Jocal communtties through
our '‘Marks & Start’ work expenence programme, for example

All of these commitments are descnbed in our ‘How we
do business’ report, published alongside this document at
www marksandspencer com/howwedobusinessreport2007
Each year we will report on how far we have got in
achieving them

To make sure Plan A is a success 1t is being completely

integrated into our day-to-day operations It will change how we

operate forever

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC 1"

The impact will be felt widely We are takang action across
35,000 product ines, Involving more than 2,000 factones,
10,000 farms and 250,000 workers around the world We will
also involve customers and co-operate with governments,
environmental agencigs and like-minded organisations

One of our aims 1s to help customers and employees live
healthier and more sustanable ives We've trained 1,500
assistants to give our customers advice on nutntion and we
continued to expand our ‘Eat Well' ranges Later this year, we
will start selling ‘green home' products from energy-saving
light bullbs to composters As well as committing to reduce
the amount of food we import by arr, we have also started to
ntroduce an aeroplane symbol on 'flown® food And we’ll be
making it easier for customers to recycle our packaging

Plan A ts deliberately ambitious We don't have all the answers
yet But responsible retaling has always been at the hear of
our approach, so we have a strong starting point

I'm convinced we have no alternative but to make Plan A work
Doing nothing 1s not an option Businesses can no longer
ignore the challenges facing the world

SUSTAINABLE RAW MATERIALS

QOver 90% of our new collection of
timber garden furniture will be Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) certified.
By 2012 all of our products that

are made using wood will carry FSC
ceartification so that our customers
can be confident that our products
meet independent environmental
management standards which aim

to protect our forests.

HEALTH WASTE

1,000

We now have 1,500 trained
Healthy Eating Assistants in our
stores to advise our customers
on healthy options. We will train

100%

Almost all the carrier bags we use in
our clothing and home departments
are now made from 100% recycled

FAIR PARTNER

We are committed to helping
disadvantaged groups like the disabled
and homeless get into jobs via work
placements in our stores and supplier
factories. Since it launched in 2004,

over 9,000 people have taken part in
our ‘Marks & Start’ programme. This
work was recognised in March 2007
when we won the Prince’s Trust

material. Our ‘Bag for Life', which has
been reduced in price from 15p 1o 10p.
is also 100% recycled.

all our food hall teams in
nutrition within three years.

Partnership & Innovation Award,
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INNOVATION

Qur technologisls work closely
with suppliers to introduce new,
innovative products, which have
real practical benefits for our
customers.

This year, we launched our
exclusive men's ‘Stormwear’
range which is made with an
innovative water and stain
repellent, breathable fabric
originally developed for

the military.

Initially applied to some of our
men's jeans, we plan to introduce
more ‘Stormwear’ products for
both adults and children.

We also developed a new fleece
made from recycling plastic bottles
into polyester, instead of using
oil. We wilt be using 4.5 million
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plastic bottles this year to make
tleeces for sale in-store and for
a store uniform trial,

During the year, we also extended
our use of innovative materials
that we introduced in 2005/06.
This included Insolia shoes, which
work by moving weight back

to your heel for better body
alignment and balance, keeping
legs comfortable.

We also used ‘Real Cool Cotton’,
a trademark fabric that was
initially introduced into men’s
undergarments and helps to
keep you coal, in new categories
including adult t-shirts and

baby sleepsuits.

In hosiery, we now sell ladder-
resistant tights and hold-ups

as fine as seven denier from
£3.50. The fabric is made from
revolutionary new yarns, which
join to form thousands of
invisible mini-joints. This means
that should a yarn break, rather
than creating an unsightly ladder,
the fabric forms a discreet hole.
This hosiery also has a reinforced
toe and added stretch.

In womenswear, we built on the
success of ‘Magicwear', which
we had introduced in lingerie to
provide invisible shape and
support.

We applied this shaping
technology to the ‘Magic Dress'
~ as worn by Shirley Bassey in
our Christmas TV adverts - and
are now offering 'Magic Jeans'.
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SOURCING AND SUPPLY CHAIN

It is 20 months since we opened our natwork of
sourcing offices: Hong Kong and Shanghai - which
apened in September 2006 — covering China and the
Far East; Bangalore, Colombo and Dhaka covering
South East Asia; and the Turkish office in Istanbul
facusing on Eastern Europe and North Africa.

With a staff of around 200, the offices have co-
ordinated the direct buying, production and
transportation of over 129 million items in 8,000 styles.

These offices are our eyes and ears on the ground,
helping us to operate more efficiently, such as
getting new fast fashion ranges from the drawing
board into stores in eight weeks. They also play a
key role in monitoring our suppliers' labour

standards. Last year. 677 independent visits to
supplier factories were carried cut to make sure they
were meeting our ethical standards on issues such
as fair pay and working conditions.

Our overseas offices also help us 1o find new
suppliers who we can work with directly to produce
great value products for our customers. In 2006/07,
we bought 28% of our clothing and home products
direcily {last year 21%). Full Service Vendors still
account for the large maijority of our supply and
remain key supplier partners, helping us to maintain
our record on innovation.
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We satd last year that our main aim was to provide great
quahty, responsibly sourced clothing and home products n
our stores at the nght time, the nght price and in the nght
quantities

Womenswear, menswear, Ingerne, childrenswear and home all
recorded strong growth in sales and market share as we also
brought in more choice and translated trends more quickly nto
really wearable fashion, or stylish ranges for your home

But customers expect us to do more Relentless competiiion
from high street value retallers, supermarkets and established
nvals means we cannot be complacent We need to keep
getting the basics nght if we are to retan the support of
customers and keep imMproving our perfonmance

Performance

Our growth last year shows what we are capable of
Womenswear executed its ‘every woman, every tme' strategy
with skill with marketshare mncreasing from 10 5% to 11 3%
Key looks such as slim trousers, leggings, tunics, knitted
jumpers and jersey t-shirts proved successful and our new
denim shops traded well in a tncky market Formal clothes
prospered - our £50 polyester and linen mix suit remamed a
top seller - offsetting slower demand for casual trousers and
some lewsure wear ‘Limted Collection’ was well-receved by
younger, more fashion-conscious shoppers

‘Per una’ continued to grow strongly in the year, with sales of
£423 5m, as it celebrated s fifth birthday with strong ranges from
‘Collezione itaha’ fashion flarr 1o stylish eveningwear and a re-
launched jeans collection

Footwear also performed well, with improved choice and quality
- from £9 50 pumps to leather-lined ‘Autograph’ shoes In
2007/08, we will be tnaling a new women's footwear layout to
make this enhanced offer easier to shop

Menswear saw growth across the board from casual clothing to
talonng and its share of the market grew from 9 6% to 10 3%
Our shoe ranges benefited from new senaced shoe shops,
which will be rolled out to 30 modernised stores Our three
menswear sub-brands also performed well 'Autograph’ was
the main engine for growth, ‘Blue Harbour’ remains the UK's
biggest men’s casualwear brand and ‘Collezione’ continues to
be popular with men looking {or classic European style ‘Blue
Harbour Vintage' performed less well and this more casual look
will be gradually absorbed into ‘Blue Harbour' In suiting, deals
to provide suits for the England teams for the European football
championships and the Rugby World Cup are a great vote of
confidence in the quality of our talonng

In Ingene, offenng more clearly defined brands helped us re-

establish our fashion credentials, provide real choice and boost

sales ‘Censo’ and ‘per una’ are attracting younger customers

while ‘Adored’ continues to offer pretty femininity and “Truly

You’, sophisticated glamour ‘Body’ rernains popular with those

looking for simple style. while the introduction of the 'Autograph’

has helped to highiight the great quality at the top of our prce .
range We also remained the place women go to first for
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essential items like everyday bras, single knickers and hosiery,
thanks to competitive pricing and excellent quality Clear
segmentation and choice enabled us tc increase our market
share, despite intense competition, from 24 3% to 26 1%,
nearly five tmes the share held by our nearest competitor
Maintaning this dominant position will be the challenge this year

In children’s clothing we reversed the weak performance of
recent years and made our first market share improvement for
sIx years, up from 4 2% to 4 5%, ntroducing better product
from baby rnight through to young teenage girls and boys Our
first telewision advertising campagn for childrenswear boosted
sales, as did a new trial store layout We are pleased with the
progress this year, but we know we have a lot more to do here,
both in terms of product and avalability

Our home department 1s In its second year of strong growth,
helped by good demand for furniture and a clearer pncing
stretching from 50p glass tumblers and £5 large glass vases
to our ‘Autograph’ extra large pure combed cotton bath towels
at £25 There's potential to grow this business significantly

In furruture, our prionty s to wmprove our delivenes to provide
even better levels of service

Value
As the UK's largest clothing retaller, we buy on a vast scale
This means we can give customers a broad spread of prices

VALUE

We offer customers a choice of high
quality products at prices that suit
them. For us, it's a simple equation:
value = price x quality. We're trying to
make the choices simpler. Take bed
linen. Customers can now chaoose our
opening price pillow cases at £2 each,
opt for our ‘Supima’ 100% soft cotton,
non-iron pillow cases at £4, or choose
‘Autograph’ Egyptian fine cotton ones
at £12 each.
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to choose from without compromising on qualty, innovation
or ethical trading

We have been taking action on pnces across clothing and
home for two years, with further progress made on improving
value across our ranges in 2006/07 Average prices fell by
around 3% over the year, while volumes increased by around
14% Last year, items iike women's jogging trousers for £ 50,
one of our biggest seling kines, cosy, long fleece dressing
gowns at £17 50, our men's £49 50 machine-washable sutt,
and cooking sets from £8 50, set the pace on value

But we need to keep providing customers with new, great

value products In the year ahead, there will be more must-have
fashion items like leggings and printed jersey dresses in
womenswear, while In men’s we will continue to ntroduce
better opening pnces on popular lings, as we have done with
our £5 polo-shirt In ingene and home, we're extending the
choice of colours in key lines tike the €6 bra and in basic towels
and bed linens There'll be more valus items in childrenswear,
Itke our £2 50 giis’ t-shirts, as wa continue our work to Improve
our offer

Choice

Our brands are helping us to Introduce more clanty at higher
price brackets too ‘Autograph’ — the brand we use across
womenswear, men’'s, lingene and homs for contemporary
products at the top end of our price range - Is a good example

AWARDS

We won a number of important
awards during the year. These
included being named Business
in the Community ‘Company of
the Year' for the second time;
Best Fashion Retailer by the
RSPCA; and being given Grade A
status by Greenpeace for
sustainable wood sourcing. Both
Prima and Drapers voted us best
lingerie retailer.

FAIR PARTNER

We've increased our use of ‘Fairtrade’
cotton from India and Africa, buying
around a third of the world's current
supply. In ‘Fairtrade’ Fortnight in March
we offered an oultfit for all the family,
including socks, t-shirts and jeans.
Next year we will sell over 20 million
‘Fairtrade’ garments, equating to
around £100m of sales.
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of this, offering affordable luxury from cashmere loungewear to
Timathy Everest suits

We can gve ‘Autograph’ more authonty Already worth
£275m across clothing and home, we am to double its value
in the next three years The launch of ‘Autograph Weekend' -
smart-casua! clothes for women — will help us achieve that

‘Lumrted Collection’, ike ‘Censo’ in ingene, 1s attracting younger
customers Along with girls’ ranges such as 'Girls Boutique', 1t
1s bought on an eight-week cycle from Turkey, to keep stores
fresh with up-to-the-minute trends However, we have not
always offered new product frequentty enough and we're taking
action on this with a new three-weekly buying cycle and by
backing key trends in more depth

Qur much improved chiddren’s ranges include organic cotton
babywear, trendier outfits for gis and plenty of popular
character t-shirts for boys The enhanced childrenswear offer 1s
an important part of our efforts to provide great value clothing
for all the farmily

Greater fashion appeal 1s very important But we haven't
forgotten our customers who want classic style We've extended
our ‘Classic Collection’ ~ which now spans sizes 8 to 24 - and
also Introduced a new 'Golf' range of sport-styled casual
clothes for men and women

FAIR PARTNER
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It 15 vital that our core departments ~ Iike women's formal
trousers and men's shirts — remain easy to shop with good
availability Our ‘Petite’ and ‘Plus’ ranges for women are helping
us meet the needs of a diverse customer base The new
wedding range, which we launched in March with outfits for the
whole wedding party, and our extended maternity range have
both helped fill important gaps in our offer We are extending
this work through our website, providing the widest range of
colours, styles and sizes

We have also added to our home offer Our technology shops,
which we introduced to 12 stores and online in September,
and to our Croydon store after the year end, offer a carefully
selected range of branded goods from music systems to
microwaves, all with easy to follow instruchons Everything
comes with a two-year guarantee except for our large televisions,
which come with a five-year guarantee and free installation

We intend to add this offer to more stores during 2007/08

Outlook

It's encouraging to see how customers have responded to
the changes we've made across our clothing and home
departments But they have made it clear they expect us to
keep improving With competition intensifying, we will be
working closely with our suppliers to do just that

CHOICE

We want every one of our
customers to find something
they love every time they visit,
whether that be the perfect
'Autograph’ cashmere jumper or
a trend-led item {from ‘Limited
Collection’ or ‘per una’. We also
filled gaps with new offers such
as our range of bridal and
occasionwear with everything
from wedding dresses to morning
suits, launched in March 2007.

We have supported the Breakthrough
Breast Cancer Campaign since 2001
and we are now its largest corporate
partner. We have raised over £6m

in total, including £1.5m in 2006/07,
and helped to educate and inform
customers. In March, we supported
the Prostate Cancer Charity, 1o raise
£90,000 funds and awareness for

a disease which kills one man every
hour in the UK.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Later this year, we will introduce a new
‘green home' department selling
products - like energy efficient
lightbulbs, hand-charged dynamo
torches and household composters -

to help people live greener lives as part
of our commitments under Plan A. As
we add to this exciting range, we'll
look to sell bigger items through the
website.
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OroOaUCt

INNOVATION

Innovation in food is what sets
M&S apart from our competition
as we continue to develop new
products and new methods of
praduction.

We inlroduced new, tastier fish
and meat products from unique
breeds that we developed with
our suppliers, such as our
‘Lochmuir Salmon’.

Developed using similar

principles to our ‘Oakham
Chicken’, the salmon are kept in
large saltwater pens with lower
stock levels than recommended
industry standards.

The farms have been selected
for their lower environmental
impact and our high standards
of fish care are recognised by the
RSPCA. Thanks to a specially
formulated feed, similar to the

diet of wild salmon, one portion
of the salmon provides the
Government's recommended
weekly allowance of Omega-3.

From September 2006 we
replaced all fresh farmed salmon
with ‘Lochrmuir Salmon'. By
autumn 2007, al! our chilled
salmon products will be made
with ‘Lochmuir Salmon’.

As part of our additive reduction
programme we were the first
majar retailer to remove
hydrogenated fats, which have
been associated with the risk of
higher cholesterol levels, heart
disease and diabetes, from all
the food we sell.

We also launched a new range
of 120 'Nutritionally Batanced’
ready meals to help customers

maintain a healthy, balanced diet.

Introduced in October 2006, the
range already represents 25%
of our total ready meal offering.
Developed in response to
growing customer awareness
about health, the range took

18 months to develop and
includes dishes inspired by
cuisines from around the world.

All of the new dishes are based
on Government guidelines for
balanced calorie, fat, salt and
sugar content and, like all M&S
ready meals, the range is free
from artificial colours, flavours
and hydrogenated fats. All the
products in the range are total
meal solutions, which means cur
customers don't need to add any
accompaniments which would
impact on the nutritional content
of the whole meal.
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SOURCING AND SUPPLY CHAIN

We have always worked
closely with suppliers to
produce great food
responsibly and sustainably.
Because our food is 100%
own brand. we can do this
with real authority,

We had already improved
animal welfare standards
with breeds like *Oakham
Chicken' and ‘Muir Den
Pork’ which are less
intensively farmed. As part
of our Plan A commitments
we will convert our fresh,
whole turkey, goose and
duck to free range within
the next 12 months. We
have also committed to
convert our fresh pork to
free range as well. We are
also working with the
Marine Stewardship
Council and other
organisations to achieve
independent accreditation
for the fisheries we
source from.

We want to be a fair
partner to all our suppliers

and in February 2007, we
increased the price we pay
for milk under our *Milk
Pledge’ scheme, which
guarantees farmers a

fixed price for their milk,
giving them greater
security, In 2007/08. we
will be consulting with
farmers on ways to extend
this scheme into other
product areas.

Under Plan A we will
reduce the proportion of
food we air freight.
Additionally, we have
started to introduce an
aeroplane symbol onto
packs of products that
we do air freight.

To help our suppliers to
make changes in their
own businesses, we are
introducing a web-based
Supplier Exchange.
Together we aim to share
best practice, stimulate
innovation and help
suppliers secure funds for
invesiment.
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We continue to provide customers with delicious, high
quality, innovative food sourced both responstbly and
sustainably

it 1s a credit to our food team and suppliers that we've
produced our best ever period of sustained growth in recent
history In 2006/07, total food sales grew at twice the market
rate at @ 7% to £3 97bn Sales from existing stores grew by
4 2% on a hke-for-lke basis and we reached more customers
through new stores and formats, particularly Simply Food
stores Total market share grew to 4 3%, its highest ever level

Although competition 1s fierce and focd trends are changing
faster than ever, we are confident we can continue to
make gains

New trends in eating

Around seven million pecple buy food from M&S each week
Given our relatively small share of the UK market, we are already
reaching a wide audience, attracted by our outstanding quality
offer, convenient locations and mouth-watenng advertising

People shop with us for a wide range of reasons For some
customers, M&S simply stands for high qualty food from
trusted sources Some just love food and like the way we
Iinterpret new eating trends n our prepared meals Others want
high quaiity tracitional ingredients to make therr own dishes For
many people, M&S 1s a place to come at special times of the
year and for indulgent treats, and for others M&S stands for
great food on the go For all of these customers, different food
trends are tmportant and we must stay a step ahead of them,
using great Innovation to meet their changing preferences

The trend in healthy eating shows no signs of easing Demand
for fresh, natural foed as wel as the heatthy prepared meals, at
which we excel, Is nsing fast But indulgent products are also
in high demand such as our ‘Gastropub’ range and special
desserts, like the recently advertised lemon soufflé, which has
been very successful

Provenance 1s important Increasingly, customers want to know
precisely where their food comes from - night down to indvidual
farms and growers Customers want assurance that ther focd
has been sourced ethically ~ with proper care taken over
nutntion, far trading, the environment and amimal welfare And
they want 1t to be labelled clearly and packaged responsibly

Fresh, natural and healthy

Healthy eating 1s a pnonty for us and our customers Facilitated
by our 100% own-brand offer, our work to remove unnecessary
ingredients from our products 1s industry leading In 2006, M&S
became the only major retailler to have removed hydrogenated
fats from all our food and we remain ahead of the industry in
reducing salt

We are also continuing to meet the growing demand for fresh
food which has had the minimum of processing Our 'Marks &
Spencer Cook!' range, our ready meals and all of our ‘Eat Well’
children’s prepared meals are now free of artfictal colours,
flavounings, sweeteners and have no added preservatives All of
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WASTE

We are trialling ‘Closed Loop
Recycling’ in five of our Café Revive
coffee shops in London. Teams sort
used café product packaging into
recyclable and non-recyclable
materials in store. The recyclable
material is collected and turned back
into raw materials for use in more
packaging.

HEALTH

As part of our additive reduction
programme, none of our products
contain hydrogenated fats. All of our
"Nutritionally Balanced' ready meals are
based on Government guidelines for
calorie, fat, salt and sugar content
and, like our ‘Marks & Spencer Cook!’
products and ‘Eat Well’ children's
prepared meals, they are free from
artificial colours, flavourings,
sweeteners and preservatives.

our 'Nutriionally Balanced' meals are based on Government
guidelines for calone, fat, salt and sugar content

We have also adepied what we think 1s a leading position in
food labeling Starting with selected ranges we are combining
both the Government's traffic bght system and Guideline Daty
Amount (GDA) percentages to help our customers make healthy
choices about the amount of fat, sugar and sait they eat This will
be extended to all relevant ranges by end of the 2007/08
financial year

Our ‘Eat Well’ sunflower logo identifies food which 1s erther
naturally healthy or nutritionaily balanced, as endorsed by the
British Nutrition Foundation Some 1,300 foed products (as of
January 2007), or around 30% of our food sales, come under
the ‘Eat Well' banner Our target, under Plan A, 1s to make that
50% n five years

Our organic food offer now stretches to 350 lines Under Plan A,
we aim to tnple our sales of orgaric food within five years
Prepared meals made wath organic ingredients have become
more poputar and, in February, we launched Organic 'Food to
Go', with over 20 products from sandwiches to smoothies

Indulgence and celebrations

While healthy eating is ncreasingly impaortant to customers,
we have to remember that many people come to M&S for
atreat Some of the products we are most famous for are
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FAIR PARTNER

The M&S Milk Pledge, which we
launched with our dairy farmers
in 2003, agrees prices for six
month periods and pays one
of the best rates in the industry.

It also supports our regional
sourcing work, with milk
sold in the region in which
it is produced.

seaing superb growth Last year we enjoyed 12% of the UK
champagne market, 22% of the pre-packed shellfish market,
and 10% of the boxed chocolate market

Cur indulgent food remains distinctive and is often unique

At Easter, for instance, all our children’s chocolate was organic
and nut-free We are now working towards making sure all our
children’s cakes are made using only naturally-occurring colours
and flavours Increasingly, these products are helping us stand
out at key times Iike Chnstmas and Easter

Authenticity and provenance

Our customers want exciting new dishes, but they are also
increasingly interested in real food, simply prepared, from
known SOUrces

M&S has always been known for the provenance of its food
and the ‘Speciality’ range, launched in Apnl 2006, taps into
this demand Carefully selected foods, many from smaller
specialist producers in the UK and overseas, are what this
range 1s all about

Already over 300 products strong and accounting for a
significant proportion of food sales, the range ncludes
Bracknock lamb from Wales, Scottish langoustines from
fisherman Sandy West and Giullano Baroni's exclusive 24-
month matured parmigiano reggiano We will increase this
range 1o 400 products next year
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FAIR PARTNER

We now have over 70 ‘Fairtrade’
cenrtified food products on our
shelves. During 2006/07, we
launched 'Fairtrade’ wine;
expanded our range of fresh
‘Fairtrade’ produce to include
whole and prepared pineapples
as well as grapes; and in February
we converted all of our conserves
and jams to ‘Fairtrade’. And we are
still the only major retailer to sell
only ‘Fairtrade’ tea and coffee.

SUSTAINABLE RAW MATERIALS

In February 2007, we launched our first
organic fruit and vegetable box.
Available in two sizes and presented in
a 100% recycled cardboard box, each
comes with information on the origin of
the products, shelf life and details on
the environmental benefits of organic
produce. The boxes also allow us to
offer a wider range of produce to
customers in our smaller stores.

AWARDS

In 2006, we won a number of awards
for our excellence in food. We are
particularly proud of the awards we
have won for our fish. Greenpeace,
the Marine Conservation Society, the
Seafood Choices Alliance and Fish
Farmer Magazine have all recognised
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our commitment to sustainable

fish sourcing.

New stores and food hospitality

We see scope for growth in our food business by opening food
halls In new man chain stores and new Simply Food stores,
which you can read abcut on page 23 But expanding space

1 not the only way to grow The eating-out market is worth
around £28 4bn (source TNS Cutlet tracker) — we think we ¢can
take a bigger share of thus market We are concentrating on five
different formats

Café Revive, with 217 in-store cafés and around 40 more
planned this year, is the third largest UK chain of coffee shops
In 2007/08, we will Introduce a stronger food offer, including
more choice for children, and more bakery and hot food ‘Hot
Food To Go' counters have been successiully tnalled in 15
stores and will go to a further 21 stores this year, leading to an
eventual roll-out further down the chain

Cur four ‘Deli Bars’ provide a sophisticated place to relax over
freshly prepared dishes with a glass of wine or fruit juice
Another four will open this year 'M&S Restaurant’ in Newcastle
1s our first in-store restaurant, with 130 covers, table service
and classic M&S dishes made to order It's one of the best
examples of how we are reaching new customers and four
more are planned this year

'M&S Kitchen’, currently a one-store pilot attached to our
Canterbury store, has a strong hot and cold food and alcohohic

beverage offer to eat-in or take-away It targets customers who
want to enjoy lunch, brunch or supper n a more sophisticated
setting

Trust

Trust 1s one of the cornerstones of our business and our
customers expect us to take the lead on ethical trading and the
environment Through Plan A we will continue to improve our
already high standards

One of the big 1ssues we are tackling 1s packaging We currently
use around 79,000 tonnes of food packaging annually Of this,
about 25,000 tonnes 1s glass, mainly wine bottles, for which
recycling schemes already exist We are committed to reducing
non-glass packaging by 25% by 2012 - this applies to all our
packaging, not just food

To reach this target we will unpack some less fragile produce,
remove unnecessary layers, replace cardboard sleeves

with labels and make packaging lighter We will also make
packaging from sustainable or recycled sources and clearly
label 1t recyclable or compostable We have already labelled
some 12% of our food products with this information

As we grow our food business we expect trust to be
increasingly mportant to our customers Independent research
shows we are one of the UK's most trusted retallers, but to
mantain this position we must continue to tackle the big i1ssues
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OUR CUSTOMERS

QOur core customers continue to be
those aged 45 plus. In tact, some
75% of turnover comes from this
group. However, we continue 1o
appeal to a broad church of
customers and are growing
customer numbers and sales
across every age group. Listening
to all these customers is crucial
to ensure we get our offer right.

During the year, we conducted
around 200 customer focus
groups on some 40 topics.
These sessions cover everything
from what our customers think
of the quality and value of our
clothing to our new website

and Plan A. As a result of these
sessions some products might
not make it onto the shop floor
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Customers' views about our
products have improved, However,
those aged between 45 and 54
told us lhat they wanted more
evidence that we will continue

to make our products better,
increase choice and continue

to be competitive on price.

Attitudes were most favourable
among our core customers

but we saw gains across all
age groups.

Scores on the style of our
clothes went up 16% and 9%
more customers said they

were finding products that
appealed to them. But the
feedback also highlighted that
there is much more to do, such
as improving the consistency of

We have more Simply Food
stores in more convenient
locations and this is helping
us to attract new and younger
customers. The drive for fresh,
healthy food cooked from
scratch at home or partially
prepared also means that
customers are buying from us
more regularly, across different
stores and in more than one
location.

As well as shopping more
frequentty across difierent
store formats, customers are
increasingly looking for the
convenience and flexibility
offered by other channels such
as online. In March, we re-
launched our website to better

while others will be changed or

sizing and fit.

bought in greater number.

OUR PEOPLE

meet this growing demand.

We've made important changes in people management in the last two years. In 2005/06, we
provided staff with more opportunities to progress within the Career Path structure introducing
additional responsibility steps coupled with more competitive pay rates. We continue to offer
among the top rates of pay in retail,

In 2006/07, we extended the Career
Path approach to store management,
As well as defining Management Career
Paths we carried out o skills audit
across all our store management teams.
This allows employees to easily map
their own competencies against those
required for development. We have
also developed more tailored training
programmes to help management
enhance their skills.

In 2007/08, we will complete the career
development structure, with improved
training for our 4,000 section managers.

In head office, following the successtul
introduction of our general merchandise
Buying Academy in 2005, we launched
a Culinary Academy for our Food
Group, designed to improve individuals'
sensory, ingredient and culinary
knowledge. The first phase covering all
categories was completed during the
year and phase two which will cover

future food trends started in May 2007.
We have built elements of the training
into our induction programme for

new starters.

Our graduate scheme is one of the
most popular in the sector. Last year
we received over 6,500 applications for
135 positions. Most graduates spend
an intensive year working in a number
of stores across food, general
merchandise, human resources and
store operations. In April 2007, we won
three awards for our programme and
moved up to number 17 in The Times
Top 100 Graduate Employers list.

Some 3,500 people, both in stores
and head office, act as elected
representatives on our Business
Involvement Groups (BIGs). They play
a crucial role in maintaining an open
dialogue between senior management
and their colleagues. The BIG is

consulted on all important changes
in the business.

One important issue we consulted with
them on during the year was the Final
Salary Pension Scheme. We needed

to put the Scheme on a more secure
footing and to do this we had to make
changes. The Company agreed to
reduce the deficit by £500m using an
M&S property-backed structure and
we asked members to consider three
options about how their pension builds
up in the future. As a result of the
consultation we have made changes
to the choices we are offering our
members, one of which involves making
contributions. The changes will come
into eftect in October 2007

For the second year running we have
also completed our *Your M&S, your
say’ survey which helps us to
understand our employees concerns
and priorities better.
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. 200a0s
UK 613

Head office 3.505
Other 2.110

Total 66.747 68.304 75,871
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Our customers expect consistently great service, no matter
when or where they visit us We were clear when we
developed our plan to return M&S to growth that improving
service should be one of our three top pnonties, alongside
improving products and modermsing stores While there’s
more we need to do here, | believe we have made progress

This has been driven in large part by our service training
programme, which involved over 60,000 store staff and was
completed In June 2006 This ‘Our Service Style’ traning is
now incorporated into aft store induction programmes with our
8,000 specually trained coaches taking on the responsibiity for
continugus service traning

Mystery shopping

We wanted to make sure this traning was translating nto
mprovements in-store In May, we introduced a mystery shopping
programme to measure the quality of our customer service

Stores are visited by mystery shoppers once a month, with our
biggest stores checked twice a month, n total around 6,500
visits a year Each i1s scored on a range of measures chosen by
custamers, from product knowledge to tidiness and respect

Qur overall scores showed steady improvement during the
year, nsing from 70% in May 2006 to a progressive average
of 79% for 2006/07 This I1s a good result not least because
we recruted 19,000 extra staff at Chnstmas and faced a big
challenge in bringing them up to speed at a very busy time
Howaever, some stores are stil not performing as they should
and we have work to do to make sure Improvements continue

In adgdition, the semior management team, myself included, wisit
stores frequently We spend a lot of time talking directly to our
customers and employees Our customer services team talks ta
12,000 customers a week This feedback is invaluable We also
conduct regular customer focus groups, which you can read
about on the page opposite

We knaw we are not perfect and need to make further
improvements in order to help faciitate this in 2007/08 we will
Ink the bonus payments of our store teams to therr mystery
shop scores We've set our sights high where service Is
concerned We are looking for excellence - getting by won't do

Productivity

As more and more people come Into our stores, it IS more
important than ever that our customer service 1s effectively
managed Getting the nght number of people with the nght
skills on the sales floor at the nght tms 1s the key It sounds
simple, but in the past we have found it difficult with staff often
distracted by store processes and bureaucracy

So, on top of continued service training we have worked hard
to improve efficiency and to ensure that we maxmise the
number of customer-facing staff We have also worked to
define and clanfy store standards

Following this action, we saw productivity, the number of
indvidual items sold per full-ome member of staff in clothing
and home, increase by 12 2% durning the year
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MODERNISATION PROGRAMME

Our store modernisation
pragramme is well under way.
Around 40% of our portfolio is
now in the new format and we
are currently on site in over
60 stores.

The programme often involves
radical changes, going beyond
changes to fixtures and fittings.
Alongside major construction work,
new flooring and refrigeration, we
are also making changes to how
we lay out our stores and guide
customers through departiments.
We are also stanling to look at new
ways of allocating which products
go into which stores, and how we
display them.

Managing a programme of this
scale, while keeping the stores
open, is very challenging. One of

our priorities is keeping disruption
to a minimum both tor our
customers and for the business.
We have increased the amount
of night-time working we do and
we have improved the way we
separate the building works from
the store during cpening hours.

{t is important that our stores
are in the best state for the
Christmas trading period and
we will continue to deliver the
bulk of our programme before
the 2007 October half-term.
However, where same of our
larger stores are undergoing
major redevelopment work this
will not always be possible.

We are also meeting Plan A
objectives in our stores and
offices, particularly on sourcing

renewable energy and sustainable
materials and dealing with waste.

By April 2007, we had secured
175 GWh of renewable energy to
power all our stores in Scotland,
all our Simply Food stores in
England and Wales and our
London head office, saving
65,000 tonnes of CO,.

This year, the first of a new breed
of ‘green’ stores will open.
Bournemouth will use 25% less
energy and emit 50% less CO,
every year or the equivalent of
the emissions of 244 return
flights from London to New York.
Two other ‘green’ stores are in the
pipeline at Pollok and Galashiels.
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The UK retail property market has undergone radical
change tn recent years, with many of our competitors
moving aggressively into new space In new areas We have
added more than 200 stores since 2002, but we need to
make sure we are in the nght place in the nght space In
particular, we missed the move to develop out-of-town
stores and to open on Retan Parks

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

In November, we announced a far-reaching property
strategy that will see us increase our current space of around
13 2 milton sq ft by 15-20% in the next five years We have
five pnonties here

* Enhancing our major city centre stores, mainly through
expansion and majer redevelopment,

» Finding more out-of-town stores of around 100,000 sq ft
and expanding our space where we already trade through
mezzanines and extensions,

OUR STORE PORTFOLIO * Opening more stares of between 40,000 and 60,000 sq ft
SIORE TVPE Namber of sloms on Retall Parks,
High Sirest slores 221 « Examining our porticho of high street stores to make sure

they are the nght size and in the nght place There could be
some closures, but mostly we will relocate to better sites
that surt our customers, and

Simply 61
RRetail ar 20
Qutlet stores 30
M&S Kichen 1 » Doubling the number of Simply Food stores to more than
Total 400, including franchise stores at stations, arports and
- motorway services We will also extend our partnership with
BP, adding Simply Food stores at up to 200 BP Connect
SIMPLY FOOD sites within five years
We opened more Simply Food stores
in 2006/07 than in any other vyear,

The way our stores look has been another big 1ssue for us to
address and we now have a programme to modernise virtually
all of our stores by the end of 2008/09

At the year end we had sized units of 3,000 1o

in the year under review, we spent £479m moderrising and

205 stores including

61 run by our franchise
partners, SSP and Moo,
at airports, stations and
motorway services and
BP in their BP Connect
forecourts. We opened 63
new stores during the year
and closed two. Our trial
with BP has been
successiul and we will
open around 60 stores
during 2007/08, adding to
the 11 trial stores.

The Simply Food opening
programme, together with
some new main chain
stores and franchise stores,
has increased our total
food space by around
30% in the last six years.

Initially our Simply Food
expansion programme was
focused on convenience-

5,000 sq ft but increasingly
we are targeting bigger
sites of 6,000 to 12,000 sq
ft to make the most of our
food offer.

In March 2006, we bought
28 fceland stores, which
we converted into Simply
Food stores and reopened
in summer 2006. We also
bought an additional 12
stores from Somerfield,
six of which, including
Westhill in Aberdeen and
Biackheath in London
re-opened during the
year. The remaining six
will open during summer
2007. We want more
stores in more convenient
locations and intend to
open 20-25% more food
space in the next five
years.

redleveloping our stores as well as some £120m on new space

In total, capital expenditure for the year was £792m

This is an increase of around £250m on the guidance we gave

you last year and 1s because we have brought forward a
number of modernisation projects onginally scheduled to start

1n 2007/08 into the 2006/07 financial year By Christmas 2006
we had over 220 stores in the new format, including almost ali

of our Simply Food stores By Christmas 2007 we will have

completed around another 130, equating to approximately 70%
of our total space You can read more about our store remodel

programmg in the box on the opposite page

With both our store modermisation programme and our property
strategy, we are testing out 1deas carefully, and then roliing out

successiul formats at pace

Mowving with speed and consistency i1s essential The market 1s
and wilt remain highly competitive, good spacs 1s at a premium
and getting planning permisston can be slow We are constantly

locking for appropnate sites, so we can reach a wider
customer-base in more easlly accessible, convenient locations
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Marks & Spencer is a well-recognised and increasingly
popular brand around the world We see scope 10 open
many more stores in selected markets

In & busy year we opened 36 new stores, most of which were
in temitones where we already have a presence We also opened
stores in new temntones including Switzerland, Latvia, Slovakia
and Bulgana as well as our biggest overseas franchise store

in Cubai

We continue to actively manage the franchise operation and
closed a number of poorly performing stores, often moving to
larger, more profitable sites

At the end of March 2007, we had 219 franchise stores in 34
terntories and had grown our total space by over 315,000 sq ft
to neariy 1 § milion sq ft

In the year ahead, our franchise operation waill grow at a faser
pace, with around 40 more stores opening across Russia,
Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Asia We have already
opened six new stores since Apnil, including our first store in
Lithyania In May, we also opened our first store n Tawan,
which 15 being run as a joint venture

We continue to own eight stores in Hong Kong ~ a mature
but, for us, successful market We also see 3 lot of potential
in the Republic of Ireland and by the end of the year we
owned 13 stores In May 2007, we opened a store in

Bahrain
Bermuda
Bulgana
Croatia
Cyprus

Czech Republic

Gibraitar
Gran Canarla
Greece

internaticnal Retail

2006:07
610.6
875

2001105
455.8
Operating profit {£1n) B0,

200506
522.7
85.7

Revenue (Cm)

Nurnber of stores a: year end
- Ownied 18 19 21
- Franchises 101 108 219

Seling space at year ot (k sq ft)
- Owruxi 586 845 632

- Friumclhises 1,317 1,433 1,762
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Letterkenny and we will open another store In Tallaght later

in the year By reinforcing our position n key cities, particularly
Cublin and Cork, and by moving into new areas, we will grow
the business here signficantly in the next three years

Dunng the year, our international business recorded a 16 8%
increase in sales to £610 6m (last year £522 7m) and a 33 2%
increase i operating profit to £87 5m (last year £65 7m)

Operating profits from our franchises grew by 40 8% to

£42 im, with sales up 21 5% Our two wholly-owned
businesses in Hong Kong and the Republic of Ireland recorded
a 14 0% increase i sales and a 26 8% increase (N operating
profit, to £45 4m

These are good results We believe the time 1s nght to pick up
the pace of growth overseas Our strategy IS to focus on
markets where there's a strong demand for our products

from a growing middle class

Russia 15 a good example of this We opened our first store
in l[ate 2005 and now have nine stores N Moscow and
St Petersburg, with four new openings planned dunng 2007/08

Where possible, we work with existing franchisees with local
knowledge and will often go into a new terntory with a trusted
company we've worked with elsewhere Cur partner in Turkey,
for example, took us into Russia and we opened another store
with them in the Ukraine in May 2007

1 Guernsey 3 Malta 3 Singapore 7
1 Hong Kong 8 Oman 1 Slovakia 1
1 Hungary 8 Philippnes 13 Slovenia 1
3 India 11 Poland 4 South Korea 17
9 Indonesia 13  Qatar 1 Switzerland 1
8 Jersey 3 Ropublic of lreland 13 Tenenfe 1
1 Kuwait 1 Romama 4 Thailand "
4 Latvia 1 Russia 9 Turkey 27
35 Malaysia 2 Saudi Arabia 8 UVAE 5

Nternmationa
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The explosion of internet shopping provides another big
opportunity for us

Our customers already Ike shopping with us on the net In
2006/07, online sales grew by more than 60%, well ahead
of the market, albert from a fairty low base, reaching over
£100m for the first ime This was dniven by over 55 milion
wisits (last year 30 milon)

if you consider that we have an 11 1% share of UK clothing
sales, but just 4 2% of oniine clothing sales, it's clear that
there’s a lot more we can go for

We bave set a target 10 increase online sales to £500m In five
years To reflect the size of the opportunity, e-commerce 1s now
a separate business unit reporting to me

In March 2007, we launched our new website, developed with
Amazon, which has the widest selections of online clothing in
the UK — over 15,000 items - as well as 10,000 homeware and
technology products, flowers, wines and exclusive online
ranges, Including jewellery

As well as looking fresh and modern, the website includes a
range of new features, including a sophisticated, fast-search
faciity which lets you search by size, colour, style and pnce,
or choose from over 50 departments
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The photography 1s sharper, you can look at the item in al
avallable colours, and a zoom function means you can home
in on stitching and fabric detad

The site also offers tips and recommendations tailored to
customers’ shopping preferences

We are also Improving service levels, with standard delivery
ttmes shortened from seven days (o three, In addition to our
free standard detivery on all orders over £30 We also offer next
day and nomunated day deliveries for a small premium

Later in the year, web, phone and in-store ordenng will be
linked together for the first tima, provding more delivery
choices, something customers have said 1s important to them,
including collecting online orders from a store of your choice

In ine with Plan A, we are playing our part in making our
operations more sustainable, with over 90% of our online delvery
packaging now made from recycled, recyclable materials

| believe we are now set up to offer one of the best e-commerce
stes in the UK for clothing, homeware, gifts and selected food
products with potential for further development

rH00OM

We intend to grow our anline sales
from just over £100m in 2006/07 to
£500m within five years.

THE ONLINE OPPORTUNITY

Online shopping is growing at a rapid
rate in the UK. This is supported by
the spread of broadband technology.
Industry forecasts for the UK online
clothing and footwear market predict
an increase in sales this year of 42%
to £3.5hn (source IMRG).
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L ooking ahead

| sard when | rgjoined the business in 2004 that M&S was a
great business with significant strengths, but ons that needed
radical change to become world-class agan

Three years on, this review of our operations in 2006/07 ams to
give you an insight nto the scale of the changes we have made
and a sense of the ambittons we have for the business in the
years to come

The year ahead will, as | said at the beginning of this review, be
critical in creating a sustainable future for the Company

We beleve that we can carve out a unique position for M&S
through cur commitmeni to a simple, ngorous plan and to our
core values of qualty, value, service, nnovation and trust

This, coupled with our scale, provides us with an authontative
and well-differentiated position In the markets 1n which we trade
and sets us up well to continue to earn people’s trust and to
delver consistent, profitable growth

The management changas that we have made over the past 12
months will be crucial to our ability to deliver on this simple plan

The immediate economic outtook 1s undoubtedly more difficult
We expect costs to nse ahead of overafl growth in the market-
place, which means that we must find new ways to Increase
our sales

In the coming 12 months, we will remain relentlessly focused on
our plan of offering great products, in great stores with great
customer service

We will also pursue new opportunities through new space at
home and abroad, new product and service offers, and our re-
launched website

We will continue to improve our product ofter, both within our
existing ranges and by filing gaps with new products we
haven'’t offered before

QOur major brands, from 'Autograph’ and 'per una’ to ‘Limited
Collection’ and ‘Blue Harbour', will be key in segmenting this
offer and making it easy to shop

Great prices and excellent quality, combining to provide
outstanding vaftue for our customers, will remain key to our
competitiveness In the year ahead

Our property strategy will increase our reach sigrificantly, as will
our drect business, starting with our new website This, coupled
with our store moderrisation programme, will help to ensure we
have the nght offer, in the nght space, in the nght place
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However, wa won't see the full benefit of this work unless we
offer first-class service We know we need to make further
improvements here, despite the great stndes we have

made already

We also still have a great deal of work to do to modermise our
infrastructure so that everything from our warehouses to the
technology behind our tills and financial systems s fit for the
growth we are aming to achteve In the years ahead

Through all of this, we will keep listening to our customers
Ther views and demands have moulded M&S in recent years
and | want this to continue

Tris 1s crucial In areas such as customer service and product,
but alsc just as mportant in terms of how we are dealing with
social, ethical and ervironmental challenges through Plan A

Our customers want us to succeed, but they want proof that
success does not come at a cost to society or the environment

The progress we have made has only been achieved through
team effort which, for us, means all our 75,000 staff | am
grateful for ther commitment and support and delighted that
we were able to pay everyone in the Company a bonus, at a
total cost of £91m, for the second year running

In future we will be Iinking all bonus payments more closely to
performance and improving service standards We are geared
up to reward people well for great work

Our suppliers play a crucial role in ensunng that we offer great
value, nnovative products Ther continued dedication to M&S
and our customers s highly valued

Lastly, I'd ke to thank sharehelders for ther continuing support,
which has been wital in allowing us to take a long-term view and
prepare the Company for future growth

Stuart Rose
Chief Executive
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Your Board

Lord Burns Chairman a {Charman)
Appainted as Daputy Chairman in October
2005 and as Chaman in July 2006 Age 63
He s Chasrman of Abbey National pic and Glas
Cymru Lid (Welsh Water) and a non-executve
drrector of Banco Santander Central Hispano
SA and Pearson Group plc Ha s a formar
non-axecutve dwector of Legal & General Group
Plc and The British Land Company PLC and
a former Chairman of the National Lottery
Commission He was Permanant Secretary

to HM Treasury from 1991 to 1998 and

Chie! Economic Advisor from 1880 to 1991
He was apponted a Life Peer in 1398

Stuart Rose Chief Executive a
Apponted In May 2004 Age 58 Stuartis a
non-executve director of Land Secunties pic
and Charman of the Briish Fashion Councl He
began his carser in retall at Marks & Spencar In
1972 befors going on to the Burton Group n
1889, becoming Cheef Executive of the
Mulbiples Division in 1994 He laft the Group
following the demerger in 1997 Stuart was
Chief Executive of Argos plc n 1998 and later
became Chief Executive of Booker plc Before
re-joining Marks & Spencer as Chief Executive
in 2004, he was Chigf Executive of Arcadia
Group plc from 2000 until 2002

lan Dyson Group Finance Director
Appointed N June 2005 Age 44 fan was
formerty Finance Director of The Rank Group
plc Pnor to this he was Group Financial
Controller of Hiton Group plc He joined Hilton
trom Le Menchen, a dwision of Forte pic, where
he had been Finance Oirector His earty career
was spent with Arthur Andersen, whera ha
qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1986
ang was promated to a Partner of the firm

n 1894 lan was a non-sxecutive director of
Misys pic until September 2005

Steven Sharp Executive Director,
Marketing

Appointed in November 2005 having joined
the Company in May 2004 Ago 56 He started
his career with Bejam in 1978, progressing

to the Argyll Group and became Marketing
Diractor of Asda in 1987 He joned the Board
of Debenhams in 1989 He later became
Marketing Director of the Burton Group,
Booker plc and Arcadia Group plc Staven 1s

a Follow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing
and wisiting professor of Glasgow Caledonian
University

Sir David Michels

Senior Independent Director * e m a
Apponted in March 2006 Age 60 Dawvid

was appomtad Senor Independent Dwector in
September 2006 He s a non-executive director
of The Bntish Land Company plc, easyJet pic,
Strategic Hotels & Resorts and RAB Capitat
Plc He previously worked with Grand
Matropoltan, Hiton International and Stakis
before rgoining Hilton International n 1999 as
Chief Executive, becoming Chisf Executive of
Hiton Group ple from 2000 to 2006 He was
formerly & non executive director of Arcadia
Group Dawd was knighted in June 2006
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Independent

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committes
Nomination Committea

>PERESS

Jeremy Darroch

Non-Executive Director * 4 ® (Charman)
Appainted in February 2006 Age 44 Jeremy
was apponted Chairman of the Audit Committee
in September 2006 He is the Chief Financial
Officer &t Bnitish Sky Broadcastng Plc He was
previously Retall Finance Dwector at Dxons Group
plc, where he became Group Finance Director
in 2002 He spent 12 years at Procter & Gambie
in a vanety of roles Ha qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Daloitte Haskins and Sells

Martha Lane Fox

Non-Executive Director « e ma

To be apponted on 1 June 2007 Age 34
Martha is a non-executve director of Channel 4
Television and Trustee of the chanty Repneve
She 1s founder of a chain of pnvate room
xaracke clubs, Lucky Voics, and of her own
chanty foundation, Antigong Martha co-founded
lastminute com n 1998, taking the company
pubkc in March 2000, she remained on the
Board until the company was purchased by
Sabre Holdings n 2005 Martha is also a Patron
of CAMFED

Steven Holuday

Non-Executive Director xema
Appainted in July 2004 Age 50 Stevs was
appointed Group CEO of National Gnd pic at
the end of 2006, having at different tmes been
responsible for the UK Blectncity and Gas
busingsses Ha was formarly an exacutive
director of British Bornea Oil and Gas Previously,
he spent 19 years with the Exxon Group where
he held numenous senior positicns His
inteznational busingss expenencs ncludes the
US, China, Australa, Japan and Brazil

Jack Keenan

Non-Executive Director #em a4
Appointed in Septamber 2001 Age 70

Jack wil retire as a non executive dirsctor

at this year's AGM He 1s CEO of Grand Cru
Consulting Ltd and will retire as a non-executve
diractor of Tomkins pic following their AGM on
13 June 2007 Jack was previously Deputy
CEO of Guinness UDV a board member of
Diageo plc untit 2001 and senior non-exacutive
director of The Body Shop Intemational plc
Jack is Patron of Cambndge University s Centre
for internaticnal Busness and Management

Louise Patten

Non-Executive Director # o m (Chavman)
Appointed in February 2006 Age 53 Louise
was appointed Chawrman of the Remuneration
Committee n January 2007 She is non-
executve Charman of Bnxton pic, a non-
executve director of Bradiord & Bingley plc and
a senior adwviser to Ban & Co She was formerly
& non-executive drector of Hiton Group pic,
GUS plc, Somerfield plc and Harveys
Furnishings pic

Graham QOakley

Group Secretary and Head

of Corporate Governance

Appaointed 1IN August 1987 Age 50 Graham
1s Secretary of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees 1n 1985, he joned
Marks & Spencer's Legal Department He was
appomnted Head of Legal m 1930, Company
Secretary and Chief Legal Adviser in 1897 and
Heagd of the Corporate Govemance Group in
June 2002




28 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP FLC

Financial review
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Operating profit

Revenue
UK Retall Internattonal Retail UK Retall International Retall

2007 £7,977 5m £610 6m :'29_(2:/ £956 5m £87 5m
2006 £7.2750m £5227m 2006 £790 1m £65 7m

Total +9.7% +16.8% Total +21.1% +33.2%

Like-for-like +6.1% +8.3% Operating profit

Operating profit before property disposals was £1,044 Om,

Revenue up 22 0%

Total revenues were up 10 1% with strong performances in both
the UK and international businesses

UK revenues were up 9 7% with like-for-like growth at 6 1%
despite much tougher comparatives in the second half of the
financial year and disruption to our stores as we continued the
store madernisaton programme  During the year, we added

2 7% of space {on a weighted average basis), 4 5% in foed and
1 8% n general merchandise

International revenues were up 16 8% with strong performances
in both owned and franchised stores, up 14 0% and 21 5%
respectively This was driven by strong like-for-like performance
and 23 new siore openings

Summary of results

in the UK, operating profit before property disposais was up

21 1% at £956 5m, reflecting strong revenue growth and further
gross margin gans UK gross margin was 43 4%, an ncrease
of 80 basis points on the previous year Although this was less
than we had indicated at the half year end, 1t reflects our
decision to keep inventory clean at the end of the fourth quarter
At the same tme we managed our operating costs hightly

General merchandise gross margin was up 120 basis points to
52 6% driven by better buying Food gross margin at 34 0%
was level on the year

UK operating costs, before bonus, were up 7 7% 1o £2,431 7m
(last year £2,257 4m} This reflected the ongomg investment in
the growth of the business through our staff, stores and
marketing Increasing underlying cost pressures in areas such
as energy, fuel, rent and rates have been well managed

2005 2006 2007

Group Summary £m £m £m
Continuing operations before property disposals and exceptional tems

Revenue 749085 77977 85881

Operating profit 649 1 8558 1,0440

Net finance costs o {93 0} (104 4) (78 8)
Adjusted profit before tax 556 1 751 4 965 2
Profit/{loss) on property cisposals 0 4) 57) 19
Exceptional tems {50 6) - {30 4)
Group profit before tax from continuing operations 5051 7457 9367
Revenue year on year {1 2%) +41% +10.1%
Operating profit year on year n/a  +318% +22.0%
Interest cover 6 2x 7 Ox 10 5x
Dividend per share 12 1p 14 0p 18.3p
Earnings per share from continuing cperations
Basic 17 6p 313p 39.1p
Adjusted 19 2p 314p 40.4p
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A breakdown of UK operating costs for the year is shown below
52 weeks ended

1 Apnl 2006 31 March 20077 Increase
MM %
Retall staffing 7410 8101 +93
Retal occupancy 682 1 7173 +52
Distnbution 3062 321.6 +50
Marketing and related 1138 144.7 +27 2
Support 414 3 4380 +57
Total before bonus 2,257 4 2,4317 +77
Bonus 730 810 4247
Total after bonus 2,330 4 25227 +83

The increase In retail staffing costs reflects the impact of the
changss made tc pay structures last year, as well as space
growth and investment in additional staffing in our stores to
improve service for our customers The increase in retail
occupancy costs reflects space growth and higher energy
costs Osstnbution costs increased at a rate well below volume
growth Further investment in marketing has contributed
towards our top line sales growth Support costs, which include
non-store refated overheads, were iImpacted by increased
pension contributions We will be paying a record bonus of
£91 Om {Jast year £73 Om), which includes a £26m reward for
our store staff and reflects the very strong performancs of the
business in 2006/07

The UK operating profit includes a contnbution of £19 5m

{last year £9 6m) from the Group’s continuing ecenomic interest
N M&S Money This strong growth came from additional
account holders and lower costs

International operating profit before property disposals was
£87 5m, up 33 2%, reflecting the strong sales performance of
the business Franchised operating profits grew by 40 8% to
£42 1m Owned store operating profits (reland and Hong
Kong}, increased by 26 8% to £45 4m
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Net finance costs

Net finance costs for the year, before exceptional items and
pens.on finance income, were down 18 3% at £89 6m reflecting
the reduction in average net debt The average interest rate for
the year was 5 9% (last year 5 8%) Fixed charge cover was

5 9x ('ast year 4 9x} Pension finance income, which reflects the
difference between the expected return on pension scheme
assets and the interest on scheme habilties, was £20 8m

The exceptiona! finance costs of £30 4m represent a one-off
make-whole premium ansing on the redemption of £317 2m
of secured bonds, together with the wnte-off of unamortised
transaction costs This redemption enabled us to release the
secured properties {or ther transfer nto a imited partnership
with the UK Pension Scheme (see Pensions on page 30)

Taxation

The tax charge reflects a pre-exceptional effective tax rate for
the year of 29 4% (last year 30 2%; This reflects the refund of
prior year tax

Earmings per share

Adjusted earmings per share from continuing operations, which
excludes the effect of property disposals and exceptional items,
has increased by 28 7% to 40 4p per share The weighted
average number of shares in 1ssue during the perod was

1,688 6m (last year 1,667 Om)

Diidend per share

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 12 Op per share
This will result In & total dwidend of 18 3p per share (last year
14 Op per share}, an increase of 30 7% This 1s in ine with the
dividend palicy announced in May 2006, to grow each half year
dividend In fine with adjusted EPS growth
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Capital expenditure

Investing in the business is a key part of our strategy Capital
expenditure for the year was £792 4m compared with £337 7m
last year

The increase in spend on the modernisation programme reflects
the mnvestment in our 2006 programme, with some 40% of our
space now under new format, as well as an earler start to the
2007 programme in order to complete the work by our peak
Chnstmas trading period  In addition, we commenced
development work on major city centre stores such as London
Pantheon, Edinburgh and Belfast, as well as extensicns to some
of our majer out of town stores such as London Colney,
Braehead and Cheshunt Capital expenditure on new stores
was up £71m, reflecting the Smply Food opening programme
and three new retail parks

Supply chain capital expendiure reflects invesiment made in
new distrbution centres in food and general merchandise
Technology capital expenditure reflects investment 1n information
technology with the implementation of new financial systems as
well as a major project 1o start replacing our tlls and point of
sale system

Cash flow and net debt

The Group generated a net cash inflow of £231 1m (last year
£550 5m), reflecting the strong cash generation of the business
Cash inflow from continuing operating actmvities increased by
£259 Om Working capital increased to £114 1m reflecting the
additional bonus prowision and a reduction in cash outflow on
leasehold prepayments Cash outflow on capital expenditure,
net of disposals, was £710 5m (ast year £264 3m) reflecting a
step up In the mogernisation programme and major store
developments in several of cur major city centre stores

The Group made a one-cff, property-backed contributior of
£500 1m to secure the future of the Group's defined benefit
pension scheme This 1s accrued for as a liability of £496 9m at
yvear end As a result, net debt at the end of the year increased
to £1,949 5m, compared with £1,729 3m last year

www marksandspencer com/annualreport2007

Penstions

A triennial valuation of the UK defined benefit scheme was
cammed out as at 31 March 2006 resulting my an actuanal deficit
of £704m

The Group has agreed a plan with the Pension Scheme Trustee
to address the deficit by transfernng properties with a current
market vaiue of £1 tbn into a partnership established by the
Group A Imited interest in this partnership was contnbuted to
the Pension Scheme on 13 March 2007 The Group retains
control over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute
alternative properties The properties held in the partnershp
have been ieased back to Marks and Spencer plc The Pension
Scheme is entitfed to a distribution from the profits of the
partnership of £50m per annum for 15 years The value of this
partnership interest on the date of contribution was £500m and
this 1s recognised as an asset by the Pension Scheme

The impact of this transaction on the Group’s balance sheet 15
a reduction in the pension defict of £500m and the recognition
of an amortising hability in respect of the obligations of the
partnership to the Pension Scheme At 31 March 2007 the
1AS 19 retirement benefit deficit was £283m (last year £795m)
and the amortising liability had a value of £497m (last year £nil)
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Group Directors’ report

Business review

The Companies Act 1985 requires the Company to set out in this report a farr review of the business of the Group dunng the
financial year ended 31 March 2007 including an analysis ¢f the position of the Group at the end of the financial year, and a
descnption of the principal nsks and uncertanties facing the Group (known as a 'Business review')

The informaton that fulfils the Business review requirements can be found in the following sections of the Annual report which are
incorporated into this report by reference

s Charman’s foreword on page 3
* Chief Executive's business review on pages 6-26
¢ Financial review on pages 28-30
* Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties on pages 40-41

*  Enwronmental, Sceial and Community mattsrs on pages 10-11 and Employees on pages 20-21
Also within the How we do business report available on our website at www marksandspencer conmvhowwedobusingssrepon 2007

Pages 31-34 incluswe (togsther with the sections of the Annual report incorporated by reference) consist of a Group directors’ report
that has been drawn up and presented in accordance with and in reliance upon applicable English company law and the liabilities of
the directors In connection with that report shall be subject to the mitations and restrictions provided by such law

Principal activities

Marks and Spencer Group plc 1s the holding company of the Marks & Spencer Group of companigs (the ‘Group”) We are one of
the UK's leading retailers of clothing, food and home products with over 15 8m people visiting our stores each week We employ
over 75,000 pecple and have around 520 UK stores including Simply Food franchise stores, as well as an expanding mternational
business

Profit and dividends
The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £659 9m (last year £623 1m) The directors have dectared dividends as
follows

Ordinary shares B £m
Paid interm dmdend of 6 3p per share {ast year 4 8p per share) 106 0
Proposed final dividend of 12 Op per share {last year 9 20 per shgie) 2040
Total ordinary dividend, 18.3p per share (last year 14 Op per share) 3100

The final ordinary dividend will be paid on 13 July 2007 to shareholders whose names are on the Register of Members at the close
of business on 1 Jure 2007

Changes in share capital
(i) 1ssue of new ordinary shares
During the penod, 17,336,086 ordinary shares in the Company were issued as follows

* 6,550 shares under the terms of the 1984 Executive Share Option Scheme at a pnce of 458p,

+ 328,631 shares under the terms of the 1997 Executive Share Option Schems at prices between 358p and 557p.

* 201,694 shares under the terms of the 2000 Executive Share Option Scheme at prices between 215p and 350p,

* 4,985,243 shares under the terms of the 2002 Executive Share Option Scheme at pnces between 270p and 353p, and

* 11,814,068 shares under the terms of the United Kingdom Employees’ Save As You Earn Share Optiors Scheme at prices
between 156p and 349p

(i} Purchase of ordinary shares

The Company Is authonsed by the sharehalders to purchase, in the market, the Company’s own shares, as permitied under the
Company’s Artcles of Association The Company engages In share buy-backs to create value for the shareholdars, when cash flow
permits and there Is not an mmediate alternative investment use for the funds Dunng the year, no shares were bought back under
this authonty This authonty 1s renewable annually and approval will be sought from shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in
2007 to renew the authonty for a further year it 1s the Company’s present intention to cancel any shares # buys back, rather than
hold them in treasury
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Major shareholders .

Until 19 January 2007 the Company was required to keep a register of substantial shareholders recarding notfiable interests
disclosed under sections 168 to 208 of the Companies Act 1885 As at 19 January 2007 the reqister of substantial sharehalders
showed the following interests in 3% or more of the Company’s shares

% of sharp

ordinary shares capial

Brandes Investment Partners, L P 132,568,293 781%
Fidelty intl, FMR Corp (and therr direct and indirect subsicianes) 83,373,170 494%
Legal & General Group plc 55,032,628 3 20%

On 20 January 2007 the Companies Act 1985 provisions in respect of substantal shareholders were repealed and the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the FSA {the 'DTR’) came into force

As at 10 May 2007, the Company had been notfied under DTRS of the following sigrificant holdings of voting nghts in ts shares

% of share
crdinary shargs capital nature of holdng
Brandes Investment Partners, | P (21 307) 111,895,173 657% Indirect Interest
Legal & General Group plc (23 2 07) 59,701,580 351% Direct Interest
Deutsche Bank AG {30 3 07) 44,868,790 2 64% Direct interest
Deutsche Bank AG (30 3 07) 6,429,000 038% Financial Instruments

(Under DTRS Ficelity Intl, FMR Corp {and ther drrect and indirect subsidianes} are no longer considered 1o have a significant holding
of voting nghts in the share capital of the Company)

Board of directors
The membership of the Board and biographical details of the directors are given on page 27

Lord Burns was appointed as Charrman at the conclusion of the 2006 AGM on 11 July 2006, when Paul Myners retired from the
Board Kevin LLomax retired from the Board as a non-executive director on 31 August 2006

Martha Lane Fox will jon the Board as a non-executive director on 1 June 2007

Jack Keenan will retrre from the Board following the 2007 AGM on 10 July 2007, when he will have comp'e:ed two three-year terms
as a non-executive director

Directors’ indemnities

The Company mantans directors’ and officers’ habilty insurance which gives appropnate cover for any legal action brought aganst
its directors The Company has also provided an indemnity for its directors and the Group Secretary, which is a gualifying third party
indemnity provision for the purposes of section 3098 of the Companies Act 1985

Directors’ interests

The beneficial and non-beneficial interests of the directors and connected persons in the shares of the Company are shown on page
47 Options granted under the Save As You Earn (SAYE) Share Option and Executive Share Option Schemes are shown on page
49 Further information regarding employee share option schemes 1s given in note 12 to the financial statements

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are obliged under company law to prepare financial statements for each financial year and to present them annually
to the Company's members in the Annual General Meeting

The financial statements of which the form and content 1s prescribed by the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting
standards, must give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group at the end of the financtal year, and
of the profit for that penod

The directors are also responsible for the adoption of suitable accounting policies and their consistent use in the financial
statements, supported where necassary by reasonable and prudent judgements

The directors ensure the mantenance and ntegnty of the Company's website Information publshed on the internet 1s accessible in
many countries with different legal requirements Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsdictions

The directors confirm that the above requirernents have been complied with in the financial statements

in addition, the drrectors are responsible for maintaining adequate accounting records and sufficient internal controls to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud or any other wregulanties, as descnbed mere fully in the Corporate
Governance statement on page 42
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Audit iInformation

The drrectors confirm that, so far as they are aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware and that each director has taken all the steps that they
ought o have taken as a director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit nformation and to estabiish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Employee involvement
We have mamntained our commitment tc employee involvement
throughout the business

Employees are kept well informed of the performance and
objectives of the Group through personal brefings. regular
meetings, electronic communications and Chief Executive
broadcasts at key points in the year to all head office employees
and store management These are supplemented by our
employese publications including, "Your M&S' magazine, and
DVD presentations More than 3,500 employees elected onto
Business Involvement Groups across every store and head
office location represent therr colleagues in two-way
communication and consultation with the Company They have
conlinued to play a key role In a wide variety of business
changes including proposals in January 2007 to put our final
salary pensicn scheme on a more secure footing for the future

The twelfth meeting of the European Council took place last
July This council provides an addit:ional forum for informing,
consuliing and involving employes representatives from the
countries in the European Community

Directors and senior management regutarly wisit stores and
discuss, with employees, matters of current interest and
concern to the business

Share schemes are a long-established part of our total reward
package, encouraging and supporting employee share
ownership In particular, over 21,000 employees currently
participate in the Company’s All Employee Sharesave Scheme
Full details of all schemes are given on pages 45-46

We maintain contact with retired staff through communications
from the Company and the Pension Trust Member-nominated
Trustees have been elected to the Pension Trust Board,

includ ng empioyees and pensioners We continue to produce
a regular Pensions Updale newsletter for members of our final
salary pension scheme and our M&S Retirement Plan

Equal opportunities

The Group 1s committed to an active Equal Opportunities Policy
from recrutment and selection, through training and
development, appraisal and promotion to retrement

it 1s our policy to promote an environment free from
discnmination, harassment and victimisation, where everyone
will recerve equal treatment regardless of gender, colour, ethnic
or national ongin, disability. age, mantal status, sexual onentation
or relgion Al decisions relating to employment practices will be
objective, free from bias and based solely upon work crtena
and individual ment

The Group Is responsive to the needs of its employees,
customers and the community at large and we are an
organisation that endeavours to use everyone's talents and
abilities to the full
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Employees with disabilities

It 1s our policy that people with disabilities should have full and
farr consideration for all vacancies Dunng the year, we
continued to use the Government's 'two ticks' disability symbol
to demonstrate our commitment to interviewing those people
with disabilities who fuffil the mimimum ¢ntena, and endeavounng
to retain employees in the workforce if they become disabled
during employment We will actively retrain and adjust their
environment where possible to allow them to maximise their
potental

We continue to work with external organisations to provide
workpiace opportunities through our iInnovative ‘Marks & Start’
scheme and by working closely with jobcentreplus

Creditor payment policy
For all trade creditors, it 1s the Group’s policy to

* agree the terms of payment at the start of business with that
supplier,

« ensure that suppliers are aware of the ierms of payment,
and

* pay n accordance with its contractual and other legal
obhgations

The main trading company, Marks and Spencer plc, has a palicy
concerning the payment of trade creditors as follows

= general merchandise I1s automatically pad for 11 working
days from the end of the week of delivery,

» food is pad for 13 working days from the end of the week of
delivery {pased on the timely receipt of an accurate invoice),
and

* distnbuton supphers are patd monthly, for costs incurred in
that month, based on estimates. and payments are adjusted
quarterly to reflect any vanations to estimate

Trade creditor days for Marks and Spencer plc for the year
ended 31 March 2007 were 14 7 days, or 9 8 working days (last
year 13 1 days, or 8 8 working days), based on the ratio of
company trade creditors at the end of the year to the amounts
invoiced durng the year by trade creditors

Market value of properties

The last formal valuation of the Group's properties was carried
out as at 30 September 2006 Taking into account movements
in the Group’s property portfolio since that date, the dwectors
are of the opinion that the market value of the Group's properties,
at 31 March 2007 exceeded therr net book value {ncluding
prepayments 1n respect of leasehold land) of the fixed asset
and leasehold properties by approxmately £1 1bn

Chantable donations

Dunng the year, the Group made chantable donations to
support the community of £13 9m (last year £9 3m) These
principally consisted of cash donations of £3 8m (last year

£8 4m) which includss the cost of our flagship community
programimg "Marks & Start’, Breakthrough Breast Cancer,
Prostate Cancer Awareness and other chantable donations,
£3 0m (ast year £1 3m) of employee time principally for the
‘Marks & Start” programme and local community projects,
and stock donations of £6 6m (last year £4 2m) to a vanety of
chanties including Shelter, Fareshare, Birth Defects Foundation
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as well as to the local community Following the collapse of the
Farepax Christmas savings scheme at the end of 2006, we
replaced the lost savings of around 420 employees in full

with M&S gift vouchers We also donated £250,000 to the
Farepak Response Fund set up to provide some compensation
for savers

Political donations

It 15 our policy not to make donations for political purpeses in
the UK, to donate to EU Political parties or incur EU Poltical
Expenditure Accordingly neither the Company nor its
subsidianes made any Falitical Donations or incurred Political
Expenditure in the financial year under review

Uncer the provisions of ihe Political Parties, Elections and

Referendums Act 2000, shareholder authonty 1s required for

Political Donations to be made or Poliical Expenditure to be

ncurred by the Company or any of s subsidianes in the EU

and disclese any such payments in the Annual report The i
legislation gives a wide definition of what constitutes Political

Donations and Political Expenditure including sponsorship, 1
subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees I
fulfiting public duties and support for bodies representing the

business community i policy review or reform The Company

has therefore obtained imited authonty from shareholders as

a precauttonary measure to allow the Company to continue

supporting the community and such organisations without

inadvertently breaching the legislation

At the 2006 AGM the Board obtained authonty to make Political
Donations or to incur Political Expenditure in the EU {which
would not erdinanly be regarded as pohfical donations} up to

an aggregate annual it of £100,000 for each of the six
principal emptoying companies Tnis authorty will expire in 2010

Going concern

After making enquires, the directors have a reascnable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
In operational exisience for the foreseeable future For this
reason, they have adopted the going corncern tasis in preparing
the financial statements

Auditors

Resolut:ons 1o reappoint PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors of the Company and to authonse the Audit Committee
to determine therr remuneration will be proposed at the 2007
AGM

Annual general meeting

The Notice of the AGM 10 be held on 10 July 2007 1s given,
{ogether with explanatory notes, In the booklet which
accompanies this report

By order of the Board

>
Graham Oaktey, Group Secretary C Q
London *

21 May 2007
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Corporate governance statement

The Board 1s commitied to achieving long term success for the
Company by bulding a sustainable business for the long term,
generating shareholder value through consistent, profitable
growth whilst making sure that our customers can always trust
us to do the nght thing This statement explains our governance
policies and practices and prowvides insight into how the Board
and management run the business for the benefit of shareholders
The governance rules which apply to all UK companies listed on
the London Stock Exchange are found in the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance which was updated by the Financial
Reporting Counc:l in June 2006 (tho 'Code’) A detailed account
of how we comply with the Code’s pnnciples can be found at
www marksandspencer com/investorrelations, together wath the
matters reserved to the Board and terms of reference of the
Audit, Rernuneration and Nomination Commuttees

The Board

Membership

Cn 1 Apnt 2007 the Board compnsed nine directors the
Chairman, Chief Executive, two executive directors and five
non-executive directors The five non-executive directors are

all considered by the Board to be independent of management
Collectively the Board 1s responsible for the success of

the Company A full st of the directors, with detalls of ther
biographies and committes membership, 1s given on page 27
On 24 January 2007 we announced that Jack Keenan, non-
executive director, will be retinng from the Board following the
AGM to be held on Tuesday 10 July 2007, when he will have
completed two three-year terms as a non-executive director

On 22 May 2007 we announced the appointment of

Martha Lane Fox as a non-executive director wath effect from

1 June 2007 On 25 Apnl 2007 we announced a number of
senior management changes {descnbed on page 10} to position
the Company for the next phase of its growth Following these
changes, the responsibiliies of the executive directors was
re-aligned Stuart Rose will continue to manage the trading
functions and will add International to his direct reports With the
store modernisation programme well under way, lan Dyson will
now be responsible for Store Design and Development and
Procurement, alongside his current responsibilttes for Finance,
Property and IT Steven Sharp remains responsible for Marketing
and the M&S Money relationship with HSBC and will also focus
on the next generation of store design

Chairman

Lord Burns was appomnted Charrman on 11 July 2008, having
joined the Board as Deputy Chairman on 1 October 2005 As
Chairman he leads the Board and Is responsible for ensunng its
proper functioning, the balance and mix of its membership,
subject to Board and shareholder approval, and for encouraging
all directors to play therr full part n debating matters to deliver
value to shareholders He ensures effective commurication with
shareholders and that Board members have a sound
understanding of the views of all nvestors The Charman also
leads the formal assessment of Board and individual director
performance

The Charman ensures that the directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information Directors are encouraged to update ther
skills, knowledge and famiianty with the Group through their
initial Induction, on-going participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting our people at store locations
and elsewhere Views of customers and shareholders are also
shared through Board presentations The Board 1s regularty
updated on governance and regulatory matters There 1s an
established procedure whereby the Board or any of its
committees may take independent professional advica when
approprate Any indvidual director, wishing o do so in the
furtherance of ther duties, may take independent professional
advice through the secretary at the Company's expense The
Company maintans hability insurance for tts directors and
officers in addition, the directors and secretary have been
granted qualfying third party ndemnities

Chief Executive

Stuart Rose as Chief Executive has delegated authonty from the
Board for all aspects of the management of the Group and t.s
businass, which ncludes developing the approprats business
strategies for Board approval and achieving tmely and effective
implementation He ensures that, within the strategies agreed by
the Board, appropnate objectives and policies are adopted for
each area of the business, that appropnate budgets are set and
that therr performance is effectively managed in keeping wath the
Group’'s values and business principles The pnncipal business
unit directors report diractly to the Chief Executive and give
regular presentabons tc the Board on strategies and
performance in their relevant areas of the business

Senior Independent Director

Sir David Michels succeeded Kevin Lomax as Senior
Independent Director on 1 September 2006 He provides a
communication channel between the Chairman and the non-
executive directors and ensures that the views of @ach non-
executive director are given due consideration He Is an
additional contact point for shareholders if they have reason for
concern that cannot be addressed through the norma’ channels
of Chairman, Chief Executive or Finance Director or for which
such contact 1s inappropnate He also reviews the Charrman’s
performance on behali of the Board

The Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors provide a varied range of skills and
expenence to the Group They bang an independent judgement
an ssues of strategy, performance, nsk and people through
their contnbution at Board and commitiee meetings The
Charman concludes that each non-executive director 18
independent In character and jJudgement and that each makes
an effective and valuable contnbution to the Board and
demonstrates commitment to the role Any term beyond six
years (ie two three-year terms) for a non-executive director 13
subject to ngorous review

Following the appointment of new non-executive directors in
February and March 2008 and June 2007, the Board has
reviewed committee membership to refresh the skills,
knowledge and expenence of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees
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Graham Qakley, Group Secretary, acts as a sounding board
to the Chairman and indvidua! directors He supports the
Charrman in ensuring the Board functions effectively and
fuffils its role He 1s secretary of the Audit, Rernuneration

and Nominaticn Commuttees and alsc heads the Corporate
Governance Group, wich supports the Board and its
commuttees, as well as providing advice on a range of :ssues
1o commercial colleagues

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its
decision and delegates certain matters to committees as set
out below The Board determines the overall Group strategy,
creation, acquisition or dispasal of matenal corporate entities
or assets, development and protection of the brand, matters of
public interest that could affect the Group's reputation, public
announcements including statutory accounts, significant
changes in accounting pelcy, capital structure and dvidend
policy, operating plans and key performance indicators,
prosecution, defence or settlement of matenal itigation, Group
remuneration policy and Board structure, composition and
succession The full schedule of matters reserved for the Board
can be found at www marksandspencer com/investorrelations

We are committed to our principles of Qualty, Value, Service,
Innovation and Trust Trust 1s earned from others as a result of
our commutment to long-hela values and the way we behave
Our Code of Ethics outlines the behaviours that M&S expects
from employees whather they are dealing with our customers,
suppliers, shareholders or colleagues It also includes guidelines
on the envircnment, fraud and financial reporting and the
management of conflicts of nterest 1t rs circulated to employees
on an annuzl basis and senior managers are required to sign
their annual acceptance of the Code of Ethics

In addiion, in January 2007 we announced Plan A, our
business wide 'eco plan’ sething out our ambition to changs the
way we operate over the next five years Plan A 1s overseen by
the How we do business Committee whose role is descrbed
on page 37

Committees of the Board

The pnncipat committees of the Board ars the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomenation Committees The written terms
of reference of each commitiee can be found at

www marksandspencer com/investorrelations

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnses four independent non-
executiva directors Jeremy Darroch who 1s the Chisf Financial
Officer of British Sky Broadcasting pic, took over the Chair of
the Committee on 1 Septernber 2006 The other members
are Steven Holiday, Jack Keenan and Sir Dawid Michels

Jack Keenan will retirg as a member when he retres from the
Board following the AGM on 10 July 2007 Kevin Lomax wes
Chairman of the Committee until he retired from the Board on
31 August 2006 Sir David Miche's joned the Committee

on 26 May 2006 Martha Lane Fox will join the Committee on
1 June 2007

The Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its oversight
responsibilities its pnmary functions are

» {0 monitor the integnity of the financial statements and other
information to shareholders,

* {0 review the systems of internal control and nsk
management, and

e {0 mantan an appropnate refationship with the Company's
external auditors and to review the effectiveness and
objectivity of the audit process

it met four tmes durmg the year and items reviewed include
General Merchandise direct buying processes, General
Merchandise distribution centre operations, g-commerce, Food
buying, Food stock management, Food pnmary logistics, and
financ al controls over sales, stock and cash The Committee
received updates for Business Continuity Planning and Finance
systerns implementation and reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's whistisblowing process Pnvate meetings have been
held separately with the external auditors and the Chief Internal
Auditor

The Audt Committee keeps under review the indepandence
and objectivity of the external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP {PwC"), including the review of audit fee proposals and
non-audit fees An engagement and fee approvals process 1S

in place which requires pror approval from the Commitiee for
some engagements and excludes others In some cases, the
nature of the non-audit advice may make i more timely and
cost-effective to select PwC, who already have a good
understanding of the Group PwC may also be apponted for
consultancy work, but enly after ngorous checks, including
competitive tender, to confirm they are the best provider PwC

15 alsc subject to orofessional standards which safeguard the
integrity of the auditing role performed on behalf of

shareholders As authorised by shareholders at the AGM in July
2006, the Audit Commitiee determines the lovel of remuneration
for the external auditors on behalf of the Board Details of this
vear's fees are given in note 4 to the financial statements

The Board has satisfied tself that at teast one member of the
Audit Committee has recent and relevant financial expenence
and 1s confident that the collective expenence of the members
enables them to act as an effective Audit Commities The
Committee also has access to the financial expertise of the
Group and its auditors and can seek further professional advice
at the Company's expense, if required
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Remuneration Commuttee

The Remuneration Committee compnses four independent non-
executive directors Louise Patten took over the Charr of the
Commuttee on 1 January 2007 The other members are Steven
Holliday, Jack Keenan and Sir Dawid Michels Jack Keenan was
Committee Chairman until 31 December 2006 and will remain a
member of the Commuttee until he retires from the Board
following the AGM on 10 July 2007 Sir Dawvid Michels was
appointed to the Committee an 268 May 2006 and Kevin Lomax
was a member of the Committee until he retired from the Board
on 31 August 2006 Martha Lane Fox will join the Committee on
1 June 2007

It met exght times dunng the year and its pnmary role is to
recommend to the Board the remuneration strategy and
framework, gving due regard to the financial and commercial
health of the Company and to ensure the executive directors
and senior management are fairly rewarded for their ndvidual
contnbutions to the Company’s overall performance The
remuneration of the non-executive directors 1s determined by
the Charrman and the executive directors

The Remuneration Report 1s set out on pages 44-50 as required
by the Drectors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman, the

Cheef Executive and five independsnt non-executive directors,
Lord Burns 1s Commuittee Charman The other members are
Jeremy Darroch, Steven Holliday, Jack Keenan, Sir David Michels,
Lowse Patten and Stuart Rose Kevin Lomax was a member of
the Committee untl he retired from the Board on 31 August
2006 Stuart Rose jo.ned the Committee on 24 January 2007
Jack Keenan will retire as a Commuittee member when he retires
from the Board fcllowing the AGM on 10 July 2007

Martha Lane Fox will join the Commttee on 1 June 2007

It met once dunng the year as the review of semior succession
was conducted by the full Board in June 2006, rathar than the
Committes s role s to ensure that appropnate procedures are
in place for the nomination, selection, traning and evaluation of
directors and for successional plans The Committee reviews
the Company’s Board structure, size, compaosition and
successional needs, thereby keeping under consideration the
balance of memberstip and the required blend of skills,
knowledge and expenence of the Board Appointments are
made on ment and against objective critena to ensure that the
Board maintains an appropnate balance of skills and
expenence

On 22 May 2007 we announced the appointment of a new
non-executive, Martha Lane Fox, with effect from 1 June 2007
This followed a search by an external search consultancy
commussioned by the Nomination Committee The candidates
were shortisted by the Charman and Chief Executive and the
preferred candidate then seen by a wider group of directors
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Under the Company’s Articles of Association, all drectors

seek election at therr first Annuat General Meeting following
appointment and all directors are required to offer thermselves
for re-election at least every three years Following the
ntroduction of The Employment Equality {Age) Regulations 2006
and the repeal of a provision In the Companies Act 1885, 1t Is
proposed that the requirement :n our Articles for directors
reaching the age of 70 or more to retire and seek re-election
annually, be removed An amendment to the Company's Articles
is to be proposed at the 2007 AGM

Row we do business Commuttee

The Corporate Social Responsibiity Commuttee, was
reconstituted i November 2006 as an Executive Committee,
called the How we do business (HWDB’) Committee, to
ensure that the ‘way we do business’ is integral to the way

the business operates It compnses Stuart Rose (Chairman),
Steven Sharp and 10 members of senior management who hold
responsibilities for key aspects of our social, environmental and
ethical performance Paul Myners was Committee Charman
until he retired from the Board on 11 July 2006 Lord Burns
was a Committee member becoming Committee Chairman

on 12 July 2006 Both Lord Burns and Jack Keenan left the
Committee when it was reconstituted in November 2006

The Committee’s pamary aim 1s to oversee the implementation
of Plan A, a business-wide ‘eco plan’ impacting on every

part of the Company's operations over the next five years,
whilst providing the Board with an overview of the social,
environmental and ethical impacts of the Group's actvities and
how they are being managed The key commitments set out In
Plan A, on climate change, waste, raw matenals, far trade and
healthy eating are reviewed and ther mplementation overseen
by the Committee

Further information is given on pages 10-11 and in our
HWDB report, available on the Company’s website at
www marksandpsencer com/howwedobusinessreport2007,
which details our commitments and performance to date,
including references to the United Nations Global Reporting
Index
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The following table sets out the number of meetings of the Board and its committees dunng the year and indvidual attendance by
Board and committee members at those meetings

Group Audi Remuneration Nomination

Board Commuttee Comnuttee Cominitie
Name of Direclor A B A B8 A B A B
Lord Burns, Chairman {Deputy untd 11 July 2006) 10 10 - - - - 1 1
Paul Myners, Charrman {retired 11 July 2006} 4 4 - - - - - -
Stuart Rase, Chief Executwe 10 10 - - - - 1 1
Executive Directors
lan Dyson 10 10 - - - - - -
Steven Sharp 10 10 - - - - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Jeremy Darroch 10 10 4 4 - - 1 1
Staeven Holliday' 10 B 4 3 8 7 1 0
Jack Keenan 10 10 4 4 8 8 1 1
Kevin Lomax (retired 31 August 2006} 4 4 1 1 3 3 - -
Sir David Michels? 10 10 3 1 7 7 1 1
Lousse Patten? 10 10 - - 8 7 1 1

A = Maxxmum number of meetings the dregior could have attended

B = Number of meetings the director aciually attended

1 Steven Holliday was unable to attend the Audit Committes mesting on 16 May 2006, the Board meeting on 6 Novernber 2006 the Nomination Committes meeting
on 23 Jamary 2007 and ‘he Board and Remungration Comniitise mestings on 24 January 2007 dué to overseas comsatments with National Gad pic

2 S David Michels was unable to attend the Aucit Commitles meeungs on 4 September and 1 Novermber 2006 as the meeting dates had baen sat prior to his
appontment to the Commitiee

* Louise Patten was unabla to attand the Renwneraticn Committee mesting on 10 May 2006 due to her attencance as Chairman at ths AGM of Brixton plc

Board performance evaluation
The approach taken dunng 2006/07 was to further develop the thorough and robust process adopted in 2005/06 and 1o evolve this to
the next stage The Board was keen to ensure that the evaluation was a continuous process bulding on the previous year's evaluation

In September 2006, the Chairman agreed with the Board that a tharough review would ne conducted combining the use of a
guestionnare and one-to-one interviews led by the Chairman The questionnarre focused on four key areas and also allowed
cpportunty for the Directors to give additional constructive feedback via a free text box Al results were collatea electronically A
non-attnbutable executive summary focusing on the key themes was prepared and used as the start of the one-to-one discussions
for the Charman and the Directors and the Chairman gave nitial feedback to the Board on the key findings and how the subsequent
action plan should be managed and reviewed
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The success of this year's approach has been due to a number
of key factors

* evolving and building on the process used In 2005/06 and
using this as a starting point for the design of the 2006/07
review This ensured that we built on the lessons learnt,
were not starting afresh, and focused on any areas that had
been 1dentified previously.

* the approach was vigorous but simple and for the first time
the questionnaire was conducted electronically,

* ensunng that the Chairman gained buy-in from all Board
members as to how the process should be conducted and
the need to ensure that this 1s an integral part of how they
work dunng 2007/08

Commuttees Performance Evaluation

The process for reviewing the Committees in 2006/07 has been
to combine on-going reviews with a simple questionnaire led by
each of the respective chaimen

The Audit and Remuneration Committees undertook a review
looking at their method of operation and processes and
combined this with the use of a questionnare which was
conducted In March 2007 This proved particularly valuable
given the change of Charmanship of both of these committees
{Audit - Jeremy Darroch and Remuneration — Louise Patten)
dunng the year An executve summary was produced for the
Charmen of both Committees which they discussed with ther
respective Committee members

The Nomination Commitiee reviewed its membership dunng the
year appointing Stuart Rose as a member, prior to its dedicated
session in January 2007 on succession planning

Succession Planning and Senior Leadership Development
The Board Performance Evaluation in 2005/06 dentified that
this was an area the Board wished to give a greater focus to in
the future Significant progress has been made in this area
dunng the year including

¢ twice-yearly reviews of indwiduals of the two levels beneath
the Board (full Board ~ June 2006 and Nomination
Committee - January 2007),

* regular nsk assessment of Succession Planmng with
mitigating action identified,

* a development programme established for high potential
individuals
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On 25 April 2007 we announced a number of senior
management changes to posttion the Company for the next
phase of its growth We recruited two new people for positions
ust below Board lavel as Director of Food and Director of
International Business We also made further changes to our top
30 senior management, including three new director roles within
the Food Dwviston, bulding on the appointments made in
October 2006

Accountabihity and audit

The Group’s overnding corporate objective is to maximise long-
term sharehoider value whilst exceeding the expectations of our
customers, employees and partners In doing so, the directors
recognise that creating value 1s the reward for taking and
accepting nsk

The Board has overall responsibility for the Graup’s approach
to assessing nsk and systems of internal centrol, and for
monttoring thewr effectiveness in providing shareholders wath

a return that 1s consistent with a respansible assessment and
mitgation of nsks This includes reviewing financtal, operational
and compliance controls and nsk management procedures
The role of executive management is to implement the Board’s
policies on nsk and control and {o provide assurance on
compliance with these policies Independent assurance 1s
provided by intemal audit, which operates across the Group,
and the external auditors All employees are accountable for
operating within these policies

Because of the imitations that are inherent in any system of
mternal control, this system 1s designed to manage, rather than
ehminate, the nsk of falure to achieve corporate objectives
Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance agamnst material misstatement or loss

Risk assessment

Every six months the Board reviews the Group Risk Profile — the
tool that drives nisk assessment and action planning This is
supported by an on-gowg process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the sigrificant nsks faced by the Group As an integral
part of pfanning and review, managers from each business area
and major projects

s dentfy the nsks to therr plans,
* evaluats the nsks using Ikethood and impact, and
¢ document the actions beng taken to manage those nsks

This process has been in place for the year under review and up

to the date of approval of the Annual report and accounts It

has been regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the

Internal Control Guidance for directors on the Code produced ‘
by the Financial Reporting Council !‘
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Pnncipal Risks and Uncertainties

There are nsks and uncertanties which could impact the Group's long-term performance The nsk assessment process Is designed
to identify, manage and mitigate business nsk The table below gives examples of actwities across Group funchions to mitigats
against nsks and uncertanties identified The Board considers that these are the most significant risks to achieving business goals
The nisks isted do not compnse all those associated with Marks & Spencer and are not set out in any order of pnonty Additional
risks and uncertanties not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less matenal, may also have an adverse
effect on the busingss

Risk Impact Examples of Mitigating Activities

PRCDUCT We aim to provide a wide choice of greal value, quality food, clothing and home products, which are all sourced and
made responsibly

Clothing and Home

We fall to ach.eve further Adverse effect on ¢ New and better product, better styiing and better value with particutar

sales growth n an financial rasults focus on key dapartments

increasingly competitive * Shorter buying lead times to accemmodate fast sellers and new fashion

environment with Lost market share and *  Re-alignment of product footage by size of store

potentially weaker customer loyalty * Tracking of customer perceptions of product

economic conditions + Review of supply chain capacity, sourcing and planning to manage
votume growth

Seepp 12-15 » Growth of iInternational business through our owned and franchised

and 24-25 stores

* Improved e-commerce capabiity focusing on functionality, availabiity
and fulfilment
* Plan A intiatives, eg ethical sourcing

Food
We fail to deliver profitable  Adverse effect on * Increase of Smply Food footags and development of e-commerce as
sales growth while financial results new routes tc market
mamntaining an innovation *  Continual product and technical Innovation to mantain competitive
gap over competitors Lost market share and advantage

customer loyalty * Response to new trends in eating and customer demand for fresh,
See pp 16-19 ratural and healthy food

* Independeant quality assessment of key food lines
» Tracking of customer percepuons of product
* Plan A initiatives, eg Gifferentiated raw matenals

SERVICE We have been investing in our people to ensure that we meet our customers’ expectations of consistently great service,
no matter when or where they visit us

People
We fail to attract, cevelop  Inability to develop and
and retain talent with the cxecute business plans

Gompetitive reward packages

Perscnal performance reviews, development plans anc career paths

correct skills and capability Buying Academics in head office and coaches in stores

for succession Competitive Internal and external talent reviews resulting in promotions and external
disadvantage appointments

Graduate recrutment and development

Employee commurication

* Tracking of employee satisfaction surveys

* Tracking of customer perceptions of service

See page 10 and pp 20-21

L 4

Business Interruption

We fail to respond to or Inability 1o operate * Business continuity and recovery plans in place and regularty tested
recover from a major effectively * Recoverability of cntical IT operations
incident s Alternative workplace solutions fcr head office

Ll

Remote working capabilities in place
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Pnncipa! Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Impact Examples of Mitigating Activities

ENVIRONMENT We are opening new stores and modernising our existing portiolio to ensure we provide an exciting shopping
expenence in the nght place, In the nght space

Stores
We farl to deliver new real  Unacceptable return on « Property strategy developed te ensure good representation through our
estate, extensions and investment siore portfolio
modernisations safely, on *  Governance and resource in place to achieve imelines, budgets and
time and to budget Damage to reputation safety controls

¢ Modernisation programme under way to provide more convenyent,

exciting and moedem shopping

See pp 22-23 * Tracking of customer perceptions of shopping snvirorument

PLAN A Our five-year ‘eco plan’, launched in January 2007, 16 tackle challenges across five areas chmate change, waste,
sustainable raw matenals, {ar partner and healtn

Plan A

We fall to manage, measure Lost stakeholder rust = 100 point plan announced and monitcred

and communicate progress and confidence * (overnance in place to achieve our commitments

agamnst our Plan A * Baselines, KPIs and accountabilities identified

commitments Damage to reputation  *  Plan A integrated into day-to-day operation iIncluding Plan A champions

throughout head office and stores
* Open dialogue with stakeholders to develop our mutual understanding of
See pp 8-11 the challenges we face
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Internat control

The Board maintains full control and direction over appropnate

strategic, financial, organisational and compliance issues It has
delegated to executive management the implementation of the
systems of intarnal controt within an established framework

The Board has put in place an organisational structure with
formally defined tines of responsibiity and delegation of
authonty There are also established procedures for planning,
capital expenditure, Information and reporting systems, and for
monitoring the Group's businesses and their performance
These include

Plans and policies
« communication of the Group's strategy, objectives and
targets,

* annual operating and capital plans and {uture projectians,
s gperating policies and procedures,

* clearly defined capital investment control guidelines,

* review of treasury policies by the Board, and

¢ review of social, environmental and ethical matters by the
How we do business Commitiee

Competent people
* appontment of employees of the necessary calibre o fulfil
therr allotted responstbilities, and

« clear roles and accountabilities with reqular performance
reviews

Monitor and control

* review by operating divisions of their plans with the relevant
executie directors pnor to submission to the Board for
approval, including identrfication and assessment of nsks,

*  monthly comparnson of operating divistons” actual financial
performance against budget, and

e regular consideration by the Board of year end forecasts

Regulatory update
* reporting of accounting and legal developments, and

» regular briefings on latest test practice corporate
governance to the Board

Assurance
On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee examines the
effectiveness of the Group's

¢ assessment of nsk by reviewing evidence of nsk assessment
actvity and a report from internal audit on the process
undertaken,

* systems of internal control, primarily through approving the
mternal audit plan and reviewing tts findings, reviews of the
annual and intenm financial statements and a review of the
nalure, scope and reports of the external audit,

¢ action plans taken, or to be taken, to remedy any significant
falings or weaknesses identified, and

* action plans in place 10 manage significant nsks

The Audit Committee has completed its review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control
during the year, which are in comphance with the Turnbull
Guidance 2005 It confirms the necessary action plans to
remedy 1denufied weaknesses in internat conirol are in place
and have been throughout the year

Internal audit's wark 1s focused on areas of prionty as identified
by the Group Risk Profile and in accordance with an annual
audit ptan approved each year by the Audit Commuttee and

by the Board The Board receives a fult report from the Chief
Internal Auditor each year on the department’s work and
findings and regular ntenm updates on specific 1Ssues

The Audit Commitiee monitors and assesses the role and
effectiveness of the internal audit function on behalf of

the Board

The external auditors are ergaged to exgress an opinion on the
financial statements They review and test the systems of
internal financiat controt and the data contained i the financial
statements to the extent necessary to express ther audit
opinion They discuss wath management the reporting of
operational results and the financial position of the Group and
present therr findings to the Audit Commuttee

Relations with shareholders

Wa continue to be committed to an-going engagement with
shareholders and have a well established cycle of
communicat:on based on the Group’s financial repcriing
calendar Thus includes our preliminary results in May, Annual
report n June, half year results in November and trading
updates, now called intenm management statements, in July
and January We promote the use of electronic communication -
all Company announcements and presentations are made
avallable simultaneously on our website, togsther with webcasts
of our financial resuits and AGM presentaticns Qur website also
contains up to date corporate and customer information including
the full response to the Code, matters reserved to the Board
and terms of reference for the pnncipal Board Committees

For improved accessibility we make Audio and large print
versions of the text from our Annual review available on our
website In 2006 we advertised our half year results in two
national newspapers and made the full statement avalable on
our website Al of these can also be provided in hard copy by
writing to the Group Secretary

Qur registrars continue to enhance ther electronic
communication senvice for our shareholders through

www shareview co uk This offers a number of capabilities
ranging from electing to receive communications electronically to
checking shareholdings and dwmdend nfermation onling

Prvate investors continue to own a particularly high percentage
of M&S shares in companson o other large UK companies We
make a special effort to ensure communications and policies arg
appropnate to the needs of the pnvate investor Communication
channels are available for all stakeholders to make ther views
known, by e-mall at charman@marks-and-spencer com, or
telephone on 0845 609 0810 for shareholder queries or

0845 302 1234 for customer quenes
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For institutional investors the focal point for contact 1s through
our Investor Relations department where regular dialogue 1s
maintained throughout the year In 2006 the team won an award
for ther communication and management services to the
nvester community and were also highly commended for the
maost progress in mvestor relations in a FTSE 100 company

Our Chairman, Chief Exacutive and Group Finance Director play
key roles In cur relationship with major shareholders and the
presentations of full and half year results are attended by all the
executive directors The Senior Independent Director 1s also
avallable for shareholders as required The Board 1s regutarty
updated on the views of our major shareholders by the
Charman following meetings they have with him, the Chief
Executive, the Group Finance Director or Investor Relations

In June the Board receves a presentation from external adwvisers
summansing the opintons of our principal shareholders,
following an extensive survey of ther views after the release of
our year end results This assists with the preparation for the
AGM, held in July, at which the Board's annual review 15 grven
to sharsholders and through which the support of shareholders
15 secured by voting on resolutions, both via Proxy and in
person

Our AGM 1s an important day in our corporate calendar, and is
well attended by shareholders In 2005 and 2006 the AGM was
held at the ICC n Birmingham and (in 2007 waill return to
London, being held at Earls Count 2 on 10 July 2007 Pnor to
the meeting an exhibition 18 hosted by our senior retal and
business managers, who are available for quesons, as are the
Charman, Crief Executive and other members of the Board

Shareholder topics cards are sent with the Notice of Meeting
giving sharehelders further opportunity to make therr views
known to us The three most frequently raised topics are
addressed at the meeting and a summary of all comments
passed to the Board and drrectors of each business unit
Business presentations given on the day by the Chairman and
Chief Executive are available on our website after the meeting,
as are the questions raised dunng the meeting and answers
provided

The Board continues to encourage increased shareholder
voling, with further focus on the electronic voting systems
available In 2006 87% of the proxy votes received wera lodged
through the CREST system We encourage private investors to
vote either electrorucally through www sharevote co uk, by proxy
card or at the meesting Since 2004 voting at the meeting has
been conducted by poll, using the electroric Votenow system,
rather than a show of hands This gives a more democratic
result as alf shares represented at the meeting and those lodged
before the mesting are included on a one share one vote basis
Alt resolutions are voted separately using three way voting, as
recommended by the Code Our Registrar records ali Proxy
votes receved up to 48 hours prior to our AGM and report the
votes For, Against or Vote withheld to the Charman prior to the
meeting These votes are included in the indicative poll result
screened at the meeting The final results are announced via the
London Stock Exchange and pubhshed on our website following
independent venfication by our registrars
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In 2006 votes cast represented 52% of the ordinary share
capital All resolutions were passed with votes For resolutions
ranging from 86% to 98% The 2006 AGM was attended by all
directors, including the Chairman of the Audit (Kevin Lomax),
Remuneration (Jack Keenan) and Nomination Committees
{Lord Burns), who were avallable for questions

At the 2007 AGM, in addition to the routine resolutions,
shareholders will be asked tc vote on

* amendments 1o the Arlicles of Association, including
electrenic communication, and

« rengwal of the All Employee share plan

Many shareholders are alse customers and in 2006 we sent
Spend and Save vouchers ta our shareholders These agan
proved very popular The offer for 2007/08 1s being extendad to
technology products and the convenience of shopping online
Vouchers will be distnbuted with the January dividend and be
vahd throughout February and March 2008

Compliance with the Combined Code 2006
For the year ended 31 March 2007 the Company complied with
all the prowisions of the Code

Governance of the Group's pension schemes

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme {for all employees
with an appointment date prior to 1 Aprit 2002 and a defined
contnbutory scheme open to those joining the Company on

or after 1 Apnl 2002 More information 1 given n note 11 on
page 67-70

The Board of the Pension Trust {‘Trustee Board'} manages
the assets of the pensicn schemes which are held under trust
separately from those of the Group The Board compnses
Tony Watson as indspendent Chairman and Law Debenture
Trust as independent Trustee, together with five company
representatives and five member reprasentatives

In January 2007 the Company announced that the tnennial
actuarial valuation of the Marks & Spencer UK defined bensfit
pension scheme at 31 March 2006 resulted in a deficit of
£704m The 1AS 19 valuation as at 30 September 2006 was a
deficit of £1,031 7m The Company has agreed with the Trustee
to fund the deficit by contnbuting £500m of value wia an interest
in a property-backed partnership, with the remainder being

met by investment returns on the assets We consulted with
employees on a range of choices about how ther pension
butlds up in the future There are three options from which
members can choose With one of the options, members
would make contnbutions to the scheme, wth the other two,
members would not
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Remuneration report

The Remuneration Commuttee has adopted the prnciples

of good governance relating to directors’ remuneration as set
out In the Combined Code 2006 This report complies wiath the
Companies Act 1985, amended by the Directors' Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 and the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty These regulations require the Company’s
auditors to report on the ‘audited information’ within the report
and 10 state if this section of ihe report has been properly
prepared In accordance with the regulations This report has
therefore, been divided into separate sections for unaudited
and audited nformation The repont has been prepared on
behalf of the Board by the Remuneration Committee

PART 1 UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee compnises four independent non-
executive directors Louise Patten took over as Commitiee
Chairman on 1 January 2007 The other members are Steven
Holliday, Jack Keenan (Committee Charrman untl 31 December
2006), and Sir David Michels, who joined the Committee on 26
May 2006 Kewvin Lomax was a member of the Committee unti!
he retired from the Beoard on 31 August 2006 Martha Lane Fox
will join the Committee on 1 June 2007 There were eight
meelings of the Remuneration Commitiee dunng the penod
under review and all ndmduals who were members of tha
Committee at that time attended the meetings, with the
exception of Louise Patten who was absent on 10 May 2006
and Steven Holliday who was absent on 24 January 2007, due
to pnor commitments

The Committee keeps itself fully informed of all relevant
developments and best practice in the field of remuneration
and seeks advice where appropriate from external advisors
New Bndge Street Consukants LLP has provided matenal
advice to the Committee on directors’ remuneration and
share schemes In the past year

The Company Chairman, Chief Executive, Group Secretary
and the Head of Senior Remuneration also matenally assisted
the Committee in its deliberations, except in relation to therr
own remuneration

The Remuneration Committeg’s remtt is set out n the terms

of reference which are reviewed annually by the Board A copy
of the terms of reference 15 avalable on the Company's website
The prmary purposes include

* to recommend to the Board the senior remuneration
strategy and framework, gmvng due regard 1o the financial
and commercial health of the Company,

* 1o determine the individual remuneration packages wathin
that framework for the executive directors and one level
below the Board {'semor management’),

¢ to approve the design of annual and long-term incentive
arrangements and agree the targets and levels of award,

* 10 determing and agree the general terms and corditions
of service contracts for senior management and the specific
terms for an indmdual either on recrutment or termination,
and

* 1o determine the policy for, and scope of, semor
management pension arrangements
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The Board considers the pnnciples of good governance when
deciding the remuneration strategy, and recognises that the level
¢f remuneration and benefits we offer is key to recruiting and
retaining talented indviduals and maintaining our market position
as an employer of cheice

Remuneration policy

The Committee continually reviews the remuneration sirategy
to ensure it will enable the recrutment and retention of highly
skilled individuals who are key to the long-term growth of
Marks & Spencer The Company I1s delivenng significantly
improved performance and generating substantial increases
in profit and shareholder value, and to ensure this continuing
growth In a highly competitive retail sector, it is essential that
the Senior Team 1s incentvised, motivated and retained
Rewviews in 2005 and 2006 resulted in changes to the incentive
arrangements to rebalance the package and prowide a more
effective ink between pay and performance for the various
levels of executive and to ensure the most senlor executives
have a high propertion of pay at nsk

Executives are required to achieve demanding targets under
the annual and long-term arrangements 1o receve rewards
The overall package supports the Company’s strategy and
its comimitment to continuous and sustamable enhancement
of shareholder value

Total remuneration for executive drrectors compnses salary,
vanable pay, pension and benglfits Salary and benefits are

set having regard to market practice and levels paid by similar
companies Variable pay provides the opportunity to earn
greater amounts for the highest standards of periormance

The performance-refated element forms a significant proportion
of the totel potential package

There are two key components of vanable pay an Annual
Bonus Schemes (incorporating a deferred share element} and
a Periormance Share Plan The ability to earn vanable pay 1s
linked to the delivery of signficant Company performance and
the expected value of the package both at on-target and
maximum 1S shown below

Expected value of future annual remuneration package
for executive directors
‘On-target’ performance

Solary ’ Long-tezxm incentives
36% AG%

Long-tasm incentives
7%

The value placed on long-term incentives compnses the
expected cash value to executives after three years, discounted
back to s present value, of {) bonus compulsornly deferred into
shares and (i} performance shares awarded under the
Performance Share Plan
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Chairman’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the Charrman i1s determined by the Chief
Executive and the other members of the Board The level of
remuneration for the Chairman reflects the commitment and
respensibiibes of this role and 1s set having regard to market
practice The fee Is reviewed annually and 1s increased to
£450,000 from 1 Apnl 2007 The Chawrman has committed to
use 25% of his net fees to purchase shares in the Company
on a quarterly basis

Non-executive directors' remuneration

The remuneration for the non-executive directors 1s determined
by the Charman and executive directors and 1s designed both
to recognise the responsibilities of non-executive directors and
to attract Individuals with the necessary skills and expenence

to contribute to the future growth of the Company The non-
executive directors are paid a basic fes with additional fees
payable for Committee membership and to the char of the
Commuittees These fees are neither performance related nor
pensionable Non-executive directors do not participate in

any of the Company’s share schemes nor the Annual Bonus
Scheme The fees shown in the emoluments table reflect

the fees paid dunrg the year The basic fee increases from
£50,000 to £55,000 per annum, the additicnal fees for acting
as Committee Chaurman increases from £10,000 to £12,000 and
for Committee membership from £5,000 to £8,000 per annum
These new fee levels are effective from 1 Apnl 2007 The annual
fees for each individual are shown In the contract terms table
on page 47

Exsecutive directors’ remuneration

Salarnies and benefits

Salanes for executive directors are reviewed annually and

any change to salary 1s normaliy effective from 1 January The
Remuneration Committee takes Into consideration a range of
factors when reviewing salanes such as Company performance,
level of salares for large retallers and for other major FTSE 100
compantes, market conditions, the levei of increase awarded to
employees throughout the business and the responsibilities and
skills of indvidual directars Current annual salaries for executive
directors are set out in the contract terms table page 47

Stuart Rose. fan Dyson and Steven Sharp received payments
of 26% of total satary in lieu of pension and are not members
of the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme Life Assurance for
these indviduals 1s provided through a separate policy and the
value of these benofits is shown in tha emoluments table, under
cash allowance and benefits on page 48

For executive directors, where applicable, the provision of
a car or car allowance, fuel and chauffeur 1s included in the
emolurnents table as part of cash allowance and benelits
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Annual Bonus Scheme

The Annual Bonus Scheme 1s designed to focus and reward
executives for specific operational improverments which will dnve
the Company's performance The 2006/07 bonus for directors
was at 60% of salary for on-target performance nsing to a
maximum of 260% for exceeding targets

The targets for the Company are determined annually by the
Remuneration Committee and mcorporate a mixture of
corporate profit before tax and business unit and retail sales and
profit as appropnate For 2006/07, the targets for the executive
directors were entirely based on the delivery of corporale profit
before tax The Committee assesses the achievernent of targets
for all executve directors and senior management prior to any
bonus awards being made

This year, the corporate profit before tax targets have been
delivered In ful' and represent a significant iImprovement both
on the reported profits for 2005/06 and aganst market
expectations at the beginning of the financial year As a result,
maximum awards under the scheme of 250% of salary have
been made to Stuart Rose, fan Dyson and Steven Sharp

From the 2006/07 bonus payment, the execulive direclors are
required to defer 60% of any bonus paid into shares which wall
be held for three years The value of any divilends accrued
ether in the form of dividend equivalents or through a Dvidend
Reinvestment Plan will be paid at the end of the perod The
emoluments table and notes on page 48 give the level of cash
payments and the value of deferred shares to be awarded at the
beginning of June 2007, which will be based on the average
share price over the preceding five trading days

For 2007/08, the bonus scheme remains unchanged for
executive directors 18 60% of salary for on-target performance
nsing to 2 maximum of 250% for exceeding targets, with 60%
paid n deferred shares The performance measure will continue
to be corporate profit before tax

Long-term Incentive Schemes

Performance Share Plan

The Performance Shars Plan ts the primary form of long-term
incentive for the top 100 management Under the plan,
annual awards of up to 200% of salary may be offered, based
on performance and potential, up to a maximum of 400%

in exceptional circumstances, including those for recruitment
and retention

Awards in excess of 200% of salary, up to a maxmum of 400%
were made to a smali number of senior management this year
Including the executive directors The Committes considlers

that 1t 1s necessary to make further awards in excess of 200% of
salary 1n 2007/08 to a few key individuals, ncluding directors, in
order to ensure that the incentives provided by the Company
are sufficient to retan them over the coming years and to

reward them appropriately for achieving excellent results
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Performance targets are based on Adjusted Earnings per Share
{EPS) growth measured over a single three-year pencd which
the Remuneration Committee consicers to be the key measure
of management performance to generate significant increases in
profits and enhance shareholder value The Committee reviews
both the choice of measure and the level set each year to ensure
it IS appropriate in ight of the business strategy and the levels
are demanding n the context of the Company's circumstances

The targets for the 2007 award have been set by the
Committee following consultation with leading investors There
will be two different targets The first for any award up to 200%
and a more stretching target for the exceptioral awards above
200% The Committee considers that this range of growth
targets Is as least as challencing as targst ranges were for
previcus awards when they were chosen In coming to this
concluston, the Committes took into account the significantty
higher ‘Dase’ paint for this award (from which growth is
measured) as a result of the much improved result for 2006/07,
the future business outlook for the Company and EPS targets
and trends in other retailers and FTSE 100 companies The
targels are as follows

Averags Annual EPS Growlh
in excass of nflation [FP1}

Adjusted EPS lor
start of scheme’

Award 20% vosting 100% vesting Onginal Restated
2005 8% 15% 23 5p 22 2p
2006 5% 12% 314p 31 4p
20072 4% 10% 40 4p 40 4p
2007° 4% 12% 40 4p 40 4p

! The base EPS figure was 23 Sp, which was the adiusted EPS figure for 2004/05
an a pro forma basis The figure has been restated to 22 2p as the Group 15 now
reparting under IFRS Full detalls of EPS are described in Nota 8 to the financal
statements on paga 65 of the Annual Report

2 Awards up (o 200% of salary
3 Awards betwaen 200% ~ 400% of salary

Executive Share Option Scheme

Executve Share Option Schemes have operated far over 20
years and In recent years have been open to approximately

400 members of management Although a new Exscutive Share
Option Scheme was adopted at the 2005 AGM, the Committee
does not ntend to use this Scheme on a regular basis However,
it does wish to have the flexibiity to make grants from time to
tme f it considers It appropnate to do so i the future No grants
have been made under this Scheme in the year under review

There are options outstanding for management under a number
of previous schemes which wall vest, subject to the delvery of
the performance conditions, in 2007 and 2008 Executive
direclors have options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme
only, details of which are shown in the Directors’ share option
schemes table on page 49 The performance targets for the
2002 Scheme are Adjusted EPS growth measured from the
mast recent financial year ending pnor to grant of at least

s RPI plus an average of 3% per annum for 50% of each
grant, and

* RPI plus an average of 4% per annum for the other 50%
of each grant

Performance targets are assessed over an inttal threg-year
penod from the date of grant There 1s no ability to retest any
grants made since 2004/05, which includes alt grants mads te
the executive directors

All-Employee Share Schemes

Executive directors can aiso participate w1 the share schemes
open to all employees of Marks & Spencer, currently Sharesave,
the Company’s Save As You Earn scheme (SAYE) Details of
participation by executive directors in Sharesave are given in
part 2 cof this report

A SAYE scheme was approved by shareholders in 1931 and
renewed by shareholders n 1987 and 1897 and sharehoider
approval i1s being sought at the 2007 AGM to renew the scheme
for a further 10 years HMRC rules hmit the maximum amount
saved to £250 per month When the savings contract s started,
options are granted to acquire the number of shares that the
total savings will buy when the contract matures, at a discounted
price set at the start of the scheme Options cannot normally be
exercised untit a minmum of three years has elapsed

Service contracts and terms

Chairman

Lord Burns was appointed Charman post the AGM on 11 July
2006 following the retirement of Paul Myners Lord Burns has
a service agreement which requires 12 months’ notice from the
Company or six months’ notice should he wish to terminate
the agraement

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors have service agreements wath the
Company for an inital three-year term, which are terminable on
three months’ notice by either party Kewin Lomax retired from
the Board on 31 August 2006 and Jack Keenan has given
notice that he will be retinng from the Board with effect from
10 July 2007 Martha Lane Fox will join the Board on

1 June 2007

Executive directors

All members of senior management, ncluding executive
directors, have service contracts These contracts can be
terminated by the Company giving 12 months’ notice and by
the employee giving six months' notice

The Company retains the nght tc terminate the contract of any
executive drecter summanly, In accordance wath the terms of
their service agreement, on payment of a sum equivalent 1o the
contractual notice entittement of 12 months' salary and
specified benefits In the case of all current executive directors,
the Company reserves the nght on termination to mzake phased
payments which are paid in monthly instalments and subject to
mitigation Entitlernent to participate in future share scheme
awards ceases on termination
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Contract terms and current annual salanes/fees for all members of the Board
Committee Commities Current annual

Date of Notce perod/ Basic salary/lee’ member fee chan/SiD fee salary/feo
Nama appointment unexpired toem £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
Lord Burns 01/10/2005 12 mths/6 mths 450 - - 450
Chief Executive
Stuart Rose 31/05/2004 12 mths/B mihs 1,050 - - 1,050
Executive directors
lan Dyson 27/06/2005 12 mihs/6 mihs 525 - - 525
Steven Sharp 08/11/2005 12 mths/6 mihs 525 - - 525
Non-executive directors
Jeremy Darroch 01/02/2006 3 mths/3 m:hs 55 6 12 73
Steven Holiday 15/07/2004 3 mths/3 mths 55 12 - 67
Jack Keenan 01/08/2001 3 mths/3 mihs 55 12 - 67
Sir David Michels 01/03/2006 3 mths/3 mths 55 12 12 79
Loutse Patten 01/02/2006 3 mths/3 mths 55 6 12 73

' From 1 January 2007 for Chief Exoctaive and executive drectors and 1 Aprfl 2007 for Chairman and non éxecutive directors

Shareholding policy
The current shareholding policy for executive diretors was introduced from 1 June 2002 All executive directors are required to hold

a defined percentage of salary (200% for Chief Executive and 100% for all other executive directors) within a five-year penod from
therr appomntment The relevant salary 1s either the salary as at 1 June 2002 or as at date of appointment, whichever s the later
The share market value 1s measured at the current date

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the directors and conrected persons in the shares of the Company are shown below Options granted
under the SAYE scheme and the Executive Share Option Schemes and the shares awarded under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
and Performance Share Plan are shown on page 49 Further information regarding employee share option schemes i1s given i Note
12 to the financial statements starting on page 71 of the Annual report

There have been no other changes in the directors’ interests in shares or options granted by the Company and its subsidianes
between the end of the financial year and 10 May 2007, one month pror to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, other than
that noted below in respect of Lord Burns No director had any interest :n any of the Company’s subsidianes at the beginning or end

of the year

Name Ordinary shares as at 31 March 2007 Ordinary shares as at | Apnt 2006
Lord Burns' 12,275 5,545
Jeremy Darroch 2,000 2,000
lan Dyson 60,000 60,000
Steven Holiday 2,500 2,500
Jack Keenan 53,238 53,238
Str David Michels 4,000 4,000
Lourse Patten 8,000 4,000
Stuart Rose 500,416 500,416
Steven Shamp 28,473 27,816

' Lord Burns bought 2,197 shares on 2 Apnl 2007 under the terms of nis appantment being the purchase of shares on a quartery basss, using approximately 25% of his
nat mcomse from tha Company, ncreasing his shareholding to 14 472 ordinary shares

External appointments

The Company recagnises that executive directors may be invited to become non-executive directors of other companies and that
such appointments can broaden their knowledge and experience, to the benefit of the Company The individual director retains the
fees Stuart Rose serves as a non-executive director at Land Securnties and receved a fee of £50,000 dunng the year under review
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PART 2 AUDITED INFORMATION

1 Directors’ emoluments

Cash
Salary/ alma::ce Total Totat
iea  and bensfits® Bonus* 2007 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
Lord Burns? 337 2 - 339 88
Chief Executive
Stuart Rose? 975 277 1,050 2,302 2,305
Executive directors
lan Dyson® 486 140 525 1,151 685
Steven Sharp? 488 152 525 1,165 364
Non-executive directors
Jeremy Darroch 61 - - 61 8
Steven Holiday 60 - - 60 50
Jack Keenan 68 - - 58 60
Sir David Michels 68 - - 88 4
E(?QISB Patten 58 ~ - 58 8
Directors retiring from the Board during the year
Kevin Lomax® 20 - - 29 60
Paul Myners? 87 57 - 124 203
Former directors?® I v 251 1,282
Total 2,697 628 2,100 5,676 5117

' Lord Burns was appointed Cnarman on 11 July 2006 His fee on appointment increased to £400,000 from his previous salary as Deputy Charman of £175,000

7 Stuart Rose receved a salary increéase from £950 000 to £1,650 000 effective from 1 January 2007 His total bonus earned in 2006/07 was £2,625,000

2 Jlan Dyson & Staven Snarp receved a salary increase from £475 000 to £525 000 effective from 1 January 2007 They each receved a total bonus of £1,312 500
for 2006/07

4 For all executive dractors, 40% of the total bonus is pad in cash as shown i the table and 60% paid n shares as part of tha Deferred Share Bonus Plan as descnbed
under the Annual Borus Scheme on page 45 The Deferred Share Bonus Plan shares wil be granted i June 2007

S The elements ncluded in the Cash allowance and benefits calumn of the table are descnbed n detal In the Salanes and beneiits section on page 45 and have
been audited

in addidion non executve directors are entitled to reimbursement of any expenses incurred as a result of ther Board duties For 2006/07 s included £20,000 for
Sir Dawid Michels Senor Independent Director who was rembirsed for general office and administration costs related to bis Marks and Spencer Board duties

8 Kevirs Lomax retred from the Board on 31 August 2006

T Paul Myners retired from the Board on 11 Juty 2036 The Cempany agreed 1o prowde Paul Myners witn the saraces of a daver and fleet vehicle {or 8 penod of up to
two years from August 2008 The cost of that arrangement tor the penod August 2006 16 March 2007 inclusive was £56 245 The remarning £838 were benefits
recoived betwoen Apnl and July 2007 whist he was Channan

8 Tne £251 000 n 2007 (ast year £246.000} relaies to payments to former directors under the Early Retrement Plan Under this plan the Remunaration Cormmitiee
could, at #ts discretion, offer an unfunded Eary Retirernent Penson separate from. the Company pension which was payable from the data of retirement 10 age 60
With effact trom 31 March 2000 the Earty Retirement Plan was withdrawn but payments continue for awards mada before this cale
The former drrectors are Jamas Benfield who receved £78 686 (ast year £76 992} payable unti 22 Apri 2009 and Derek Hayes who recaved £73 202
(last year £71,626) payabla untl 18 Novermber 2008
The pension schema entitlement for Clinton Silver 1s supplemented by an addtional, unfunded pension paid by the Company which tor 2007 was £68,873
fast year £96 745)
For 2006 the additonal £1 036,000 reiates to payments to drectors who retired from the Board duang that year
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2 Directors' Iinterests in long-term incentive schemes
g

Directors’ Share Schemes

Maximum Maximum Market
sharas Sharos shares Value
recervablo at awarded  receivable at on date
Date of 1 April during 31 March of award Eartiest date
award 2006 the year 2067 [} of vastng
Chief Executive
Stuart Rose
* Performance Share Plan! 25/Q7/2005 473,868 - 473,868 35875 25/07/2008
19/07/2006 -~ 663,755 663,755 5725 19/07/2009
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/2006 - 35,125 35,125 5500 05/06/2009
Total 473,868 698,880 1,172,748
Executive directors
lan Dyson
Performance Share Plan? 25/07/2005 234,146 — 234,146 35875 25/07/2Q08
19/07/2006 - 331,878 331,878 5725 19/07/2003
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/2006 - 48,579 48,579 5500 05/06/2009
Total 234,146 380,457 614,603
Steven Sharp
Performance Share Plan’ 25/07/2005 234,146 ~ 234,146 35875 25/7/2008
19/07/2006 - 331,878 331,878 5725 19/07/2009
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/2006 - 64,772 64,772 5500 05/06/2009
Restncted Share Plan® 24/06/2005 80,000 - 90,000 3520 24/07/2007
Total 324,146 396,650 720,796

¥ The number of performance shares 1 the maxsmum (100%) of the award that could be recewvabla by the executive i tha EPS performance conditions are fully met
as outlined on page 46

? Full detalls of the Deferred Share Bonus Plan are set out on page 45

1 Greven Sharp was awarced thasa sharas before he was appointed an executive drector (Full detalls of the Restncted Share Plar are set out n Note 12 12 the financial
statements on page 74 of the Annual Report }

There has been no vesting cr lapses for any of the above plans dunng this financial year

Directors' Share Option Schemes

Maamum Maximum
options Cptions options
recoarvable at granted  rocewvabs at Option
Data of * Apnl dunng 31 March price Option
R grant 2006 the yaar 2007 [i)] period
Chief Executive
Stuart Rose
Executive Share Option Scheme! 20/07/2004 979,825 - 979,825 3470  20/07/07-18/07/14
SAYE 25/11/2005 4613 - 4,613 3430 01/91/11—30/06/11
Total 984,438 - 984,438
Executive directors
lan Dyson
SAYE 25/11/2005 4,613 - 4,613 3490 O1/01/11 - 30/06/1
Total 4613 - 4613
Steven Sharp
Executive Share Option Scheme! 20/07/2004 302,583 - 302,593 3470  20/07/07-19/07/14
24/11/2004 104,010 - 104,010 3365  24/11/07-23/11/14
SAYE 25/11/2005 2,678 - 2,679 3480  01/01/09-30/06/09
Total 409,282 - 409,282

1 The Executive Shara Options have not been held for three years and therefore cannot be exertised under the scheme niles Option prce 1s below the market value
on 31 March 2007 for all options, The performance entena attachsd o the Executve Share Option Scheme 1s deseribed on page 46

Thare have been No exercises or lapses for any of the gbove schemes dunng this financal year

The market price of the shares at the end of the financial year was 676 5p, the highest and lowost share price dunng the financial year were 736 5p and
538 5p respectvely

For bath the tables above, the explanation of the performance critena attached 1o the Parformance Sharo Plan and the Executive Share Opton Scheme
in Long Term Incentive Schemes on pagss 45 and 48 have been audited
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Performance graph
This graph llustrates the performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 over the past five years The FTSE 100 has been
chosen as it s a recognised broad equrty market index of which the Company has been a member throughout the period

Performance, as required by the legrislation 1s measured by Total Shareholder Return which 1s share price growth plus any
divdends paid

The above graph does not fonm part of the audited nformation of the Remuneration Report

Lows, Cotien

Approved by the Board

Louise Patten, Chairnan of the Remuneraticn Committee
London

21 May 2007
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Auditors’ report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financal
statements (the “financral staterments”) of Marks and Spencer
Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which comprise
the consolidated and Company ncome statements, the
consolidated and Company balance sheets, the consclidated
and Company cash flow statements, the consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense, the Company
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the related
group and parent company noles These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein
We have also audied the information in the Remuneration report
that 1s descnbed as having been audited

Respective responsibiities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual report,
the Remuneration report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

QOur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the
part of the Remuneration report to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including
the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s
members as a body m accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, in
gving this opiron, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report 18 shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be
audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given n the Group
directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we repon to you if, In our opinion, the company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects
the company's compliance with the nine provisions of the
Combined Code (2003) specified for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report If t does
not We are not required to consider whether the board’s
statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or
form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's corporate
governance procedures or 1ts nisk and control procedures
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We read other information contained in the Annual report and
consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited financial
statements The other information compnses only the Chairman's
foreword, the Chief Executive’s business review, the Financial
review, the Corporate governance statement, the unaudited part
of the Remuneration report, the Group finan¢ial record and the
Shareholder information We consider the implicat:ons for our
report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal Inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur
responsibilities do not extend to any other Information

Basis of audit opinton

We conducted our audt in accordance with international
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit Includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financizl statements and the part of the Remuneration report to
be audited It also includes an assessment of the sigruficant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the group's and
company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adeqguately
disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so’as to obtain all the
nformation and explanations which we constdered necessary

in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report to be audited are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty

or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to

be audited

Opinion
In cur opinion

+ the financial statements gve a true and farr view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group's and the parent company's affars
as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group's and the parent
company’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

¢ the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
repori to be audited have been property prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards
the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation, and

¢ the nformation given in the Group directars’ report 1s
consistent with the financal statements

gmwu/ay/((/‘f

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

21 May 2007
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Consolidated income statement

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
31 March 1 Apd
2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Revenue - continuing operations 23 8,588.1 7,797 7
Operating profit - continuing operations 23 1,0459 850 1
Finance income s 338 305
Financs costs 5 (143 0) (134 9)
Analysed between
Before exceptional finance costs 5 (112 6) (134 9)
Exceptional finance costs (30.4) -
Profit on ordinary activibes before taxation - continuing operations 4 9367 7457
Analysed between
Before property disposals and exceptional tems 965 2 751 4
Profit/(loss) on property disposals 3 1.9 57
Exceptional finarice costs 5 (304) -
Income tax expense 6 (277.5) (225 1)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation ~ continuing operations 659.2 5206
Profit from discontinued operation 7A 07 25
Profit for the year atiributable to shareholders 6599 5231
Basic earnings per share BA 39.1p 314p
Diuted earnings per share 88 38 5p 3t 1p
Basic earrings per share from continuing operations 8A 39.1p 313p
Diluted eamings per share from continuing operations 8B 38 5p 310p
Non-GAAP measure
Adjusted profit before taxation ({m} 1 965 2 751 4
Adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing operations BA 40.4p 31 4p
Adjusted diuted earnings per share from continuing operations 8B 39 8p 311p

Consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense

52 weaks 52 weeks
endad endad
31 March 1 Apvil
2007 2006
Notes £m E£m
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders 6599 523 1
Foreign currency translation differences (14.0) 111
Actuanal losses on retirement benefit deficit (8.6} {169 3)
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equity 74) 81)
- recycled and reported in net profit 107 (14)
— amount recognised in Inventones 2.1 38)
Tax on tems taken directly to equity . 245 807
Net gans/flosses) not recognised in the income staterment i 73 (85 8)
Total recognised income and expense for the year * 667 2 437 3
Prior year adjustment 1,25 48 4

Total recognised income and expense since last annual report 715.6
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at
| As at 1 Apnd
31 March 2006
2007 {restatecl)
Notes £m £m
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 194.1 1635
Property, plant and equipment 14 40445 35758
Investment property 15 25.1 385
Investment in joint venture 16 93 80
Other financial assets 17 30 33
Trade and other recewvables 18 247.0 2428
Deferrad tax assets 25 116 839

4534 6 4,116 8
Current assets

Inventones 416.3 3743
Other financial assets 17 50.9 488
Trade and other recenvables 18 196.7 21056
Denvative financial instruments 23 24 76 4
Cash and cash equivalents 19 180.1 3626
Assets of discontinued operation - 6956
8484  1,1421
Total assets 5,381.0 52589
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 20 1,043 8 867 8
Denvative financial instruments 23 83 80
Borrowings and other financial iabilities 2 461.0 10528
Current tax liabilities 87.3 587
Prowisions . 24 57 92
Liabilitres of discontinued operation -~ 205

16062 20170
Non-current habilities

Borrowings and other financial habiities 21 12345 11338
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 20 496 9 -
Retirerment benefit deficit 1 283.3 794 9
Trade and other payables 20 87.6 748
Derwvative financial instruments 23 02 95
Provisions 24 16.8 i91
Deferred tax habilities 25 7.3 61
2,126.6 2.0382
Total liabilities 33,7328 40552
Net assets 1,648.2 12037
EQUITY
Called up share capital — equity 26,27 424.9 4206
Share premium account 27 2029 162 3
Capital redemption reserve 27 2,685 2,1138
Hedging reserve 27 {4 4) 8 0)
Other reserve 27 (6,5422) (6,542 2)
' Retained earnings 27 53971 50572
Total shareholders' equity 1,646.8 1,2037
Minonty interest n equity A 1.4 -
Total equity I\ . 16482 1,207
- ———-—“_-'J v

' Approved by the Board
21 May 2007

Stuart Rose, Chief Executive
lan Dyson. Group Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow information

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

52 weoks

52 waeks

ended anded
31 March 1 Apnd
2007 2006
Notas £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations — continuing 20A 1,4426 11836
Cash generated from operations - discontinued 298 0.7 139
Tax pad (150 8) (101 5)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,2925 10960
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of subsidhary, net of cash disposed 43.8 -
Capital expenditure and financial investment 25C {712.8) {266 3)
Interest receved 132 129
Net cash outflow from investing activities (650 8) {253 4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pard (123 4) (142 8)
Excepiionat interest paid {21 6} -
Other debt financing 29D (479 2) {420 0)
Equity dividends pad (260 6) (204 1)
Other equity financing 20€ 9.2 558
Net cash outflow from financing activities (875.6) (711 1)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from activities (233 9) 1315
Effects of exchange rate changes (1.5) 16
Opening net cash 2824 149 3
Closing net cash 30A 470 2824
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT 52 weeks 52 weeks
ded dad
31 March ?nApd
2007 2006
5 £m £m
Opeming net debt (1,729.3) (2,277 2)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from activities (233 9) 1315
Cash outflow/{inflow) from increase/(decrease) i current financial assets 26 {10}
Cash outflow from decrease in debt financing 4792 4200
Debt financing net of kquid resources disposed with subsichary (16 8} -
Far value movement on denvatives 871.0 37
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme {non-cash) {495 6) -
Exchange and other non-cash movements (227) 11
Movement in net debt (2202 547 9
Closing net debt (1,9495) (1.729 3}
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Notes to the financial

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basts of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as
adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the
Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS

Following a change in external interpretation of IAS 12 - 'Income
Taxes' the Group's accounting policy for deferred tax now more
closely reflects the manner in which management expects to
recover or settle the carrying amounts of its buldings through
sale or use The opening balance sheet at 3 Apnl 2005 has
been restated to recognise £48 4m of additional deferred tax
assets and reserves There 1s no matenal impact of this change
on the income statement

The followsng IFRSs and amendments have been issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board but none 1s expected
to have a matenal impact on the results or net assets of the
Group

Amendment to 1AS 1 ~ 'Presentation of Financial Statemnents -
Capital Disclosures’ was 1ssued in August 2005 It introduces
new requirements for capital disclosures It 1s required to be
implemented by the Group from 1 Apnl 2007, and will have
no iImpact on the results or net assets of the Group

IFRS 7 ~ 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ was issued in
August 2005 It replaces IAS 32 - ‘Financial Instruments
Disclosure and Presentation’ with revised and additional
disclosures 1t 1s required to be implemented by the Group from
1 Apnl 2007, and will have no impact on the results or net
assets of the Group

IFRS 8 ~ ‘Operatng Segments’ was i1ssued in November 2006
It replaces 1AS 14 - 'Segmental Reporting’ and requires
operating segments to be disclosed on the same basis as that
used for mternal reporting It 1s required to be implemented by
the Group from 1 Apnl 2009, and wa!l have na impact on the
results or net assets of the Group

Amendment to |1AS 23 - ‘Borrowing Costs' was 1ssued in March
2007 It removes the option of immediately expensing borrowing
costs that are directly attnbutable to a qualdying asset and
requires such costs to be capitalised It 1s required to be
implemented by the Group from 1 Apnl 2009 but 1s not
expected to have a matenal impact on the results or net

assets of the Group

Marks and Spencer Scottish Lmited Partnership has taken
exemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership and Unkmited
Comparues (Accounts) Regulations 1993 (S 1993/1820) from
the requrrement to prepare and deliver accounts n accordance
with the Companies Act
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statements

A summary of the Company's and the Group's accounting
policies is given below

Accounting convention

The financtal statements are drawn up on the histornical cost
basis of accounting, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies set out below

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements ncorporate the financial
statements of Marks and Spencer Group plc and all its
subsidianes made up to the year end date Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financia! statements of subsidianes
to bring the accounting policies used into ine with those used
by the Group

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating pohcies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting nghts Subsidiary undertakings acauired dunng the
year are recorded using the acquistion method of accounting
and therr results included from the date of acquisition

The separable net assets, both tangible and intangible of the
newly acquired subsidiary undertakings are incorporated into
the financial statements on the basis of the farr value as at the
effective date of control

Results of subsidiary undertakings disposed of dunng the
financial year are included in the financial statements up to

the effective date of disposal Where a business component
representing a separate major line of business is disposed of,
or classified as held for sale, ¢t 1s classified as a discontinued
operation The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
cperation 1s shown as a single amount on the face of the
income statement, separate from the other results of the Group

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
tfransactions between Group companies are eliminated

Revenue

Revenue compnses sales of goods to customers outside the
Group less an appropnate deducton for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme voucher costs, and s
stated net of Value Added Tax and other sales taxes Sales of
furniture are recorded on delivery to the customer

Dwvidends

Final dmdends are recorded In the financial statements in the
penod in which they are approved by the Company’s
shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded n the penod in
which they are approved and pad

Pensions

Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK
employess and the majonty of employees overseas The assets
of these pension plans include a property partnership interest
and vanous equities and bonds The equrties and bonds are
managed by third-party investment managers and are held
separately in trust
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Notes to the financial statements contnwes

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Regular vatuations are prepared by independent professionally
qualfied actuanes in respect of the defined benefit schemes
These determine the level of contribution required to fund the
benefits set out In the rules of the plans and allow for the
periodic Increase of pensions in payment The service cost

of providing retirement benefits to employees dunng the year,
together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service,
1S charged to operating profit in the year

A credit representing the expected return on the assets of the
retirement benefit schemes dunng the year 1s included within
nterest This is based on the market value of the assets of the
schemes at the start of the financial year

A charge 1s also made within interest representing the expected
increase 1n the liabilities of the retirement benefit schemes during
the year This anses from the habilities of the schemes beng one
year closer to payment

The difference between the market value of the assets and the
present value of accrued pension llabilities 1s shown as an asset
or liability in the balance shest

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in
the statement of recognised income and expense

Intangible assets

A Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess
of the cost of acquisitions over the Group's interest in the
far value of the identfiable assets and labilities (including
intangible assets) of the acquired entity at the date of the
acquisition Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset and
assessed for impairment at least annually Any impairment
Is recognised immedately n the income statement

Upon disposal of a subsidiary the attnbutable goodwill 1s
included In the calculation of the profit or loss ansing on
disposal Goodwilt wiitten off to reserves under UK GAAP
prior to 31 March 1998 has not been renstated and 1s not
included in detenmining any subsequent profit or loss on
disposal

B Brands
Acquired brand values are held on the balance sheet at cost
and amortised on a straight-line basis over ther estimated
usefu! lives Any impairment in value is recognised
immedchately in the income statement

C Software intangibles
Where computer software I1s not an integral part of a related
item of computer hardware, the software 1s treated as an
intangible asset Capralised software costs include external
direct costs of matenal and services and the payroll and
payroll-related costs for employees who are directly
associated with the project

Capnalised software development costs are amortised on
a straight-line basis over thetr expected economic lives,
normally between three to five years

Property, plant and equipment

A Land and buldings
The Group’s policy 1s to state property, plant and
equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation and
not to revalue property for accounting purposes

B Interest
Interest 1s not capitalised

C Depreciation
Depreciation 1s provided to wiite off the cost of tangible
non-current assets (including mvestment properties). less
estimated residual values, by equal annual mstalments as
follows

* freehold land not depreciated.

+ freehold and leasehold buldings with a remaining lease
term over 50 years depreciated to their residual value
over therr estimated remaining economic hves,

* |easehold buldings with a remaining lease term of less
than 50 years over the remaining penod of the leass,

s fit-out 10-25 years according to the estimated life of
the asset, and

» fixtures, fittngs and equipment 3-15 years according
o the estmated ife of the asset

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed
annually Depreciation is charged on alt additions to, or
disposals of, depreciating assets In the year of purchase or
disposal Any impairment i value s charged to the income
statement
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

D Assets held under leases
Where assets are financed by leasing agreements where the
nsks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group
(finance leases') the assets are treated as if they had been
purchased outnght and the corresponding liability to the
leasing company s Included as an obligation under finance
leases Depreciation on leased assets 1s charged to the
income statement on the same basis as owned assets
Leasing payments are treated as consisting of Capital and
Interest elements and the interest I1s charged to the income
statement

All other leases are 'operating leases' and the costs In
respect of operating leases are charged con a straight-line
basis over the lease term The value of any lease incentive
receved to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free
penods) is recognised as deferred income and 1s released
over the iife of the lease

Investment properties
Investment properties are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss

Leasehold prepayments
Payments made to acquire leasehold land are included in
prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life of the lease

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity settled share-based payments to
certain employees A far value for the equrty settled share
awards I1s measured at the date of grant The Group measures
the farr value using the valuation technique most appropnate to
value each class of award, erther the Black-Scholes or Monte
Carlo method

The far value of each award i1s recognised as an expense over
the vesting penod on a straight-ne basis, after allowing for an
estimate of the share awards that will eventually vest The lavel
of vesting Is reviewed annually, and the charge I1s adjusted to
reflect actual and estmated levels of vesting

Inventonies
Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value using the retal method All inventones are finished goods

Foreign currencies

The resuilts of overseas subsidianes are translated at the
weighted average of monthly exchange rates for sales and
profits The balance sheets of overseas subsidianes are
translated at year end exchange rates The resulting exchange
differences are dealt with through reserves and reported in the
consolidated statement of recognised Income and expense

Transactions denominated in foreign cumrencies are translated
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign
currency assets and habilihes held at the balance sheet date
are translated at the closing balance sheet rate The resutting
exchange gan or loss is recognised within the income statement
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Taxation
The tax charge comprises current tax payable and deferred tax

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the amounts
payable to tax authonties in respect of the Group's taxable
profits and is based on an interpretation of existing tax laws

Deferred tax i1s recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or liability n the balance sheet
and its tax base at tax rates that are expected to apply when
the asset 1s realised or the habilty settled, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s not recognised in respect of

e the imhial recogrution of goodwill that 1s not tax deductible,
and

» the inthal recognition of an asset or hability in a transachon
which Is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction does not affect accounting or taxable profits

Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax
asset can be utiised

Deferred tax liabilities are not prowided in respect of
undistributed profits of non-UK resident subsidianes where (i) the
Group 1s able to control the timing of distnbution of such profits
and (i) t 15 not probable that a taxable distnbution will be made
n the foreseeable future

Financial instruments

Financial assets and habiities are recogrised on the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

A Trade receivables
Trade recevables are recorded at therr nominal amount less
an allowance for any doubtful debts

B Investments and other financtal assets
Investments and other financial assets are classified as either
‘avatlable for sale’, ‘far value through profit or loss’ or ‘heid
to matunty’ They are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs, with the exception of 'far value through
profit and loss’ Where secunties are designated as ‘far
value through profit or loss’, gans and losses ansing from
changes in far value are ncluded in net profit or ioss for the
penod For ‘avalable for sale' investrments, gan or losses
ansing from changes i far value are recogrised directly
n equity, untl the secunty s disposed of or Is determined
to be mpaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recogrused in equity is included in the net profit
or loss for the penod Equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose far
value can not be rehably measured by other means are held
at cost 'Held to matunty' investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
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Notes to the financial statements contned

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investments tn subsidianes are held at cost less impairment
Dwidends received from the pre-acquisition profits of
subsidianes are deducted from the cost of investment

C Classification of financial iabilities and equity
Financial habilities and equrty instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arangements
entered into An equrty Instrument 1s any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of s liabilities

D Bank borrowings
Interest-beaning bank loans and overdrafts are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settiement or
redempuon and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on
an effective interest rate method and are added to the
carrying amount of the mstrument to the extent that they are
not settled in the penod in which they anse

E Loan notes
Long-term loans are held at amortised cost unless the loan
1s hedged by a denvative financial instrument In which case
hedge accounting treatment will apply

F Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at therr nominal value

G Equity instruments
Equity instrements issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group primardy uses Interest rate swaps and forward
foreign currency contracts to manage its exposures to fluctuating
interest ana foreign exchange rates  These instruments are intially
recognised at fair value on the trade date and are subsequently
remeasured at their far value at the balance sheet date The
method of recogrising the resutting gain or loss 1s dependent
on whether the denvative Is designated as a hedging instrument
and the nature of the item being hedged The Group designates
denvatives as either

¢ a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change
in the cash flows of a recognised asset or llability {a cash
flow hedge), or

* ahedge of the exposurs to change in the far value of a
recognised asset or liability {a far value hedge)}, or

* a hedge of the exposure on the translation of net
investments in foreign entities {a net investment hedge)

Underlying the definition of tair value i1s the presumption that the
Group is a gaing concern without any ntention of matenally
curtailing the scale of its operations

For those of the Group's denvative instruments stated at far
value, the far valus will be determined by the Group applying
discounted cash flow analysis using quoted market rates as an
nput into the valuation model

In determining the far value of a denvative, the appropnate
quoted market price for an asset held s the bid pnce, and for
a labilty issued 1s the offer pnce

At inception of 2 hedging relationship, the hedging nstrument
and the hedged tem ars documented and prospective
effectveness testing is performed Durng the Ife of the hedging
relationship, effectveness testing 1s continued to ensure the
instrument remains an effective hedge of the transaction

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the following conditions
must be met

» formal designation and documentation at inception of the
hedging relationship, detaiing the nsk management objectve
and strategy for undertaking the hedges,

+ the hedge 1s expected to be highly effectve in achieving
cffsetting changes n far value or cash flows attnbutable
tc the hedged risk,

* f{or a cash flow hedge, a forecast transaction that 1s the
subject of the hedge must be highly probable,

« the effectiveness of the hedge can be rellably measured, and

+ the hedge 1s assessed on an ongoing basis and determined
actually to have been highly effective throughout rts life

A Cash fiow hedges
Changes in the far value of denvative financial Instruments
that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly in equity and any ineffective
portion 1s recognised immediately n the income statement
If the firm commitment or forecasted transaction that is the
subject of a cash flow hedge results in the recognition of an
asset or a lability, then, at the time the asset or bability is
recognised, the associated gains or losses on the dervative
that had previously been recognised In equity are included
n the imittal measurement of the asset or liability For hedges
that do not resutt n the recognition of an asset or a liability,
amounts deferred In equity are recognised in the income
statement in the same penod in which the hedged items
affect net profit or loss

B Farr value hedges
For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes in the fair
value, the hedged tem s adjusted for changes in far value
attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with the corresponding
entry in profit or loss Gams or losses from remeasunng
the dervative, or for non-denvatives the foreign currency
component of its carying amount, are recognised in profit
or loss

C Net investment hedges
Changes in the fair value of denvative financial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedges of the net
nvestments ara recognised directly in equrty and any
neffective portion is recognised immedsately in the
income statement

Changes i the fair value of dervative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogrised in the
income statement as they anse
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or I1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer quakfies
for hedge accounting At that tme, any cumulative gain or loss
on the hedging mstrument recognised in equity 1s retained n
equity until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged
transaction 1s No longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gain or loss recognised In equrty 1s transferred to net profit or
loss for the penod

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge ncome statement
translation exposures

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of pohcies and reported amounts Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical expenence and other factors including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets
and habilities are discussed below

A Imparrment of goodwill

The Group s required to test, at least annually, whether
goodwill has suffered any imparment The recoverable
amount 1s determined based on value in use calculations
The use of this method requires the estimation of future
cash flows and the choice of a sutable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of these cash flows
Actual outcomes could vary

B Imparment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
if events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the
carmying amount may not be recoverable When a review
for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is
determined based on value in use calculations prepared
on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates

C Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Deprecration 1s provided so as to write down the assets
to therr residual values over thesr estimated useful fives as
set out above The selection of these residual values and
estimated Iives requires the exercise of management
judgement

D Post retirement benefits
The determination of the pension cost and defined benefit
obligation of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes
depends on the selection of certain assumptions which
include the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth,

mortalty and expected retum on scheme assets Differences

ansing from actual expenences or future changes in
assumptions will be reflected in subsequent penods See
note 11 for further details
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E Refunds and loyalty scheme accruals
Accruals for sales returns and loyalty scheme redemption
are estmated on the basis of histoncal returns and
redemptions and these are recorded s0 as to allocate them
to the same penod as the onginal revenue s recorded
These provisions are reviewed regularty and updated to
reflect management's latest best estimates, however, actual
returns and redemptions could vary from these estmates

Non-GAAP performance measures

The directars believe that the ‘adjusted’ profit and earnings per
share measures provide addrtional useful mformation for
shareholders on the undertying performance of the business
These measures are consistent with how business performance
1s measured internally The adjusted profit before tax measure 1s
not a recogrused profit measure under IFRS and may not be
directly comparable with ‘adjusted’ profit measures used by
other comparies The adjustments made to reported profit
before tax are to exciude the following

* exceptional income and charges These are largely
one-off n nature and therefors create volatilty in reported
earnngs, and

¢ profits and losses on the disposal of properties These can
vary signficantly from year to year, again creating volatiity
in reported earnings
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2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group's pnimary reporting segments are geographic, with the Group operating In two geographic areas being the UK and
International The International segment consists of the Marks & Spencer owned businesses in the Republic of Irefand and Hong
Kong, together with franchised operations The geographic segments disclose revenus, operating profit and segment assets and
llabikties by destination and reflect management responsibility Within each geographic segment the Group sells both foed and
general merchandise and secondary segment disclosure 1s given for revenue Given that both food and general merchandise

are sold from the same locations it is not practical to provide segmental information on operating assets and capital expendrture
at this fevel

The geographic segment results are as follows

RAevenus Operating profit Segment assets Segment labilities
2006
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 {restatad) 2007 2006
£m im gm m £m £m £m £m
UK Retad
Before property disposals 797768 72750 956 5 790 1
Profit/(loss) on property disposals - - 02 (5 6)
78775 72750 856.7 7845 49884 4,4796 {1,811.4) (16307
International Retail
Owned stores! 3695 3242 45.4 358
Franchised stores 2411 1985 421 299
Before property disposals 610.6 5227 87.5 857
Profit/{loss) on property disposals - - 1.7 {01
610.6 5227 892 656 2957 2145 {81.7) (81 5)
Total 8,588 1 77977 10459 8501 52841 46941 (1,873.1) (1,7122)
Assets/(liabilities) from
discontinued operation? - 695 - (20 5)
Total non-operating assets/(labilities)® 96.9 4953 (1,859.7) (2,322 5)
Total assets/(habilities}) 53810 52589 (3,732.8) (4.0552)

1 Owned stores consist of the Marks & Spencer owned businesses n the Republic of Ireland and Hong Kong
2 The assets and iabrlites n the comparative penod relate to Kings Super Markets
3 Non-operating assels and kabdibes include batances in respect of financing and taxaton

Revenue orginates n the following geographical segments United Kingdom £8,218 &m {last year £7,473 5m) and international
£369 5m (last year £324 2m) The value of goods exported from the UK, indluding shipments to international subsidianes, amounted
to £438 Om (last year £367 6m)

Included within UK Retall 1s an operating profit of £19 8m (last year £9 6m) in respect of fees receved from HSBC m relation to
M&S Money

Other segment tems

2007 2006
United United

Kingdem Intermatione] Total Kngdom Imtamational Total

) Em £m £m m £m tm
Revenue

General Merchandise 4,002.8 4239 44287 36518 3660 14,0178

Foods 39747 186.7 4,1614 36232 1567 3,7799

79775 6106 8,5881 72750 5227 7,797 7

Expenditure on intangble assets (see note 13) 465 - 48.5 107 02 109

Expenditure on property, plant and equpment {see note 14} 7189 270 745.9 307 3 141 3214

Amortisation {see note 13} 14.2 - 14.2 127 - 127

Depreciation (see note 14) 258.4 101 2685 2525 88 2613

Since last year end, gifts have been reclassified from both clothing and food to be incorporated within home  Accordingly, £7 4m
of revenue has besn reclassified from foods to general merchandise Within general merchandise £20 8m of revenue has been

reclassified between clothing and home
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3 EXPENSE ANALYSIS
2007 2006
Em £m
Revenue 8,588 1 7,797 7
Cost of sales (5,246.9) (4,8121)
Gross profit 33412 29856
Seling and marketing expenses {1,779.2) (1,625 7)
Administrative expenses (584 1) (522 7)
Other operating income 66 1 186
Profit/loss) on property disposals 1.9 57)
Operating profit 1,0459 8501

The seling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses In the table above are further analysed in the table below

2007 2006
Selling and Adminl- Seling and Admirs-
marketing strutive marketng strativa
oxpenses expanses Total BXpenses axpenses TJotal
£m £m £m Im £m _fm
Employee costs (see note 10A4) 928 8 2453 1,174 1 8449 2283 10732
Occupancy costs 310.5 62.4 372.9 2762 432 3254
Reparrs, renewals and maintenance of property 55.4 191 745 730 17 2 a02
Depreciation and amortisation 264 4 18.3 2827 2435 305 2740
Other costs 2201 239.0 459.1 188 1 197 5 3856
Operating expenses 1,779 2 584 1 23633 16257 5227 21484
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4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 2007 2006
£m £m
The following items have been included in arrving at profit before taxation
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment
- Owned assets 266.8 259 2
— Under finance leases 1.7 21
Amortisation of intangibles 14.2 127
(Profit)loss on property disposals {19 57
Operating lease rentals payable
- Property 143 4 127 1
- Fixtures, fitings and equipment 7.2 85
Exceptional finance costs (see note 5) 304 -

Included in administrative expenses is the audrtors’ remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audtt services, as follows

2007

2006

£m £m
Statutory audit services
Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated accounts 03 03
Audit of subsidiary comparies 08 08
11 11
Non-audit related services
Other services pursuant to legislation 01 g1
Tax advisory services 02 03
Other services 0.2 01
08 05

In addition to the above, fees in respect of the annual audtt of the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme were £0 1m
(last year £0 1m)
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5 FINANCE COSTS/INCOME 2007 2006
£m £m

Finance costs:

Interest payable on bank borrowings 41 42
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bank loans 1.5 23
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility 8.8 77
Interest payable on medium term notes 77.5 96 2
Interest payable on secuntised loan notes 190 203
Interest payable on finance leases 22 23
Dmdend on non-equity B shares 0.2 23
Unwinding of discount on Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Penston Scheme 1.3 -

1126 1353

Less amounts included in profit from discontinued operation - 0 4)
Before exceptional finance costs 1126 134 9
Exceptional finance costs? 304 -
Finance costs 1430 134 9
Finance income:

Bank and other interest receivable 130 134
Pension finance income (net) (see note 11 208 175
Farr value hedges? - 02

338 311

Less amounts iIncluded in profit from discontinued operation - (0 9)]
Finance income 338 305
Net finance costs? 100.2 104 4

1 The exceptional finance costs represent the unarmortised transaction costs, 8 one-off make whole premium and the cancaliation of the swaps ansing on tha redemption
of £317 2m of secured bonds These bonds were redeemed N order 10 release properties for use N the Emited parinership wath the Marks 8 Spencer UK Pension

Scheme Sea note 21 for further details of the bond redermption

? Last year inciudes a far value gain on hedging nstruments of £67 2m and a comesponding far value 10$3 on underlying medum terrn notes of £67 Om, which were

designated nto & hedging relabonship As at year end thera were no far value hedges

* Where applicable. interest payable amounts are shown nat of therr assigred interest rate dervative The far values of these denvatives have been reported as a net

figure under nterest ncome

6 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A Taxation charge

2007 2006
£m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 30% (last year 30%)
- current year 1724 i503
~ current year tax on exceptional finance costs (6.5) -
— pnor years 6.1 (20}
172.0 148 3
Overseas current taxation 75 53
Tota! current taxation 1795 153 6
Deferred tax {see note 25)
~ current year 1082 718
- pnor years (102) {03
Total deferred taxation 980 715
Total income tax expense 277.5 225 1
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6 INCOME TAX EXPENSE continued

B Taxation reconcihation

2007 2008
. £m £m
Profit before tax 936.7 7457
Taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 30% (jast year 30%) 281.0 2237
Depreciation and charges on non-qualifying fixed assets 54 102
Other income and expenses not taxable or deductible (1.0) 27
Tax on exceptional finance costs not deductible 2.8 -
Overseas profits taxed at lower rates (6.4) 38
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior penods (4.1) (23
Total income tax expense 277.5 2251

The peost-exceptional effective tax rate was 29 6% (last year 30 2%) and the pre-exceptional effective tax rate was 29 4%
(last year 30 2%)

7 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 31 March 20086, the Group announced the sale of Kings Super Markets Inc to a US investor group for $61 5m excluding cash in
the business at the date of disposal The disposal of the business was completed on 28 Aprd 2006

A Profit from discontinued operation
2007 2006

L £m £mn
Revenue 13.0 228 2
Cost of sales (8.2) (144 7)
Gross profit 4.8 835
Net operating expenses (4.5) (80 5)
Net interest receivable - 02
Profit before taxatior 03 32
Taxation on resutts - 07
Profit after taxation 03 25
Gain on disposal of subsidiary net assets 04 -
Taxation - -
Net gain on disposal 04 -
Profit from discontinued operation 0.7 25

B Expenditure, depreciation and amortisation

The following items have been excluded from the segmental disciosures in note 2

2007 2006
7 £m m
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment - 54

Depreciation 0.3 63
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share I1s based on earnings after tax and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
In issue dunng the year

The adjusted earnings per share figures have also been calcutated based on earrungs excluding the effect of property disposals and
exceptional items These have been calculated to allow the shareholders to gan an understanding of the undertying trading |
performance of the Group ’

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue Is adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutve potential ordinary shares The Group has only one class of dilutive potential ordinary shares being those share options granted
to employees where the exercise pnce 1s less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares durng the year

Details of the adjusted earrings per share are set out below

2007 2006
£m £m
Earnings after tax 6599 523 1 ;
Profit from discontinued operation . o7 (2 5)
Earnmings after tax ~ continuing 659.2 520 6 !
Property disposals (net of tax) 4 20 ‘
Exceptional finance costs {net of tax) 239 - ‘
Adjusted earnings after tax - continuing 6817 522 6 !
m m .
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1,688.6 16670 ‘
Potentially dilutive share options under Group's share option schemes 26.3 145 ‘
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 1,7149 16815 }
A Basic earnings per share }
2007 2008 ‘
Weighied average number of ordinary shares in issue {milions}) 16886 16670 }
|
|
Basic earnings per share (pence) 391 314
Profit from discontinued operation per share {pence) - {01}
Basic earnings per share — continuing (pence}) 39.1 313
Property disposals per share (pence) {¢ 1) 01
Exceptional finance costs per share (pence) 14 -
Adjusted basic earnings per share - continuing (pence) 404 314
B Diluted earnings per share
2007 2006
Weighted average number of diuted ordinary shares (milions) 1,71149 186815
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 38.5 311
Profit from discontinued operation per share {pence) - 01}
Diluted earnings per share ~ continuing (pence) 385 310
Property disposals per share (pence) {0.1) 01
Exceptional finance costs per share (pence} 1.4 -

Adjusted diluted earnings per share - continuing (pence} 398 311




66 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC www marksandspencer.com/annusalreport2007

Notes 1o the financial statements conmues

9 DIVIDENDS 2007 2006 2007 2006
- per share per share £m £m

Diwvidends on equity ordinary shares

Paid final dividend 9.2p 7 5p 154 8 1243

Paid ntenm dmdend 6 3p 48p 106.0 798

15.5p 123p 260.8 2041

In addrition the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 of 12 Op per share amounting
to a dwvidend of £204 Om 1t will be paid on 13 July 2007 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 1 June 2007

in me with the requirements of IAS 10 - ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’, this dwvidend has not been recogrised wihin
these results

10 EMPLOYEES

A Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees wers

2007 2006
Centinuing Discontinued Conunung  Discontinued
operations oparation Total operatons opsration Total
_ fm £m £m £m m £m
Wages and salaries 943.8 - 943.8 856 3 362 B892 5
Social securnty costs 757 - 757 643 33 67 6
Other pension cests 111.9 - 1119 969 13 98 2
Share-based payments 273 - 27.3 247 - 247
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 251 - 251 331 23 354
Capitalised staff costs o7 - 9n 2 1) - (21}
Aggregate remuneration 1,174 1 - 11,1741 10732 431 1,116 3
Details of key management compensation are gven in note 320
B Average number of employees
2007 2006
UK stores
Management and supervisory categones 5,235 4,601
Other 64,074 57,687
UK head office
Management and supervisory categores 2,396 2,325
Cther 850 732
Overseas 3,316 2,959
Discontinued operation - 2,006
Total average number of employees 75,871 70,310

if the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal working week, the equvalent average number of full-time
employees for continung operations would have been 52,670 (last year 46,989)

C Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments of directors of the Company are summansed below Further details are given in the Remuneration report on
pages 44 to 50

2007 2006
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 5,369 4,249
Termination payments - 622

The emoluments exclude payments tc former directors of £307,000 {ast year £246,000}
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of ts UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
This has a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Apnl 2002, and a defined contribution
section which has been open to new members with effect from 1 Apnl 2003 Further details of the Pension Scheme can be found
on page 30

The defined benefit section operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 27,000 active members {last year 31,000),
57,000 deferred members (last year 57,000) and 37,000 pensioners (last year 38,000) At the year end, the defined centnbution
section had some 7,000 active members (last year 5,000} and some 1,000 deferred members {last year nif)

The Group also operates a smalf funded defined benefit pensicn scheme in the Republic of Ireland Retrement benefits also include
a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded pension plans

Within the total Group retirement benefit cost of £91 1m (last year £80 7m), £78 Om (last year £69 1m) relates to the UK defined
benefit section, £7 6m (last year £5 6m) to the UK defined contnbution section and £5 5m {ast year £6 Om) to other retirement
benefit schemes

A Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities

2007 2006

£m £m
Total market value of assets 52275 46062
Present value of scheme habifities . (5,487.0) (5,381 3)
Funded pension plan deficit (259 5) (775 1)
Unfunded pension plans (1.2) (17)
Post-retirement healthcare (22 6) (18 1)
Retirement benefit deficit (283.3) (794 9)

B Financial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK defined benefit Pension Scheme was camed out at 31 March 2006 and showed a deficit of
£704 Om The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuanal valuations of the other post-retirement
schemes have been updated by independent qualified actuanes to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 — ‘Retirement
Benefits' in order to assess the labilities of the schemes

2007 2006
% %
Rate of increase in salares 3.7 37
Rate of increase mn pensions in payment for service
- pre Apni 1997 2.6 24
- between Apnl 1997 and July 2005 30 29
— post July 2005 23 21
Discount rate 53 49
Inflation rate 30 29
Long-term healthcare cost increases 80 79

The amount of the deficit vanes if the main financial assumptions ¢change, particulary the discount rate If the discount rate
increased/decreased by 0 1% the 1AS 19 deficit would decrease/increase by ¢ £100m
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued

C Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are In line with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of the Scheme One of the

most significant demographic assumptions underying the valuation 1s mortality The post-retirement montality assumptions are based
on an analysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the Scheme for the penod tc March 2006 updated to allow for anticipated
longevity mprovements over the subsequent year The specific mortality rates used are based on the PMAS2 and PFAS2 tables,
adjusted to allow for the expenence of scheme pengioners The Iife expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2007 2006
Years Yoars
Current pensioners (at age 65) ~ males 21.0 188
Current pensioners (at age 65) - females 235 226
Future pensioners {at age 65) — males 21.9 198
Future pensioners (at age 65) - females 24.3 236
D Analysis of assets and expected rates of return
The major categones of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are
2007 2008
% %
Property pantnership interest 9 -
UK equities 16 17
Overseas equities 27 30
Government bonds 7 16
Corporate bonds (Tnple B or above) 4 27
Cash and other - 10
100 100
The expected long-term rates of return are
2007 2006
% %
Property partnership interest 65 -
UK equities 84 80
Cverseas equities 84 80
Government bonds 47 43
Corporate bonds (Tnple B or above) 5.3 49
Cash and other - 45
Overall expected return 66 62

The overall expected return on assets assumption is dernved as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main
asset classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histoncal performance analysis, the forward looking
views of financial markets (as suggested by the vields avalable) and the views of investment organisations Consideration is also
given to the rate of return expected to be avalable for renvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indiirectly held 463,964 (last year 394,672) ordinary shares in the Company through its investment in an
Aquila Life UK Equity Index Fund
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued

E Analysis of amount charged against profits

2007 2006
. o £m £m
Operating cost
Current service cost! 1139 1099
Curtalment gan . {2.0) (13 0)
’ 1119 969
Finance cost
Expected return on plan assets (282 0) {265 5)
Interest on scheme habilities 2612 248 0
Net finance income (20.8) (17 5)
Discontinued operations
Service cost and finance income of discontinued operation - 13
Total cost of reirement benefits 91.1 807
1 (ncludes £8 6m flast year £6 3m) in refation to defined contnbubion plans
F Scheme assets
Changes in the far value of the scheme assets are as follows
2007 2006
. £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 46062 3,9568
Expected return on scheme assets’ 2820 2658
Employer contributions?? 611.3 1302
Benefits pad {191.8) {164 2)
Transfer on disposal of Financial Services - 32 0)
Actuanal (loss)/gain (80.4) 454 3
£xchange movement 0.2 14
Oiscontinued operation - 62
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 5,227.5 46062

1 The actual return on schermne assets was £201 6m {ast year £720 2m) Last year's expected return includoes £0 4m in respect of the discontinued operation

2 Tha contribution for 2006/07 incudes the additional contnbution of the Property Partnership Interest of £500 1m transferred into the UK defined benefit pension scheme
on 14 March 2007 and an additional cash contribution of £40 3m paid 1n Apnl 2007 to ncrease contnbubons from 15 8% to 27 0% (last year an addrbonal cash
contnbution of £51 Om was paid » Apal 2005)

1 Future contnbutions to the UK scheme will be mada &t the rate of 27 0% of pensionable satanes up to the next fufl actuanal valuation The Group expects to contnbute
£88 7m 1o defined benefit schemes for the year ended 30 March 2008
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11 RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued
G Retirement benefit obligations

Changes in the present value of retrement benefit obligations are as follows

2007 2006
o £m £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 5,401.1 4,632 8
Current service cost 1139 1112
Curtadment gain (20} {130)
Interest cost? 2612 248 4
Benefits pad (191 8} (164 2)
Transfer on disposal of Financial Services - (32 0)
Actuana! {(gain)/loss (71 8} 6236
Exchange movement 02 13
Discontinued operation - (70)
Present value of obligation at end of year 55108 54011
Analysed as
Present value of pension scheme kabilities 54870 53813
Unfunded pension plans 12 17
Post-retirement heatthcare 22,6 181
Present value of obligation at end of year 55108 54011

1 {ast ygar's nterest cost includes £0 4m n respect of the discontnuad operaton

H Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity

2007 2006

£m £m

Loss at start of year (927 0} (757 7}

Net actuanal losses recognised in the year (8 6) (169 3)

Loss at end of year (935 6} (927 0)
| History of expenence gamns and losses

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

£m £m £m fm £m

Expenence adjustments ansing on scheme assets (80 4) 454 3 774 4019 {713 3)

Expenence gains/(losses) ansing on scheme habiities 18.8 200 {24 0) {30 3) 160

Changes in assumptions underiying the present value of scheme labilties 530 {643 6} {131 5) (157 8) (196 1)
Actuanal (losses}/gains recognised In equity {8.6) {169 3) (78 1) 2138 (893 4)
Farr value of scheme assets 52275 46062 38568 36342 26385
Present value of schems liabilities (5,487.0) (53813 46110y (4,2801) (3,8881)

Pension scheme deficit

250.5) (7751) (6542) (6459

{1,249 6}
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The charge for share-based payments anses across the following schemes
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2007 2006

Notes £m £m
Save As You Earn Share Option Schems 124 100 102
Executive Share Option Scheme 128 3.1 65
Performance Share Plan 12C 741 25
Deferred Share Bonus Plan 120 53 20
Restrcted Share Plan 12E 13 18
Executive Share Matching Plan 12F - 04
United Kingdom Share Incentive Plan 12G 04 13
Share Matching Deal Plan 12H 0.1 -
Total share-based payment charge 273 247

Detalls of the option and share schemes that the Group operates are provided in the Remuneration report on pages 44 to 50

A Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financral

year to those employees who enter Into an Inland Revenue approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings contract Infand Revenue
rules Imit the maxarmum amount saved to £250 per month The pnce at which options may be offered 1s 80% of the market price
for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normmally be exercised dunng the penod of six months
after the completion of the SAYE contract, either three or five years after entenng the Scheme

2007 2006

Number of  Weighted average Number of Weghtad average

optlons exercise price options BX8rcIse pRce

Qutstanding at beginning of the pencd 40,403,625 261.6p 52,188,263 2350p
Granted 6,569,527 559.0p 8,528,770 349 0p
Exercised {11,814,068) 232.4p (14,658,839) 206 9p
Farferted (1,837,012) 325.5p (4,270,037) 253 6p
Expired (280,456} 258 Op (1,384,532) 397 7p
Qutstanding at end of the penod 33,241,616 327.6p 40,403,625 261 6p
Exercisable at end of penod 726,615 243 4p 3.897,065 226 7p

For SAYE share options exercised dunng the penod, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 698 8p

{last year 472 5p)

The fair values of the options granted dunng the year have been calculated using the Biack-Scholes model assuming the nputs

shown below
2007 2006
3 year plan 5 year plan 3 year plar 5 year plan
Grant date Nov 06  Nov 06 Nov 05 Nov 05
Share price at grant date 698p 698p 436p 436p
Exercise pnce 559p 559p 34%9p 348p
Option iife in years 3years Syears 3 years S years
Risk free rate 5.4% 5.3% 4 3% 42%
Expected volatiity 21.5% 27.5% 25 8% 29 8%
Expected dividend yeld 2.2% 22% 27% 27%
Farr value of option 200.6p 247.8p 120 6p 143 6p

Volatiity has been estimated by taking the historic volatity in the Company's share pnce over a three or five-year penod

The resutting far value 1s expensed over the service penod of three or five years on the assumption that 15% of three-year options
and 20% of five-year options will lapse over the service pencd as employees leave the Company
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Qutstanding options granted under the United Kingdom Employees’ Save As You Earn Option Scheme are as follows
Warghtad average remaning

Number of options contractual ife fyears) Option

Opbens grented 2007 2006 2007 2006 pnce
January 1999 - 164,580 - 03 324p
January 2000 161,410 3,295,357 03 13 223p
January 2001 3,048,712 4,485,640 13 21 156p
January 2002 227,479 3,775,553 03 13 250p
January 2003 3,495,808 3,923,986 13 21 283p
January 2004 4,484,581 9,238,136 2.2 22 228p
January 2005 6,834,424 7,189,193 23 33 280p
January 2006 7,713,616 8,321,180 31 41 349p
January 2007 8,375,585 - 4,0 - 559p
33,241,616 40,403,625 25 26 328p

B Executive Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Option Scheme, last approved by shareholders in 2008, the Board may offer options to
purchase ordinary shares i the Company to executive directors and senior employees at the market price on a date to be
determined prior to the date of the offer No further options may be granted under any schemes other than the 2005 scheme
No awards have been made under the 2005 scheme Further details are set out In the Remuneration report on page 46

Performance targets are assessed over a three-year penod from the date of grant with no ability to re-test any grants Once options
have vested they can be exercised during the penod up to ten years from grant date

2007 2008

- Number of  Weighted average Number of  Weighted average
options axarcise price optons BXBITISH PNCo

QOutstanding at beginning of the penod 18,135,466 333.5p 31,690,916 335 2p
Granted - - 1,491,046 352 Op
Exercised (5,522,018) 316 86p (9,683,033) 324 8p
Forfeited (589,781) 334 8p (4,338,398) 352 2p
Expired (6,550) 458 0p (1,025,065) 414 0p
Qutstanding at end of the penod 12,017,117 341.2p 18,135,466 333 5p
Exercisable at end of penod 3,537,471 328.4p 2,841,565 374 4p

For executive share options exercised dunng the penod, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 632 3p
(last year 423 4p)
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

The resutting fair value i1s expensed over the expected service penod of five years on the assumption that 30% of options will lapse
over the service penod as employees leave the Company

Outstanding options granted under all executive share option schemes are as follows

Waoighted average remaning
Number of options contraciual life (yaars}

Option
Options granted . 2007 2008 2007 o 3006 pnca
{1984 Scheme)
May 1996 - 13,100 - 01 458p
June 1997 5692 5,692 02 12 527p
{1997 Scheme)
June 1998 247,778 486,551 12 22 557p
November 1898 7,425 7,425 16 26 404p
June 1989 127,521 217,279 22 32 358p
(2000 Scheme)
September 2000 3,445 6,945 34 44 215p
June 2001 196,303 358,488 42 52 256p
December 2001 74,161 110,170 47 57 350p
(2002 Scheme)
June 2002 760,394 1,500,272 5.2 62 350p
November 2002 66,980 102,905 56 66 353p
January 2003 - 32,738 - 68 297p
June 2003 1,975,461 5,355,784 62 72 297p
November 2003 77,078 522,773 66 76 270p
January 2004 - 96,884 - 78 289p
February 2004 33,111 85,185 6.8 78 270p
July 2004 6,236,497 6,950,820 73 83 347p
November 2004 868,599 868,599 76 86 337p
June 2005 1,336,672 1,413,856 82 g2 352p

12,017,117 18,135,466 68 75 335p
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12 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS ccntinued

C Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan 1s the primary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior executives and was
first approved by shareholders n 2005 Under the Plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered The extent
to which the awards vest 1s based on earnings per share growth over three years Further detalls are set out in the Remuneration
report on page 45 Awards under this scheme have been made in 2004/05 and 2005/06

During the year, 3,511,040 shares (last year 3,694,559) were awarded under the Plan The weighted average far value of the shares
awarded was 572 9p (fast year 365 7p)

D Deferred Share Bonus Plan

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced In 2005/06 as part of the annual bonus scheme for approximately 450 of the most
senior managers As part of the bonus scheme, the managers are required to cefer a proportion of any bonus paid nto shares
which will be held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment,
and the value of any dividends earned during the deferred penod will be paid at the end of the penod  Further details are set out in
the Remuneraticn report on page 45

Durng the year, 1,923,413 shares were awarded under the Plan in relation to the 2005/06 annual bonus The far value of the shares
awarded was 550 Op

E Restricted Share Plan

A Restricted Share Plan was established In 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention of senmior employees who are vital to the
success of the business recovery and growth The Plan operates for senior executives below Executive Director level Awards under
the Plan are made as part of ongoing reviews of reward packages, and recrutment tools for new employees The shares are held in
trust for a penad of between one and three years, at which point they are released to the employes, subject to them still being n
employment

Dunng the year, 38,622 shares {last year 564,336) have been awarded under the Restncted Share Plan The weighted average farr
value of the shares awarded was 578 Op {last year 331 1p)

F Executive Share Matching Plan

The Executive Share Matching Plan for senior management was introduced In 2002, since when there have been annual awards
In 2002, 2003 and 2004 The Plan currently operates for one member of senior managerent, and 1 intended that no further
awards are made under *his Plan Participants were required to invest one-third of any annual bonus earned In shares of the
Company The pre-tax value of the invested bonus would be matched by an award of shares, with the extent of the match
determined by the Total Shareholder Return performance measure No awards have been made durng the year (last year nif)

G United Kingdom Share Incentive Plan
The Share Incentive Plan 15 a discretionary, all-employee plan, approved by the Inland Revenue, under which Freeshares may be
allocated by the Company The last award was made in July 2003

H Share Matching Deal Plan

The Share Matching Deal Pian was introduced in 2006 for those employees who were eligible to recewe a cash-only bonus The
scheme was riot open to those employees who participated in the Deferred Share Bonus Plan The Plan allows employees to nvest
a proportion of their bonus i1 shares of the Company These investment shares must be held by the participant for three years,
dunng which time they will recerve dividends At the end of the three-year holding penod, if the participant is stil in employment with
the Company, and stil helds the investment shares, they will receive one matching share for every four that they bought

Dunng the year, 41,086 matching shares have been awarded under the Share Matching Deal Plan, at a fair value of 536 4p
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer
software
Computer under
Goodwl Brands softwars  development Total
£m fm £m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2005
Cost or valuation 695 800 328 56 187 9
Accumulated amortisation - 27 (19 8) - (22 5)
Net book value 685 773 130 56 165 4
Year ended 1 Apnil 2006
Opening net book value 695 773 130 56 165 4
Additions - - 02 107 109
Transfers - - 95 9 5) -
Disposals - - - ©1) ©omn
Amortisation charge - 5 3) (7 4) - {12 7)
Closing net book value 695 720 153 67 1635
At 1 Apnil 2006
Cost or valuation 695 800 423 67 1985
Accumulated amortisation - 80) (27 O) - {350)
Net book value 695 720 153 67 1635
Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book value 695 72.0 153 67 163.5
Addrtions - - 03 46 2 46.5
Transfers - - 25.9 (25.9) -
Disposals - - (0.1) (1.6) 1.7
Amortisation charge - (5.3) (8.9) - (14 2)
Closing net book value 696 6687 325 254 194.1
At 31 March 2007
Cost or valuation 895 80.0 512 254 226.1
Accumulated amortisation - (13 3) {18.7) - {32 0)
Net book value 69.5 667 325 25.4 184 1

Goodwill relates to the acquisition of ‘per una’, which was acquired n Octcber 2004 and I1s not amortised, but tested annually for
imparrment with the recoverable amount baing determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use

calculations are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and changes n income and costs

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial forecasts approved by management covenng a three-year
penod, which takes account of both past perfermance and expectations for future market developments Cash flows beyond this
three-year pencd are exirapolated using a growth rate of 2 0%, which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for retail

businesses 1N the UK Management estimates the discount rate using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the nsks specific to retal businesses A pre-tax discount rate of 9 5% has been used

Brands consist of the ‘per una’ brand which 1s being amortised on a straight-line basis over a penod of 15 years
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets
Fixtures n the
Land and fittngs & course of
buricings aqupment  construction Tow
£m £€m £m m
At 3 Apnl 2005
Cost 2,4120 3,1621 216 55957
Accumulated depreciation 827 (19268 - {2,009 5}
Net book value 2,3293 12353 216 35862
Year ended 1 Apnl 2008
Opening net book value 2,3283 11,2353 216 3,5862
Exchange difference 22 20 03 45
Addrtions! 347 2518 403 3268
Transfers - 203 (203 -
Disposals 34 1) ©2 - {40 3)
Assets of discontinued operations {11 4) 21 0) (14) (33 8)
Depreciation charge? (107) (256 9) - (267 6)
Closing net book value 23100 11,2253 405 35758
At 1 Apnl 2006
Cost 23022 83,2871 405 57198
Accumulated depreciation (822) (2,0818) - (2,1440)
Net book value 2,3100 1,2253 405 3,5758
Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book vaiue 2,3100 11,2253 405 3,5758
Exchange difference 27 {186) {0.2) {4 5)
Addtions?! 639 5787 1033 745.9
Reclassification from investment property (see note 15) 13.2 - - 13.2
Transfers 88 273 {36.1) -
Disposals 8 4) (107) - {17.1)
Depreciation charge? (13.9) {254.9) - (268 8)
Closing net book value 23729 1,5684.1 107.5 4,0445
At 31 March 2007
Cost 2,468 2 3,653.3 107.5 6,220.0
Accumulated depreciation (953) (2,089.2) - {2,184.5)
Net book value 23729 1,564.1 107.5 4,0445

1 ‘Additions’ includes £nil (last year £5 4m) in respect of the discontinued operation (see note 7)
2 Depreciation charge' includes £0 3m {last year £6 3m) in respect of the distontnued operaton {ses note 7)

The net book value above includes land and builcdings of £43 7m (last year £44 9m) and equipment of £16 4m (last year £5 Om)
whers the Group Is a lessee under a financs lease
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2007 2006
£m £m
Cost
At start of year 38.6 386
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment » {13 3) -
At end of year 253 386
Depreciation
At start of year 01 -
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment {0.1) -
Depreciation charge 0.2 01
At end of year 02 01
Net book value 251 385

Dunng the year, some investment properties have been transferred to property, plant and equipment (see note 14) as they are being
converted Into new trading space These properties are excluded from the market value of Investment properties below

The investment properties were valued at £34 3m as at 31 March 2007 by qualified professional valuers working for CB Richard Ellis,
Chartered Surveyors, acting in the capacity of External Valuers Last year the investment properties were valued at £55 5m by
qualified professional valuers working for DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors, acting in the capacity of External Valuers

All such valuers are Chartered Surveyors, being members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) The properties werg
valued on the basis of Market Value All valuations were camed out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards
As the investment properties are held at depreciated historical cost, this valuaton has not been reftected in the camying value of

the assets

The Group receved rental income of £1 7m (last year £1 5m) in respect of these investment properties

16 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

2007 2008

£m £m
At start of year 80 87
Share of profit 03 03
At end of year 93 g0

The Joint venture represents a 50% equity interest in Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company Incorporated in Great
Britan The partner in the joint venture 1s J Sainsbury plc

In relation to the Group's interest in joint ventures, the assets and habilties are shown below

2007 2008

L B £m tm
Non-current assets 2.8 25
Current assets 71 67
Current habilities 04) 02)

Net assets 9.3 g0
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17 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2007 2008
£m cm
Non-current
Unlisted nvestments 30 33
Current
Listed UK secunties 48 2 436
Unlisted investments 47 52
509 488
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2007 2008
) £m £m
Non-current
Other recewvables 14 53
Prepaid leasehold premums 242.8 2358
Other prepayments and accrued income 2.8 17
2470 2428
Current
Trade receivables 69.0 452
Less Prowvision for mparment of receivables 1.1) (32)
Trade receivables - net 679 420
Other recewvables 519 27 4
Prepaid pension contnbuiions - 577
Prepaid leasehold premums 76 76
Other prepayments and accrued incorme 69.3 758
196 7 2105

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an inmal matunty of three
months or less and credit card debtors recevable within 48 hours The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr far value

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits 1s 4 9% (last year 4 5%}, these deposits have an average matunty
of three days (last year eight days}

20 TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

2007 2006
£m m
Current
Trade payables 259.7 2426
QOther payables 327.8 196 6
Socral secunty and other taxes 496 407
Pension contributions payable 40.3 -
Accruals and deferred income 366.5 3879

1,043.9 867 8

Non-current
Accruals and deferred iIncome 87.6 74 8
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21 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2007 2008
o £m £m
Current

Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper! 1597 900
Syndicated bank facility? 296.9 -
Medium term notes® - 801 0
Secuniised loan notes* - 44
Finance lease liabilities 44 27
Non-equity B shares - 547
4610 1,052 8

Non-current
Medium term notes® 1,177.3 7790
Secuntised loan notes* - 307 3
Finance lease liabilties . ) 57.2 475
1,234 5 1,133 8
Total 1,6855 2,186 6

! Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper ncludes a £5 Om {last year £5 Om) loan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture (see note 16)
7 Relates to a £1 2bn five-year commtted faciity set to mature on 27 March 2011

? Relates 10 a number of floating rate meaiun term notes whech matuwred throughout the 2006/07 financial year Iinked to sterkng and suro LIBOR for penods ranging
from one to six months

* Relates to throe separate bonds secuntised agamst 45 of the Group's properties which were redeerned on 12 March 2007 i onder 10 release properties for use n the
hmited partrershup with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme See note 11 for further details of the Pension Scherme

® Ralates to fixed rate bonds of £375m at a rate of 6 375% repayabla on 7 November 2011, £400m at a rate of 5 625% repayable on 24 March 2014 and £400m at
a rate of 5 875% repayable on 29 May 2012 Interest on all of these bonds 1s payable anrually

Non-equity B shares

2007 2006

Shares £m Sharos £m

Authonsed non-equity B shares of 70p each - - 3.200,000,000 22400
Allotted, called up and fully paid non-equity shares of 70p each.

At start of year 78,184,314 54.7 93,822,916 657

Redemption of B shares 7 (78,184,314) 547) (15,638,602) (110

- - 78,184,314 547

On 27 March 2006, the Company gave notice to redeem all of the remaimung B shares in issue  The redemption was on the basis of
70p per share The decision by the Company to redeem all outstanding B shares was consistent with the nghts and restnctions
attached to the B shares contaned in the circular sent to sharehotders in February 2002 prior to approval at the Extracrdinary
General Meeting of the Company on 28 February 2002 Prior to redemption, holders of B shares wers entitled to receive a sub-
LIBOR dvidend in respect of their B shares for the penod 26 March to 4 May 2006 which s included within finance costs The B
shares were redeemed at par on 5 May 2006
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21 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES continued

Maturity of borrowings
The maturty of borrowings Is as follows

2007 2008

) - ) £m Em
Repayable within one year or on demand.
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 159.7 900
Syndicated bank faciity 2069 -
Medium term notes - a01 0
Securiised loan notes - 44
Finance leases 44 27
Non-equity B shares - 547
4610 10528
Repayable between one and two years:
Securttised loan notes - 38
Finance leases 37 13
3.7 51
Repayable between two and five years
Medium term notes 3814 -
Securitised loan notes - 136
Finance leases 69 03
3883 139
Repayable in five years or more
Mediumn term notes 7959 7790
Secuntised loan notes - 2899
Finance leases 456 459
— B425 11148
Total 1,6855 2,1866

Borrowing facilities

At year end, the Group had a five-year committed syndicated bank faciity of £1 2bn set to mature on 27 March 2011, which
contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before Interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable
to mterest plus rents payable The Group also has a number of undrawn uncommitted facilities avaslable to it At year end, these
amounted to £155m (last year £175m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year At the balance sheet date a stering
equivalent of £297m (last year £nil) was drawn under the committed facility and a further £19m {last year £nil) was drawn under

the uncommitted faciity

Financia! habihties

After taking into account the vanous interest rate swaps entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the
Group's financial habiiies is as set out below excluding short-term payables and the partnership liability (see note 22)

2007 2006

Fixed Floating Fixed Foaung
rate rate Total rate rate Tatal
Currency £m fm £m £m tm £m
Sterling 1,374.5 154.1 1,5286 1,1377 10455 21832
Euro - 159.5 159.5 32 02 34
Hong Kong Dallar ] - 74 7.4 - - -
1,374.5 3210 1,6955 1,1409 10457 21866

Included within floating rate liabilities 1s £l {last year £54 7m) of unredeemed B shares

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are linked 1o interest rates related to LIBOR These rates are for periods up to ong
month Excluding finance leases but including the parinership lability, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of
5 8% (last year 6 1%) and the weighted average time for which the rate 1s fixed 1s 8 5 years (last year 10 4 years)
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21 BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABIUTIES continued

Interest rate analysis
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

2007 2006

__ ] % %

Committed/uncommitted borrowings 48 -

Medium term notes 5.9 57

Secuntised loan notes - 63

Non-equity B shares - 35

Finance leases 44 44

Finance leases

The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as foliows

2007 2006

£€m £m

Not later than one year 71 48

Later than one year but not more than five 1856 98

More than five years 196.0 197 7

2226 2123

Future finance charges on finance leases (161.0} (162 1)

Present value of lease obligations 616 502

It 1s the Group’s policy to lease certamn of s properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment
i1s five years and 125 years for property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the
lessors' charges over the leased assets

22 PARTNERSHIP LIABILITY TO THE MARKS & SPENCER UK PENSION SCHEME

The partnership Hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme of £496 9m {last year £nil) relates to the amortising labilty
n respect of the obligations of the Marks and Spencer Scottish Lumited Partnership to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

The Group has agreed a plan with the Pension Scheme Trustee to address the majorty of the deficit by transfemng properties with a
current market value of £11bn nto a partnership established by the Group A lmted interest i this partnership was contnbuted to
the Pension Scheme on 13 March 2007 The Group retains control over these properties, including the flexibility to substitute
atternative properties The properties held in the partnership have been leased back to Marks and Spencer pic The pension scheme
1s entitled to a distribution from the profits of the partnerstup of £50m per annum for 15 years from July 2008 The Group has the
nght to buy out the Trustee's partnership interest at any point for an amount equal to the net present value of the remaining annual
distnbutions due to the pension scheme

Each year the obligation will reduce as payments are made to the pension schems by the partinership and an interest charge will be
taken to the income statement representing the unwinding of the discounted obligation at an implied interest rate of $ 32% The far
value of this hability was £495 3m (ast year £nil)

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Treasury Policy and Financial Risk Management
The Group operates a centralised Group Treasury function to manage the Group’s funding requirements and financial risks in ne
with the Board approved treasury poticies and procedures, and therr delegated authorties

The Group's financial Instruments, other than denvatives, compnse borrowings, cash and hquid resources and vanocus items, such as
trade debtors and trade creditors, that anse directly from ts operations The man purpose of these financial instruments 1s to raise
finance for the Group's operations

Group Treasury also enters into dervative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts
The purpose of these transactions 1s to manage the interest rate and currency nisks ansing from the Group’s operations and financing

it remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constrants
necessitate the need to hquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function i1s managed as a cost centre and does not
engage In speculative trading

The pnncipal financial nsks faced by the Group are hquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks The
pohcies and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed as follows
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
{a) Liquidity/funding nisk

The Group's funding strategy 15 to ensure a mix of funding sources offenng flexibility and cost effectiveness to match the
requirements of the Group Operating subsicharies are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term
notes, securtised loan notes and committed syndicated bank faciites In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a Euro
Medium Term Note programme of £3bn, of which £1 2bn (last year £1 7bn) was n 1ssuance as at the balance sheet date Short-
term borrowings are backed by a £1 2bn five-year committed syndicated bank facity, of which £286 Sm (fast year £nil) was drawn
down at the balance sheet date

{b) Interest rate nsk

The Group Is exposed to interest rate nsk i relahon to the sterling, euro and Hong Kong dollar vanable rate financial assets and
llabimities The Group's policy 1$ to use denvative contracts where necessary to mantain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to
manage this nsk The structure and maturity of these dervaties correspond to the undertying borrowings and are accounted for as
farr value or cash flow hedges as appropriate

At the balance sheet date fixad rate borrowings amounted to £1,374 5m (last year £1,137 7m) representing three public bond i1ssues
and finance leases Based on the financial liabilites and assets as at the balance sheet date a one percentage point movement in
average interest rates will have a £3 Om (last year £6 2m) impact on the Group's net interest charge

{c) Foreign currency nsk

Transactional foreign currency exposures arise from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from the
import of matenals and goods directly sourced from averseas suppliers Group Treasury hedge these exposures principally using
forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up to 100% out to 18 months

As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to
£456m (last year £270m) with a weighted average matunty date of six months {last year six months)

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translation exposures However, the translation
exposures ansing on the overseas net assets are hedged with foreign currency debt As at the balance sheet date, €234m (last year
€nil) and HK$113m (ast year HK$nil) currency debt was hedging overseas net assets

The Group alse hedges foreign currency intercompany foans where these exist As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional
value of intercompany loan hedges was £128m (last year £109m}

(d) Counterparty rnsk

Counterparty nsk exists where the Group can suffer financial loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions
Exposures are managed through Group Treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to
minimise the nsk of loss The counterparties are Imited to the approved instriutions with secure credit ratings Limits are reviewed
regularly by senior management

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade recevables £68m {last year £42m), other
recevables £53m (last year £33m), cash and cash equivalents £180m (last year £363m) and denvaives £2m (last year £76m)
The Group does not have any matenal exposures to concentrations of credit nsk with any one counterparty

Dernvative financial mstruments

2007 2006
Assets Uabilties Asses Liabiives
£m £m £m £m
Current

Interest rate swaps - farr value hedges - - 16 -
Cross currency - far value hedges - - 719 53)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 14 83) 12 27)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — held for trading 1.0 - 17 -
2.4 8.3) 76 4 (8 0)

Non-current
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - - - (9 5)
iqrward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - {02 - -
- {0.2) - (95)

During the year, the Group held a number of interest rate and currency swaps to redesignate both fixed and floating rate debt to the
Group's desired interest rate profile The attnbutes of these denvatives matched the charactenstics of the underying debt hedged
Dervatives moving floating debt to fixed were designated as cash flow hedges, and denvatives moving fixed debt to floating were
designated as fair value hedges
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Forward foreign exchange contracts In relation to the Group's forecast cumrency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges
with farr value movements recognised directly In equity To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables or
recevables then assocrated farr value movements previously recognised n equity are recorded in the Income statement in
conunction with the corresponding asset or hability

Forward foreign exchange contracts i refation to the hedging of the Group’s foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as
held for trading with fair valus movements being recognised In the iIncome statement The corresponding far value mavement of the
intercompany loan balance results In an overa nil impact on the income statement

Gamns and losses in equity on forward foreign exchangs contracts as of 31 March 2007 will be refeased to the income statement
at various dates over the following 14 months from the balance sheet date

With the exception of the Group’s fixed rate bond debt and the partnership iability (see note 22), there were no matenal differences
between the carrying value of non-denvative financial assets and financial habiliies and their farr values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Group's fixed rate bond debt was £1,177 3m (last year £915 Om), the far value of this debt was £1,162 9m
(last year £940 8m)

24 PROVISIONS
UK Overseas
rastructunng  restructunng Total
£m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2005 352 97 449
Provided in the year 58 - 58
Released i the year (3 5) - (35)
Utilsed dunng the year {(ig2) @8 (190)
Exchange differences - 01 01
At 1 Apnl 2006 193 90 283
At 2 Apnl 2008 19.3 90 28.3
Prowded in the year 2.0 - 20
Released in the year (1.1) - 1t1)
Utiised durnng the year 6.1) {0.5) (686)
Exchange differences - ©1) o1
At 31 March 2007 141 84 225
Analysis of total provisions
2007 2008
_ £m £m
Current 57 92
Non-current 16.8 191
Total provisions 225 283

The prowision for UK restructuning pnmarty relates to costs of closing Lifestore, restructunng of the Direct operation and head
office restructunng

The provision for cverseas restructunng costs pnmanly relates to future closure costs In respect of discontinued operations In
Continental Europe

The non-current prowisions relate to closure costs of discontinued operations in Continental Europe, the closure of Lifestore
operations and the restructuring of Direct operations and are expected to be utiised over a penod of 15 years
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25 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liabilty method using a tax rate of 30% (last year 30%) for UK

differences and the local tax rates for overseas differences

The movements in deferred tax assets and labilties (after the offsetting of balances within the same junisdiction as permitted by

{1AS 12 - ‘'Income Taxes’} duning the penod are shown below Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where there 1s a legally

enforceable nght of offset and there I1s an ntention to settle the balances net

Deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

Other
Fixad assets Acceleratad Penson short tam Total

temporary capual termporary temporary deferred Deferred
diffarances allowances difforences differences tax assets tax lapdities’ Total
£m £m £m €m £m £m £m
At 3 Apnl 2005 as previously reported (145 7) (74 3) 2412 34 246 @7 199
Prior year adjustment? 484 - - - 48 4 - 48 4
At 3 Apnl 2005 restated (97 3} (74 3) 2412 34 730 @7 683
Charged to the income statement 27 {107) (42 4) (14 9) (707) 08 (71 5)
Credited/(charged) to equity 50 - 527 247 824 06) 818
Transierred to discontinued operations - - - 08 {08) - {08
At 1 Apnl 20062 (95 0) (85 0) 2515 124 839 ©1) 778
At 2 Apnl 2006 (95.0) (850) 251.5 124 83.9 {6.1) 77.8
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 4.4 (18 2) (71.4) {125 {87.7) ©03) {98.0}
Credited/(charged) to sqguity - - 34 220 25.4 {0.9) 24.5
At 31 March 2007 (90.6) (103.2} 183.5 219 1.6 (7 3} 43

* Deferrad tax labiities relate pnmanly to overseas fixed assets and accelerated capital allowances

2 Following a change n external Interpretation of IAS 12 - 'Income Taxes the opening balance sheet at 3 Aprd 2005 has been restated to recogrise £48 4m of addtional
deferred tax assets ansing on fixed asset temporary differences At 1 Apnl 2008 this balance was prevousty reported as £143 4m and has been restated to £85 Om

In amving at the deferred tax on fixed assets, credit has been taken for capial losses with a tax value of £57 Om {last year £56 1m)

No deferred tax I1s recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries As the earnings are continually reinvested by the
Group, no tax 1s expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future Undistnbuted profits of overseas subsidianes amount to

£226 7m (last year £187 Om)

The Group 1s claiming UK tax relief for losses incurrad by some of its current and former European subsidianes In the ight of

continuing htigation, no asset has been recognised in respect of these clams

26 SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006
Shares £m Sharas £m

Authonsed ordinary shares of 25p each 3,200,000,000 8000 3,200,000,000 8000

Allotted, calied up and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each-

At start of year 1,682,437,014 4206 1,658,095,142 4145

Shares issued on exercise of share options 17,336,086 43 24,341,872 61

At end of year 1,699,773,100 4249 1,682,437,014 420 6

Issue of new shares

17,336,086 (last year 24,341,872) ordinary shares having a nominal value of £4 3m (last year £6 1m) were aliotted during the year
under the terms of the Company’s schemes which are described in note 12 The aggregate consideration received was £44 9m

(last year £61 8m)
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27 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHCOLDERS' EQUITY
Ordnary Sharo Captal

sham premium  redernption Hedging Other Retaned
caprtal acoount resarve reserve mserve’ earnngs® Total
£m tm £m £m em £m em
At 3 Apnl 2005 as previously reported 4145 1066 2,1028 (16) (65422 4,7615 8416
Pnor year adjustment {see note 25) - - - - - 484 484
At 3 Apnl 2005 restated 4145 1066 214028 (16) (654220 4,809 8300
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - - 5231 5231
Dmidends - - - - - (204 1) (204 1}
Foreign currency translation - - - - - 111 111
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options 61 557 - - - - 618
Redemption of B shares - - 110 - - (110 -
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust* - - - - - 60 {60
Actuanal loss on retirement benefit deficit - - - - - (1693 {169 3)
Deferred tax on retrement benefit deficit - - - - - 520 520
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 218 218
Defemred tax on revalued properties - - - - - 50 50
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 247 247
Cash flow hedges
- losses deferred in equity - - - (3 1) ~ - 31
- recycled and reported in net profit - - - (14) - - (14)
~ amount recognised In nventones - - - 38) - - 38)
- tax on far value losses - - - 19 - - 18
At 1 April 20065 4206 1623 2,1138 (80) (65422 50572 11,2037
At 2 Aprnil 2008 420 6 1623 2,113.8 (80} (6,542.2) 5,057.2 1,203.7
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders - - - - - 659 8 659.9
Dmdends - - - - - (2606} (260.6)
Foreign currency translation - - - - - (14 0) (14.0)
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options 4.3 40.8 - - - - 44.9
Redemption of B shares - - 54.7 - - 547 -
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust* - - - - - (18.4) (184)
Purchase of call option for Company's shares - - - - - {17 3) {17 3)
Actuanal loss on retirement benefit deficrt - - - - - (8.6) (8.6)
Deferred tax on retirement benefit deficit - - - - - 4.0 40
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 223 223
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 273 273
Cash flow and net investment hedges
~ losses deferred in equity - - - (7 4) - - (7.4)
- recycled and reported In net profit - - - 107 - - 10.7
- amount recognised N inventones - - - 21 - - 2.1
- tax on far value gains - - - (1.8) - - {18)
At 31 March 2007 4249 2029 2,168.5 44) (6,542.2) 5,397.1 1,6468

' The 'Cther reserve’ was created as part of the capital restructunng that took place n 2002 It represents the difference between the normunal value of the shares
issued pnor to the capdal reduction by the Company {being the carmypng value of the iInvestment in Marks and Spencer pic} and the share caprtal, shara pramium
and capital redemption resarve of Marks and Spencer pic at the date of the ransaction

# Cumutative goodwall of £nd (last year £62 Om) ansing on the acquisition of subsidianes has been written off against retamed samings
? includes a cumulative £2 9m loss (last year £11 1m gan) m the cumency reserve

* The Marks and Spencer Employse Benefit Trust (‘the Trust’) holds 4,767,449 (last year 2,820,688) sharos with a book value of £28 1m (ast year £3 7m) and a market
value of £32 3m (ast year £15 7m) These shares were acqured by the Trust in the market In agdivon the Trust has entered nto a calt option to purchase up to 8 1m
of the Company's shares The Trust used funds provided by Marks and Spencer pic to meet the Group's obligations  Awards are granted 10 employees at the discretion
of Marks and Spencer pic and shares are awarded 1o employees by the Trust in accordance with the wishes of Marks and Spencer plc under serior executive share
schemas tha Share Matching Plan and Restrdcted Share Plan Dividends are warved on all of these Plans except for the Deferred Bonus Share Plan whera dmvidends

I are pad via a Dvdend Reinvestment Plan for awards made in tha form of forfertable shares

% Retainad earmngs wera praviously reported as £6,008 8m Followng the change in accounting policy this has been restated to £5,057 2m (see note 25)
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28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A Capital commitments

2007 2006
» £m
Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 2658 605

B Other matenal contracts.
In the event of a matenal change In the trading arrangements with certain warehouse operators, the Group has a commiiment to
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently
owned and operated by them on the Group's behalf

C Commmtments under operating leases:
The Group leases varnous stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-canceliable operating lease agreements
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

2007 2006
o £m £m
Total future mirtimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
Not later than one year 106 102
Later than one year and not later than five years 574 499
Later than five years and not later than 25 years 1,778.3 1,724 4
Later than 25 years 1,5276 15154
Total 3,3739 32399

The total future sublease payments to be recewved are £68 8m (last year £58 9m)

29 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
31 March 1 Aprl
2007 2006
A Cash flows from operating activities - continuing - £m tm
Profit on ordinary actvities after taxation 6592 520 6
Income tax expense 2775 2251
Interest payable and smilar charges 1430 1349
Interest recewvable _ {33 8} {30 5)
Operating profit 1,045 9 850 1
Increase In nventones (428) (42 2)
Decrease/(increase) in recevables 12.5 41
Payments to acqurre leasehold properties (13.5) (38 0)
Increase In payables 136 6 128 0
Exceptional operating cash outflow (see note 29F) 42 (14 6)
Depreciation and amortisation 282.7 2740
Share-based payments 273 247 .
(Profit)/loss on property disposals i B {1.9) 57 !
Cash generated from operations - continuing 1,442.6 1,1836
B _Cash flows from operating activities — discontinued
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 07 25
Profit on sale of business {0 4) -
Income tax expense - a7
Net interest recevable - 02
Operating profit 0.3 30
Decrease in working capital 0.1 35
Depreciation and amortisation 03 63
Loss on property disposals - 11
Cash generated from operations - discontinued’ 0.7 139

! The discontinued operalion relates to Kings Super Markets Inc There was a cash outflow of £nil flast year £5 2m) i refation to nvesting actmties, £nib inflow last year
£0 1m) n relation to financing actmties and £nil outflow (last year £0 6my for taxation
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29 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT continued
52 weoks 52 weeks
ended anded
31 March 1 Apnl
2007 2006
C Capital expendsture and financial investment fm  tm
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {666 9) (298 5)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.9 451
Purchase of intangble fixed assets (46.5) (109)
Sale/(purchase) of non-cumrent financial assets 03 (30)
(Purchase)/sale of current financial assets (2.6) 10
{712.8) (266 3)
D Other debt financing
Cash inflow/{outflow) from borrowings . 21.6 (144 6)
Drawdown/{repayment} of syndicated bank faciity 296 4 (200 O)
Redemption of secuntised loan notes (319 6) (31)
Redemption of medium term notes (818.2) (58 3)
Issue of medium term notes 397.5 -
Decrease in obligations under finance leases 22 (30)
Redemption of B shares (54.7) (110
{479.2) {420 0)
E Other equity financing
Shares ssued on exercise of employee share options 44.9 618
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust (18 4) B0
Purchase of call option for Company's shares 17 3) -
9.2 558
F Exceptional operating cash flows
UK restructunng costs (2.8) (70
Closure of Lifestore {0.7) 67)
Closure of European operations (0.7) 07
Defence costs B - 02
4.2 {14 6)

Addrtions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £13 6m (last year £1 3m) were financed by new firance

leases
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30 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

A Reconcihation of movement in net debt

Exchange
At Fauir value and cther At
1 Apni Discontnued  movement on nen cash 31 March
20086 Cash flow cperations dervatives movements 2007
£m om m £m Em £m
Net cash
Bark loans {see note 21) (90 0) (366 1) - - - (456.1)
Less amounts treated as financing (see below) 50 3180 - - - 323 0‘
(85 0) {48 1) - - - (133 1)
Cash and cash eguwvalents (see note 19) 367 4 (180 ) 49 - (18} 180 1
Net cash per cash flow statement 282 4 (228 Q) 49 - (15} 47.0
Current financial assets (see note 17) 67 7 26 (18 8) - (06} 509
Debt financing’
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper treated as
financing (see above) 50 (21 6) - - - (26.8)
Syndicated bank facility (see note 21) - (296 4 - - - (296 4)
Securitised loan notes (see note 21) (310 8) 3196 - - 88 -
Medium term notes (see note 21) (1.6567) 4207 - 670 18 (1,167 2)
Finance lease liabilities (see note 21) 52 2) 22 20 - (13 6) (61.6)
Non-equity B Shares {see note 21) (54 7) 547 - - - -
Partnership abihty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension
Scheme (see note 22) - - - - (495 6) (495.6)
Debt financing (2,079 4) 4792 20 670 (5162) (2,047 4!
Net debt (1,729 3) 2528 217) 67 C (5183) (1,9495)
B Reconciliation of net debt to balance sheet
2007 2006
o £m £m
Balance sheet and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents 180 1 362 6
Current financial assets (see note 17} 50.9 48 8
Bank foans, overdrafts and commercial paper (see note 21) {1569 7} (90 0)
Syndicated bank faciity (see note 21) {296.9) -
Medium term nctes (see note 21) (1,177 3} (1.6800)
Secuntised loan notes (see note 21) - 311 7)
Finance lease habilties {see note 21) {61 6) 50 2)
Non-equity B shares {see note 21) - (54 7)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schemes (see note 22) (496 9) -
(1,961.4) (1,775 2)
Financial assets included within assets of discontinued operation 217

Interest payable included within related borrowing 11.9 242
Total net debt {1,949.5) (17293




www.marksandspencer.com/annualreport2007 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC 89

31 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

Waightad average Weighted aversge
sa'es rata profit rate Balance shoet rate
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006
Euro 1.48 147 1.47 147 147 143
US doltar 188 178 1.88 179 1.96 174
Hong Kong dollar 14.77 1385 14.77 1389 1531 1348

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A Subsidianes
Transactons between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related partiss, have been elminated on consohdation and are

not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes are disclosed in the Company’s separate financial
statements

B Hedge End joint venture
A loan of £5 Om was recenved from the joint venture on 9@ October 2002 It 1s repayable on five business days’ notice and
was renewed on 31 December 2005 Interest was charged on the loan at 5%

C Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme are set out In note T

D Key management compensation

2007 2006

) ; £m £m
Salanes and short-term benefits 96 120
Post-employment benefits 0.4 o7
Termination benefits - 16
Share-based payments 67 47
Total 16.7 180

Key management in the comparative period included the directors, the Group Secretary, and the highest level of senior
management In 2006/07, a new Executve Committee (ExCo) was formed and so key management for 2007 includes the directors,
the Group Secretary and only those members of key management who are members of ExCo I ExCo had been formed in the pnor
year, the comparative total key management compensation would have been £12 3m Further information about the remuneration
of individual directors 1s provided In the Remuneration report

Dunng the year, key management have purchased goods at the Group's usual prices less a 20% discount This discount Is avarlable
to all staff employed directly by the Group in the UK

Interest-free loans outstanding to key management, which includes no drrectors, at 31 March 2007 were £nil {last year £13,678)




80 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP FLC www marksandspencer.com/annuatreport2007

Company income statement

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended endad
31 March 1 April
2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Operating profit C203 - -
Income from shares n Group undertakings 2606 2052
Finance costs ca (02) (25
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 260 4 2027
2007 2006
Notas £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in Group undertakings C6 9,046 1 9,046 1
Current assets
Trade and other recevables B ) 0.1 04
Total assets 9,048.2 90465
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 2,0608 20517
Trade and other payables 0.9 03
Non-eguity B shares - 547
Total habihties 2,0617 21067
Net assets 6,984.5 68398
EQUITY
Called up share capttal - equity 4249 4206
Share premium account c7 2029 162 3
Capital redemption reserve c7 21685 21138
Merger reserve c7 13973 1,397 3
Retaned earnings c7 2,7909 28458
Total equity 69845 69398

Approved by the Board
21 May 2007

Stuart Rose, Chef Executive
fan Dyson, Group Finance Director




www.marksandspencer com/annualreport2007 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC 81

Company statement of changes
INn shareholders’ equity

52 weeks 52 weaks
ended ended
31 March 1 Apd
2007 2006
o £m £m
Profit attnbutable to sharehclders 260.4 2027
Dridends {260.6) {204 1)
{0.2) (14)
Shares 1ssued on the exercise of employee share options 44.9 618
Change in shareholders’ equry 44.7 604
Opening shareholders' equity 6,939.8 6,879 4
Closing shareholders’ equity 6,984.5 69398
52 woeeks 52 woeks
ended endsd
31 March 1 Apnl
2007 2008
. £m om
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 0.9 04)
Tax pad - 09
Net cash |nﬂow/(oqtﬂow) from operating activities 0.9 (09)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dmdends receved 2606 2052
Investment in subsiciary - {0 1)
Net cash inflow from investing activities 2606 2051
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (0.2) (25)
Redemption of non-equity B shares 547 (11 0)
Shares 1issued on exercise of employee share options 449 618
Repayment/{drawdown) of intercompany loan 9.1 (48 4)
Equity dividends pad (260 6) {204 1)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (261.5) (204 2)

Net cash inflow from activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and end of year
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's accounting policies are given in note 1 of the Group financial statements

C2 EMPLOYEES

The Company had no employees during the current or pnor year Directors recerved emoluments i respect of therr services
to the Company dunng the year of £751,000 (last year £502,000) The Company did not operate any pension schemes dunng
the current or preceding year

C3 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Auditors’ remuneraton in respect of the Company’s annual audit has been borne by its subsidiary Marks and Spencer pic and
has been disclosed on a consolidated basis in the Company's consolidated financial statements as required by section 227A
of the Companies Act 1985

C4 FINANCE COSTS
Dvidends of £0 2m (ast year £2 S5m) were pad in respect of non-equity B shares

C5 DIVIDENDS

2007 2006 2007 2006
I por share per share £m m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares.
Paid fina! dvmdend 9.2p 75p 154 8 124 3
Paid internm dividend 6 3p 48p 106 0 798

16 5p 123p 2606 2041

In addtion, the directors have proposed a final dvidend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 of 12 Op per share amounting
to a dmidend of £204 Om It will be paid on 13 July 2007 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 1 June 2007 In lne
with the requirements of IAS 10 - ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’, this dividend has not been recognised within these resutts

C6 INVESTMENTS .
A Investments in Group undertakings

2007 2006

X - £m £m

Beginning of the year 09,0461 90460
Additional investrrient in subsichary - 01
End of year 9,046.1 9,046 1

Shares in Group undertakings represent the Company's investment in Marks and Spencer plc
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C6 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

B Prncipal subsidiary undertakings
The Company's pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are set out below A schedule of interests in all undertakings is filed with the
Annual Return

Country of incorporation Proportion of voung nghts

Pracipal actvity anc operation and shares held by

\\\\\ L Company A subsidiary

Marks and Spencer plc Retalling Great Britan 100% -
Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Holding Company Great Brtan - 100%
Marks and Spencer {(Nederland) BV Holding Company The Nederlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer (reland) Limited Retaling Republic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Asia Pactfic) Limted Retailling Hong Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods bimited Retailing Great Britan - 100%
MS Insurance L P Financial Services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance Great Britan - 100%
St Michael Finance plc Finance Great Britan - 100%
Marks and Spencer Finance pic Finance Great Britan - 100%
Marks and Spencer Chester Limited Property Investment Great Britan - 100%
Marks and Spencer SCM Limited Procurement Great Britan - 100%
Per Una Group Limited Procurement Great Bntam - 100%
Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership Property Investment Great Britan - -1

* Marks and Spencer pic 18 a general partner
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 231(5) of the Comparies Act 1985 by providing information only

in relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
financial statements

C7 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Ordinary Share Capital

share Premum reciempton Merger Retained
capital account reserve reserve eamings Total
£m £m £m m £m m
At 3 Apnl 2005 4145 1066 2,028 1,3973 28582 68794
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - 2027 2027
Dmdends - - - - (204 1) (204 1)
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employes share options 61 557 - - - 618
Redemption of B shares - - 110 - (110 -
At 1 Apnl 2006 4206 1623 2,1138 13873 28458 69398
At 2 April 2006 420.6 1623 2,1138 1,397.3 2,8458 6,839.8
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - 2604 260 4
Dwvidends ~ - - - (260 6) {260.6)

Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options

(see note 12) 43 40.6 - - - 44.9
Redemption of B shares - - 547 - 547 -
At 31 March 2007 4249 2029 2,685 1,397.3 27909 69845

C8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the year, the Company has recerved dmdends from Marks and Spencer plc of £260 6m {ast year £205 2m) and has
increased 1ts loan from Marks and Spencer plc by £9 1m (last year £48 4m decrease) There were no other related party
transactions
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Group financial record

The figures for 2005 to 2007 are prepared under IFRS The figures for 2004 and 2003 are UK GAAP figures presented in the same
format as the 2005 to 2007 figures

IFRS (FRS {FRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2006 2008 2004 2003
52 weoks 52 woeeks 52 woeeks 53 wesks 52 weeks
£m £m £m tm £m
Income statement
Revenue — continuing operations §,588.1 77977 74805 | 7.,7281 7,399 0
Operating profit - continuing operations
United Kingdom 956 7 7845 5280 7386 6015
Overseas 892 656 701 450 349
Total operating profit 1,045 9 8501 588 1 7836 636 4
Analysed as }
Before exceptional operating charges ! 4,0459 8501 6487 8257 680 3 1
Exceptional operating charges - - (50 6) 42 1) {43 9) :
Net interest payable? {130.0) (121 9) (104 4) 457) {40 6) |
Pension finance income/(charge) 208 175 114 (15 2) 270 !
Profit before taxation - continuing operations 936 7 7457 5051 7227 6228
Taxation on ordinary actvities (277 5) {2251) (150 1) (225 1) {182 1)
Profit after taxation 859.2 5206 3550 4597 6 4407
Profit from discontinued operations 07 25 2312 547 662
Minorty interests - - To- - 04
Profit attnbutable to shareholders 659 9 5231 586 2 5523 507 3

1 For 2007 ncludes £30 4m of exceptional finance costs which arose on the early redemption of £317 2m of secured bonds {see note 5)
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IFRS IFRS! IFRS' | UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2008 2005 2004 2003
) £mn em £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Non-current assets
Intangibie non-current assets 1941 1635 1654 - -
Property, plant and equipment (including investment properties) 4,0606 36143 36248 | 34976 3,435 1
Trade and other recevables 247.0 2428 2112 | 1,7793 1,559 5
Joint venture and other financial assets 123 123 90 100 287
Deferred tax assets 116 838 730 2035 277 1
Non-current assets 453468 4,1168 40834 | 54904 53014
Current assets 846.4 1,142 1 8323 20867 1,686 8
Total assets 53810 52589 49157 75771 6,988 2
Current liabtlities {1,6062) (2,0170) (1,2374)} (1,8199) (1,769 4)
Non-current liabilities
Retrement benefit deficit (283 3) (794 9) (676 0) (663 5) (1,2782)
Other non-current liabilities {1,843.3) (1,2433 (2,044 7)| (25337) (1,8323)
Total liabilities (3,732.8) (40552} (3.9581)| (5,1231) {4,8799)
Net assets 1,648.2 11,2037 9576 | 2,4540 2,1083

1 Non-current defered tax assets have been restated by £48 4m in 2005 and 2006 due to a change in acoourting policy {see nots 25)

IFRS IFRS IFAS | UK GAAP UK GAAP

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

52 weeks 52 weeks 52 woBks 53 weeaks 52 weoeks

{ £m om £m im  gm

! Cash flow

i Cash flows from operating activities

| Generated from operating actvities 1,4433 11975 16018 6665 11,1687

i Taxation pad (150.8) (10t 5) {166 7) (220 4) (216 9)

3 Cash flows from operating activities 1,2025 10060 14351 446 1 9518
Cash flows from investing activies

Acquisitions and disposals 488 - 3511 513 (38 8)

Capital expenditure and financial nvestment (712 8) {266 3) {113 5) (317 4) 3267)

Dmdends receved from joint venture - - - - 80

Interest receved . 13.2 128 154 14 4 118

Cash flows from investing actvities {650 8) (253 4) 2530 (251 7) (345 6)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest pad’ {145 0) (142 8) {116 5) 612) (513)

Non-equity dividend paid - - 2 8) 30 68

Other debt financing (479.2) (420 0) 7571 4136 (431 4)

Equity dividends paid (260 6) {204 1) (236 9) (247 1) (225 4)

Other equrty financing 92 558 (2,2651) (66 6) {280 9)

Cash flows from financing actities (875 6) (711 1) (1,864 2) 357 {995 8)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from activities (233.9) 1315 {176 1) 2301 (389 6)

1 2007 includes £21 6m of exceptional finance costs
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Key performance measures

IFAS IFRS IFRS | UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
52 weeks 52 weeks 62 weoks 53 wesks 52 weoeks!
Gross profit
Gross margin® 38 9% 38 3% 34 7% 35 4% 34 8%
Revenue
Qperating profit
Net margin’ 12.2% 10 9% 8 0% 99% 86%
Revenue
Net margin excluding property disposals and exceptional items 122% 11 0% 8 7% 102% 92%
Profit before tax
Profitabihty’ 10.9% 9 6% 67% 94% 84%
Revenue
Profitability excluding property disposals and exceptional tems 11 2% 9 6% 74% S7% 9 0%

Basic earnings

Weighted average ordinary
shares in 1ssue

Basic earnings per share! e 39 1p 31 3p 17 6p 24 2p 21 8p

g:fgmnngs per share adjusted for property disposals and exceptional items? 40.4p 314p 19 2p 247p 23 3p

Dridend per share declared in respect of the year 18.3p 14 0p 12 ip 115p 105p

Profit attnbutable to shareholders
Dwidend cover 2.1x 2 2x 2 9x 2 1x 2 1x
Dnidend payable

Profit attnbutable to shareholders

2 ) D,
Return on equity Average equity shareholders’ funds 46 3% 50 0% 35 1% 252% 22 4%

Retall debt + net post retrement liability

Retal debt + net post retirement hiability
+ retall shareholders’ funds

Retail geanng? 59.1% 68 8% 76 2% 44 7% 53 0%

Operating profit before depreciation

and operating lease charges

Retail fixed charge cover - Fixed charges® 5.9x 4 9x 4 1x 7 3x 6 9x

Net debt® (£m) 1,9495 1,72863 21477 | 19947 18314

Capital expenditure (£m) 7924 3377 2294 4335 3110

' Based on conunung operations

? Retal shareholders funds for 2006 and 2006 have been restated to recognise £48 4m of additional tax assets and reserves, following the change in external
nterprataton of IAS 12 - ‘income Taxes’

? Fixed charges are defined as net interast payable ard operating lsases payabio

¢ Comparatives for 2003 have been restated following the adoption of FRS 17 ~ ‘Retrement Benefits', Applicabon Note G of FRS 5 - Revenue Recogrition®
and UITF 38 -~ *Accounting for ESOP Trusts'

¢ Excludes accrued Interest
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UK store DOITfO”O (as at 11 May 2007)

Abbeycentre Belfast * Aberdeen - Accrington « Aldershot Outlet + Altrincham « Andover * Ards Shopping Centre « Arena Park Coventry *
Armison Centre Durham + Ashford * Ashford Qutlet » Ashton-under-Lyne * Astle Park Outiet * Avonmeads * Aylesbury « Ayr « Balham +
Ballymena * Banbridge Outlet « Banbury * Bangor, Northern Ireland « Bangor, Wales + Banstead « Bamsley < Barnstaple Barrow *
Basidon * Basingstoke « Bath + Bath Road. Slough » Bayswater + Beaconsfield + Bearsden + Beckenham < Bedfard « Belfast = Beverley «
Bexleyheath « Bicester « Biggin Hill + Birch West Services * Birkenhead * Birmingham ¢« Birmingham New Street Station « Bishop
Auckland « Bishop Stortford « Blackburn = Blackheath  Blackpool « Blackrock * Blanchardstown * Bluewater « Balton + Bolton
Middiebrook * Bond Street Station « Boolle * Borehamwood « Boston * Bothwell Street, Glasgow * Boundary Mit Outlet - Bournemouth
Brackley (BP) * Bracknell * Bradford « Bradwell Abbey, Milton Keynes {BF} * Brachead * Bramntree * Braintree Outlet « Breakspear Way
{BP} * Brent Cross * Brentwood * Bridgend Outlet « Bridington « Brighton « Brighton Station » Bristol * Brixton Road - Bromley «
Brompton Road * Brooklands * Broughty Ferry » Burnley « Burton * Bury * Bury St Edmunds * Buxton * Byker Outlet * Byres Road,
Glasgow * Camberley * Cambridge + Cambridge Station * Camden Town « Canary Wharf » Gannon Street Station Canterbury « Cardiff »
Cardiff Station » Cardinal Place. Victona = Carlisle = Carmarthen » Castleford + Castlgford Outlet « Castlepaint « Caversham + Channg
Cross Station » Chatham Outlet « Chelmsford » Chelsea « Cheltenham « Cherweli Valley Services « Cheshire Oaks Outlet + Cheshunt «
Chester « Chesterfield » Chichester » Chieveley Services + Chiswick * Chnstchurch = Church View, Tunbridge Wells (BP) « Cirencester -
Clacton « Clapham « Clapham South * Claredon (8F) « Clanon Quay, Dublin « Cleveleys * Colchaster » Coleraine ¢ Colseum + Colmore
Row = Cork » Covent Garden + Coventry * Craigleith + Cranleigh « Crawtey + Crescent Link « Crewe « Cnibbs Causeway * Cross Gates,
Leeds * Crouch End + Croydan * Culverhouse Cross « Cwmbran « Dalton Park Outlet « Darhington « Deal ¢« Denton Outlet * Derby »
Devizes + Dewsbury * Didsbury « Doncaster » Doncaster Qutlet « Donington Park Services ¢ Dorchester * Dorking « Dougtas * Dover «
Drogheda « Grafton Street, Dublin + Mary Street, Dublin » Dumbarton * Dumfnes * Dun Laoghaire, Dublin « Dundee * Dundrum *
Dunfermiine » Durham « Ealing Broadway + Earls Court « East Kibnde « East Reading Services « Eastbourne Edgware Broadwalk <
Edgware Road * Edinburgh « Edinburgh Waverley Station « Elgin « Eltham « Enfield « Epsom « Euston Station « Evesharn « Exeter »
Exeter Services * Falkirk » Falmouth » Fareham + Felixstowe « Fenchurch Street « Ferrybndge Servicos ¢ Fforestfach » Finsbury
Pavernent » Fleet « Fleetwood Qutlet « Formby « Fort Kinnaird « Fossa Park « Fourways, Corby (BP) » Foyleside « Frankley South
Services + Frome * Fulham lsland + Gansborough *» Galway * Gatwick North « Gatwick South « Gemin, Warrington + Gerrards Cross «
Glasgow Argyl Street « Glasgow Central Station + Glasgow Sauchiehall Strect « Gloucester + Godstone Park (BF) Grafton Centre
Cambridge * Grantham + Gravesend * Green Park * Greenock + Greenwich * Gretna Outlet * Gnmsby + Guildford * Guiseley « Gunwharf
Quays Outlet * Gyle * Hackney * Halifax « Hamiiton « Hammersmith » Harmmersmith Flyover {BP) « Hampstead « Handforth, Wilmslow «
Harborne * Harbourside, Bnstol « Harlow = Harpenden « Harrogate « Harrow « Hartlepool » Hastings » Hatfield Outlet + Haywards Heath
Haze! Grove * Heathrow Terminal 3 » Hedge End » Hemel Hempstead « Hempstead Valley * Hereford * Hertford = High Wycombe *
Hilton Park North Senvices » Hilchin « Holloway Road « Honiton » Horsham « Hounslow Outlet + Huddersfield * Hull « Huntingdon « lliord
fikeston * Inverness « Ipswich + Irving « Islington + Junction One Outlet » Keighley » Kendal « Kensington: * Kenton Bar « Kettering « Kew
Kidderminster Weavers Wharf » Kilburn  Kitmarnock « Kings Cross Station + Kings Lynn + Kings Road + Kingsditch = Kingston +
Kingston Park Milton Keynes » Kingsway Derby « Kirkcaldy « Knutsford Senices * Lancaster « Lancaster North Services * Leamington
Leeds * Leeds Central Station » Leeds Moortown « Lercester + Leigh Delamere East Services * Leigh Delamere West Services *
Letchworth » Lewisham « Lichfield = Liffey Valley » Lincoln * Lisburn + Liverpool « Liverpool Lime Street Station « Liverpool Street Station
Livingston * Livingston Outlet « Liandudno + Llanelll « Lanishen « London Bridge Station « London Colney + Loughborough « Loughton *
Lower Earley * Lowestoft » Lowry Outlet » Luton « Luton Arrport » Lytham St Annes + Macclesfield « Maidenhead « Maidstone «

Malone » Manchester * Manchester Piccadily Plaza « Manchester Piccadiily Station « Mansfield « Mansfield Outlet » Marble Arch = Market
Harborough * Marlow + Marylebone Station « Meadowhali = Meiton Mowbray * Merry Hil » Metro Centre * Middiesbrough Mill Hll »
Milngavie « Milton Dumbarton (BP} » Milton Keynes * Monks Cross * Monmouth « Morningside, Edinburgh ¢ Morpeth + Mount, St Albans
(BP) » Muswell Hill * Naas * Neath « New Mersey » Newark * Newbndge < Newbury « Newcastle * Newcastle-under-Lyme * Newmarkel «
Newport » Newpar, i1sle of Wight « Newry * Newton Abbot » Newton Mearns * Nawtownbreda = North Stafford Services « Northallerton ©
Northampton * Northolt Park (BP) « Northwich » Norwich » Notting Hill Gate « Nottingham * Nunsaton « Oadby + Ocean Terminal =
Omagh » Ormskirk « Orpington = Orsett South (BP) » Oxford = Paddington Station + Paisley * Palmers Green « Pantheon ¢ Paternoster
Squars * Pease Potiage Services * Perth « Peterborough ¢ Pinner « Plymouth » Pontardulais Pontefract = Pontypndd » Poole +
Portsmouth » Preston + Prestwich « Princes Risborough + Princess Park + Pudsey * Putney * Reading * Reading Station » Redcar
Redditch * Redhill + Reigate + Rhyl « Richmond » Rickmansworth » Ripon « Rochdale * Romford « Rotherham Parkgate ¢ Roundacre
Basidon (BP) » Royal Quays Outlet « Rugby » Ruislip « Sale « Salisbury « Scarborough + Scunthorpe + Sevenoaks ¢ Sheaf Street Station «
Shefiield « Shepherds Bush (BP) « Shirley + Shoreham « Shrewsbury « Skegness ¢ Slateford Road, Edinburgh (BP) * Slough * Solihull +
Sonming Cutting, Reading (BF} « South Shields + South Woodford » Sauthend-on-Sea + Southgate + Southport « Southwaite South
Services * Spalding *» Speke * Springfields Outlet » St Albans * St Helens » St Nects * Stafford « Stanes « Stamford Stevenage *
Stiring » Stockport = Stockton = Stoke-on-Trent = Straiton « Stratford * Street Qutlet » Sudbury * Summertown * Sunbury Cross »
Sundertand * Surbiton + Sutton « Sutton Coldfield + Swansea * Swindon « Swindon Qutlet « Swiss Cottage « Talbot Green = Tamworth »
Tamworth Services * Taunton + Teddington = Teesside * Teiford « Tempte Fortune « Tewkesbury * The Forge Outlet * The Fort Bimingham ¢
The More, London « Thurrock » Thurrock Outlet * Thurrock Services + Tiverlon ¢ Toddington North Services + Toddington South Services *
Totworth + Tooting « Torbay * Torquay » Tottenham Court Road « Trafford Park » Trowbndge + Trowell North Services  Truro Lemon Quay *
Tunbndge Wells « Twickenham * Upper Road Belfast + Uxbndge + Valley Park Croydon + Victona Station » Wakefield » Walsall » Walsall
Outlet « Walworth Road * Warnngton « Waterloo Station » Watford « Welwyn Garden City + West Bndglord « West End Glasgow « West
Quay * West Reading Servicas + West Wickham « Westbourne + Westcliffe-on-Sea (BP) + Westhill » Weston-Super-Marsa +« Westwood
Cross « Wetherby * Weymouth « Whetstone « Whitley Bay « Wigan + Wimbledon » Winchester » Windsor ¢ Woking + Wokingham
Wolverhampton « Wood Green + Woolley Edge Scuth Services * Woolwich Outlet « Worcester » Workington » Worthing = Wrexham
Wrythe (BP) * Wycombe Marsh + Yarmouth « Yeowl « York = York Qutlet * York Relat Park
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Record date to be eligible for the
tinal dividend

1 June 2007

Shareholder information

ORDINARY SHARES

As at 31 March 2007 there are 232,802 holders of ordinary shares whose sharehcldings
are analysed as below We also have a further 38,000 investors holding shares via our
Corporate nominge

AGM - Earls Count 2

10 Juty 2007

Percentage of » Final ordinary dividend for (the year to
MNumber of total number of Number of Percentage - .

Size of shareholding shareholders sharshokiers ordinary shares orcinary shares 31 March 2007 to be paid
1- 500 118,099 50 73 23,138,646 136 13 July 2007
501 - 1,000 46,572 20 00 34,511,550 A Halt year results to be announced
1,001 - 2,000 34,937 15 M 49,595,056 292 6 Nov 2007*
2,001 - 5,000 23,530 10 11 71,687,705 422 N
5001~ 10,000 5.952 2 56 41.163.276 242 Record c{ale to be eligible for the
- interim dividend
10,001 -~ 100.000 2,968 127 69,611,100 409 .

16 Nov 2007
100,001 - 1,000,000 519 022 180,108,886 1060
1,000,001 - Highest 225 010 1,229,856,881 7236 Interine croinary dividend (¢ be paid
Total 232,802 10000 1,699,773,100 100 00 11 Jan 2008* ,
Shareholders are further analysed as follows - .

provisional dates
Type of owner
Private holders 224,520 a6 44 323,657,534 1904
Institutional and corporate holders 8,282 356 1,376,115,566 80 96
Total 232,802 100.00 1,699,773,100 100.00

We recognise electronic communication is not {or everyone, which
1s why we offer choices By adwising us of your requirements we
are able to offer a range of services and tailor communication to
meset your needs Informed choices, aligned to new technology
will reduce the amount of paper, print and postage we use
Together, we can minimise waste and our impact on the

Shareholder vouchers
The 2006 Café Revive and Spend and Save vouchers once
again proved very poputar The offer for 2007/08 1s being
extended to technology products and shopping online via
our website Viouchers will be distnbuted with the January
dividend and be valid throughout February and March 2008

environment For further information go to

Dividends
www shareview ¢o uk ‘
Sharehclders are able t0 chocse how they receve therr dvidenxds i

» direct to ther bank account,! Electronic shareholding

* paid in foreign currencies, Shareholders can hold shares electronically in our

* remnvested in M&S shares, or Corporate nomineg account This

* paid by cheque e gives Increased secunty for personal details,

* rermoves the need for a share certificate, and -
* provides share dealing at competitive rates

For further information please contact Lioyds TSB Registrars

tMES preferred option

The quickest and most efiicent way to receve your dwvidends
1S to have them paid direct to your bank account This saves
wariting for funds to clear and reduces the paper and postage
we use Those selecting this payment method receve a

Company website
Visit www marksandspencer com/thecompany to find out

consolidated tax voucher at thewr registered address each
January However, we are able to send a tax voucher with
each payment If preferred To change how you recewve your
dividends esther log on to www shareview co uk or contact
Lioyds TSB Regstrars

Electronic communication

Together with Loyds TSB Registrars we are able to offer an
easy to use, fres and secure service allowing you to manage
your shareholding online You can also elect to view your
Annual report via our website Shareholders who choose this
option receve the same information, only sooner

more about your Company You can catch up on the latest
news In the press release section, read the latest Annual report
and review, as well as watch recordings of past AGMs and

our financial results presentations Our 2007 AGM 1s being
broadcast Iive on the internet and details of how you ¢can view
this are included n your Notice of Meeting We welcome
feedback on the site Please email your comments to
chairman@marks-and-spencer com

Shareholder secunty

Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicited
advice, offers to buy shares at a discount, or offers of free
reports about the Company Details of any share dealing
facilities that the Company endorses will be included in
Company maiings More detailed information can be found at
www fsa gov uk/consumer




www marksandspencer.com/annualreport2007

SHAREHOLDER VOUCHERS
Enjoy shopping at M&S stores and enline with your
annual shareholder vouchers.

DIVIDENDS

Receive dividends direct to your bank account in
sterling or foreign currency, reinvest in more M&S
shares or receive a cheque.

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
Register your AGM vote, update your details and check
your holding online at www.shareview.co.uk

ELECTRONIC SHAREHOLDING

Open an M&S Share Service account for more convenient
dealing wittout a share certificate. For further information
please coniact LloydsTSB registrars.

COMPANY WEBSITE
Keep updated on M&S news as it happens at
www.marksandspencer.com

CONTACT US

Email us at chairman@marks-and-spencer.com
Customer queries 0845 302 1234

Shareholder queries 0845 609 0810

+44 {0) 121 415 7071 (outside the UK)

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which
makes it uneconomical to sell, may wish to consider donating
them to chanty

ShareGift 1s a registered chanty administered by The Orr
Mackmntosh Foundation Set up in 1896, they have donated
the proceeds of unwanted shareholdings to a wide range of
UK chanties

Find ocut more at www ShareGift org cr by telephoning
ShareGift on 020 7337 0501

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

The Company has a level 1 ADR programme sponsored by

JP Mergan Chase Bank NA to enable US investors to purchase
Marks & Spencer Amencan Depository Shares (ADSs) n US
Dollars 'over the counter’ Each ADS represents six ordinary
shares For further nformation, please contact

JP Morgan Chase Bank,

NA PO Box 43013, Providence, Rl 02940-3013, USA

Email adr@pmorgan com

Website www.adrcom

Toll-free for callers withun the US {800) 99C 1135
For those caling outside the US +1 (781) 575 4328

Half year results
The half year results will be advertised in selected national
newspapers and be avalable on our website In November

How we do business

A copy of the How we do business report detailing our
environmental and social performance 1s avalable online at
www marksandspencer com/howwedobusinessreport2007
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Capital Gains Tax (CGT)

For the purposes of CGT, the price of an ordinary share on 31
March 1982 was 153 5p, which, when adjusted for the 1 for 1
scnp issua In 1984, gives a figure of 76 75p

Following the capital recrganisation in March 2002, the Inland
Revenue has confirmed the base cost for CGT purposes was
372 35p (B1 43%) for an ordinary share and 68 75p (18 57%)
for a B share

Unsolicited mail

The Company 1s cbliged by law to make its share register
publicly avalable and, as a consequence, some shareholders
may receive unsolicited mail If you wish to imit the amount of
unsolicited mail you recemve, please contact

The Mailing Preference Service (MPS)
DMA House, 70 Margaret Street, London W1W BSS

Alternatively, reqister online at www mpsonhine org uk
or cali the MPS Registration ine on 0845 703 4599

The use of a nominee company can also help protect your
prvacy You can transfer your shares into our Corporate nominee
company by contacting Lloyds TSB Registrars  Alternatively,
contact your broker for information on their nominee services

Registered office and Head office

Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW
Telephone +44 (0) 20 7935 4422

Registerad In England and Wales (No 4256886}

Group Secretary and Head of Corporate
Governance
Graham QOakley

Registrars
Uoyds TSB Registrars,
The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0845 609 0810
and outside the UK +44 (0) 121 415 7071

Feedback

We want to know what you think of this document Please go to
www marksandspencer com/annualreport2007survey

and complete our online survey

Further mformation

For additionat copies of the Annual repart or Annual review
and summary financial statements go to

www marksandspencer com/thecompany

Alternatively, call 0800 591 687

Large print and audio files can be downloaded
from our website
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Glossary

Better buying
Refers to the way we now buy our clothing — at the nght time,
In the nght amount at the nght price

Business Involvement Groups (BIG)

Compnse some 3,500 people across M&S, elected to represent
therr colleagues’ views when the Company s informing,
consulting and invotving staff on matters relating to work and
employment

Buying direct
Buying drrectly from a supplier Around 30% of the general
merchandise we buy is sourced ‘direct’

Buyming in greater depth
Buying more of a particular product or range to meet demand

Core business
Our main UK business - seling clothing, food and homs
products

Earnings per share (EPS)
The profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders, divided by
the average number of shares In Issue

Fast fashion

Products available in the latest styles, only weeks after they
have been on the catwalk Developed from sample to sales
floor in only eight weeks

Footfall
The number of pecple who vistt our stores

Full service vendors (FSVs)

A supplier who provides a full design, commercial, sourcing,
manufacturning and shipping service of cur products from
source to our distnbution centres in the UK Around 70% of
what we buy is sourced through FSVs

General merchandise
Our clothing, footwear, home and beauty products
(e all non-food)

www.marksandspencer com/annualreport2007

Gross margin
Sales less the cost of goods sold, as a percentage of sales

Market share

The percentage of the market or market segment that 15 being
serviced by M&S  For instance, if 100 t-shirts were sold a year
in the UK and M&S sold 10 of them, it would have 10%
market share

M&S Direct

Our online, phone and catalogue services, including the
flower, wing and food ordenng business, as well as the
home catalogue

Open to buy
Budget we set aside so that we ¢an buy more of a popular
product or buy into new trends dunng the season

Opening price point (OPP)
The starting price for our ranges For example, t-shirts at £5
or bras at £6

Our core values
The values which underpin our business quality, value, service,
Innovation and trust

Plan A

Our new £200m, five-year ‘eco ptan’

Total shareholder return (TSR)

The increase or decrease (n value of £100 invested in Marks
and Spencer Group pic on 30 March 2002 compared to £100
invested in the FTSE 100 over the same penod

Value
At M&S, pnce and quality combined makes ‘value’

Volume
The number of indwidua! tems we sell

Ths document 18 printed on Revive uncoated a 100%
rocycled papac made from post-consumer colected
waste Revwe uncoated 1 manufaciunad to the certriied
envronmental management system 50 14001

Deslgn Comorate Edge www coiporatesdge com
Print Roys Comporate Prnt
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